TENTATIVE AGENDA AND MEETING NOTICE

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

@ Tuesday, March 3, 2026 at 5:30 PM

Watauga County Recreation Center,
Community Room

TOPIC PRESENTER

5:30 1 Call Regular Meeting to Order

2 Approval of Minutes 2
e February 17, 2026, Regular Meeting
e February 17, 2026, Closed Session

3 Approval of the March 3, 2026, Agenda 10

5:35 4 Public Comment Chairman Braxton Eggers 11
e Limited to a maximum of one hour, with time adjusted
based on the number of speakers.

5:40 5 FY 2025 Audit Presentation Ms. Cindy Randolph 12
5:45 6 Lucky Dog Vintage Market — Use of Human Services Lot Mr. Trevor Shue 141
5:50 7 Requested Appointment of Home & Community Care Block Grant Ms. Angie Boitnotte 146
(H&CCBG) Advisory Community and Lead Agency
5:55 8 Emergency Service Matters Mr. Will Holt
A. Request to Purchase APX Consolettes 149
B. Request to Purchase Uninterrupted Power Supply 156
C. Request to Purchase PowerPro 2 Cot for Ambulance 163
6:00 9 2025 Carry-Forward Purchase Orders Mr. Deron Geouque 167
6:05 10 Miscellaneous Administrative Matters Mr. Deron Geouque
A. Hardin Park School SUE (Level B) Survey 170
B. Field Lease with High Country Soccer Association 178
C. Announcements 191
6:10 11 Commissioners’ Comments Chairman Braxton Eggers 192
6:15 12 Break 192
6:20 13 Closed Session 192

e Acquisition of Real Property per G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(5)

e Attorney-Client Matters per G. S. § 143-318.11(a)(3)
Including Case No. 5:25-cv-157, Watauga County Voting Rights
Task Force v. Watauga County Board of Elections

6:25 14 Adjourn



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

e February 17, 2026, Regular Meeting
e February 17, 2026, Closed Session



030326 BCC Meeting

MEETING MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Tuesday, February 17, 2026

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, February 17,
2026 at 5:30 p.m. in the Community Room located in the Watauga County Community Recreation
Center in Boone, North Carolina.

1. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

Chairman Eggers called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. The following were present:

PRESENT: Braxton Eggers, Chairman
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman
Emily Greene, Commissioner
Tim Hodges, Commissioner
Ronnie Marsh, Commissioner
Nathan Miller, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager

Commissioner Marsh offered the prayer and Commissioner Hodges led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Eggers presented the February 3, 2026, regular and closed session meeting minutes.

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the February 3,
2026, regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the February 3,
2026, closed session minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Eggers called for additions or corrections to the February 17, 2026 agenda.

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the February 17,
2026, agenda as presented.



030326 BCC Meeting

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

The following people spoke during public comment:

Lornie Webster — spoke on redistricting lawsuit.
Diane Wilson — spoke on redistricting lawsuit.
Kinney Baughman — spoke on redistricting lawsuit.
Brian Juneau - spoke on redistricting lawsuit.
Mary Rose Carroll - spoke on redistricting lawsuit.
Stacey Rex - spoke on redistricting lawsuit.

Alana Baird - spoke on redistricting lawsuit.

Cathy Williamson - spoke on redistricting lawsuit.
Donna Lisenby - spoke on redistricting lawsuit.

RN R W=

S. WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT

Ms. Monica Caruso, County Librarian, presented the Watauga County Public Library Annual
Report.

The report was for information only; therefore, no action was required.

6. CHANGE ORDER FOR BAKER GRADING CONTRACT FORANGLER
PARK

Ms. Wendy Patoprsty, Middle Fork Greenway Director, presented a change order to the Baker
Grading contract for Angler Park in the amount of $225,000.00. The increase would cover the cut
and removal of approximately 48 feet of guardrail in accordance with NCDOT standards, as well
as repairing a washout area consistent with plans prepared by Solid Rock Engineering. Sufficient
funding was available through the NC Land and Water Fund, the NC Division of Water Resources,
and matching funds from Middle Fork Greenway private donations. No County match was
required.

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the change order
for Baker Grading in the amount of $225,000.00.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

7. REQUESTING AWARD TO RETIRING OFFICER

N.C.G.S 17F-20 allows a governing body of a law enforcement agency to award a retiring member
their badge and service side arm at a price determined by the governing body. Law enforcement



030326 BCC Meeting

personnel may retire at age 55 with five (5) years of credible service as an officer with full
retirement benefits.

Deputy Perry Scot Brown is retiring March 1, 2026. The Sheriff’s Office requested that Scot’s
respective badge and side arm be awarded to him upon retirement and that the Board set the price
of the badge and side arm at $1.

Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to award Deputy Perry Scot
Brown his badge and side arm in the amount of $1.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

8. SANITATION TRUCK PURCHASE REQUEST

Mr. Chris Marriott, Operations Services Director, requested the Board approve the purchase from
Parks Ford (NC Sheriff’s Vehicle Procurement Contract) for a 2026 Ford Ranger 4x4 SuperCrew
pickup truck in the amount of $33,961.21 and taxes and tag in the amount of $1,025.00. The new
truck would be a replacement for a 2014 Ford F150 that has considerable rust and wear. Adequate
funds have been budgeted to cover the requested purchase. Board action is requested to approve
the purchase of a 2026 Ford Ranger 4x4 SuperCrew pickup truck in the amount of $33,961.21
along with taxes and tag in the amount of $1,025.00.

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the purchase of a
2026 Ford Ranger 4x4 SuperCrew pickup truck in the amount of $33,961.21 along with taxes and
tag in the amount of $1,025.00.

VOTE: Aye-—5
Nay -0

9. TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, presented the Monthly Collections Report and was available
for questions and discussion.

The report was for information only; therefore, no action was required.
B. Refunds and Releases
Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, presented the Refunds and Releases Reports.

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve the Refunds and
Releases Reports, as presented.



030326 BCC Meeting

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

10. MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Hardin Park School Boundary Survey

The Watauga County School System facility study inventoried all of the systems facilities. Hardin
Park School has been identified for years as needing to be replaced. Discussions have determined
the most cost-effective path forward would be to build on the existing site. In order to determine
if the construction on the site is feasible; soil, boundary, and utility studies will need to be
conducted.

As part of that process, a contract for boundary and topography services was included in the packet.
Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-64.32, the Board must exempt the project from the
Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) process, as the professional services fee is less than
$50,000.

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to exempt the project from the
Qualifications-Based Selection process pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-64.32.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to award the contract to JMT
for boundary and topography survey services in an amount not to exceed $47,150.

VOTE: Aye—5
Nay -0

B. Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex Bathroom Agreement

The County Attorney provided an agreement with High Country Soccer Association, Appalachian
State University and Watauga County regarding the bathroom use during the months of November
through April 1 at the Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex.

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the agreement as
presented.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0



030326 BCC Meeting

C. Franchise Request from Appalachian Regional Healthcare System

Appalachian Regional Healthcare System (ARHS) was requesting a franchise agreement to allow
for the transportation of patients. Watauga County Emergency Services would retain the first right
of refusal for all interfacility transports, with the following exceptions:

* Transports originating outside of Watauga County
» Transports requiring critical-care—level support, such as ventilator support, IABP support,
or other services meeting the NCOEMS definition of Specialty Care

These two exceptions would have no impact on the County system and would provide relief for
EMS crews by limiting potentially long-duration transports, which reduce available units for 911
calls. Granting a franchise agreement would also provide an additional backup resource for the
County’s system. The proposed term of the franchise was one year to evaluate its impacts on the
County EMS system. Per the County’s Franchise Ordinance, a public hearing was held on January
13, 2026, to allow input on granting a one-year ambulance franchise to ARHS.

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to grant the franchise
agreement to Appalachian Regional Healthcare System for a period of one year.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

D. Boards and Commissions

Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board

The Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board recommended the reappointment
of Mr. Andrew Ellis, Ms. Kristy Hackler, and Ms. Jennifer Miller. Each were willing to continue
to serve if so reappointed.

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to waive the first reading
requirement and appoint Mr. Andrew Ellis, Ms. Kristy Hackler, and Ms. Jennifer Miller to the

Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board

VOTE: Aye—5
Nay -0

Tourism Development Authority (TDA)

The following Watauga County TDA Board members terms expired at the end of February:
* Tina Houston of Reid’s Café & Catering and The Beacon Event facility

» Matt Vincent of VPC Builders (Current TDA Board Chair)

* Lisa Cooper of Mast General Store



030326 BCC Meeting

All three were willing and eligible to be re-appointed to 3-year terms and the TDA Board supported
the re-nomination of each of them. The TDA Board Chair was appointed by the Board of
Commissioners. Mr. Matt Vincent was eligible to continue in that role.

Chairman Eggers, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to waive the first reading and re-
appoint Tina Houston, Matt Vincent, Lisa Cooper, and re-appoint Matt Vincent as Chair to the
Watauga County TDA Board.

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0

E. Announcements

The Annual Pre-Budget Retreat was scheduled for Thursday, February 26, 2026, beginning at
12:00 P.M. and Friday, February 27, 2026, beginning at 9:00 A.M.

Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 7, 2026, beginning at 12:00 noon and
Friday, May 8, 2026, beginning at 9:00 A.M.

11. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS

Commissioner Greene congratulated the Watauga Lady Pioneers for winning the 6A State Indoor
Championship.

12. BREAK

13. CLOSED SESSION

At 6:34 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to enter Closed
Session pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to discuss matters protected by attorney—client
privilege, including Case No. 5:25-cv-157; and pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(5) to consider
matters related to the acquisition of real property and pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6)
personnel matters.

VOTE: Aye—5
Nay -0

At 8:27 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to resume the
open meeting.

14. ADJOURN

At 8:28 PM, Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to adjourn the
meeting.



030326 BCC Meeting

VOTE: Aye -5
Nay -0
Braxton Eggers, Chairman

ATTEST: Deron Geouque, County Manager



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF MARCH 3, 2026, AGENDA




030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 4:

PUBLIC COMMENT

Manager’s Comments:

Public Comment is limited to a maximum of one hour, with time adjusted based
on the number of speakers.



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 5:

FY 2025 AUDIT PRESENTATION

Manager’s Comments:

Ms. Cindy Randolph with C. Randolph, CPA, PLLC will present the Fiscal Year
2025 County audit. The County’s financial position remains strong due to direction
provided by the Commissioners and through execution of that direction by County
staff. Below are some of the financial highlights:

The total assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year
by $290,331,310, primarily due to an increase in investment earnings.

The County’s unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $57,511,262 at the
end of the year, representing 59% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an
increase of $2,220,989 in the unassigned fund balance from the previous year.

The current year collection rate for property taxes was 98.57% a slight decrease from
last year’s 98.83%.

Outstanding debt principal decreased by $6,570,000. Total outstanding debt
principal at June 30, 2025 is $48,820,000. Watauga County’s legal debt limit is
$1,122,575,787 so the County continues to be well below the state limits.

The audit is presented for information only; and therefore, no action is required.
However, due to strong fiscal management and the increase in the unassigned fund
balance, staff is recommending the Board commit the $2,220,989 to offset the
expenses related to the transition of ambulance service from Watauga Medics to the
County.

Board action is required to commit the $2,220,989 to offset the expenses related to
the transition of ambulance service from Watauga Medics to the County.



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

13



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Braxton Eggers, Chair

Todd Castle, Vice Chair Emily Greene

Tim Hodges Ronnie Marsh

COUNTY OFFICIALS

Deron T. Geouque County Manager



Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents
June 30, 2025
Independent Auditor's Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Exhibit
A Statement of Net Position
B Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
C Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds and Reconciliation of the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
D-1 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds
D-2 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
E Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget
and Actual - General Fund
F Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund
G Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Proprietary Fund
H Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund
| Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
J Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplemental Financial Data:
Schedule
1 Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability-Law Enforcement
Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust (LEOSSA)
2 Schedule of the Net Pension Liability (LEOSSA)
3 Schedule of County's Contributions (LEOSSA)
4 Schedule of Changes in the OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (OPEB)
5 Schedule of County's Contributions (OPEB)
6 Schedule of Investment Returns (OPEB)
7 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (LGERS)
8 Schedule of County's Contributions (LGERS)
9 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (RODSPF)
10 Schedule of County's Contributions (RODSPF)

030326 BCC Meeting

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
20
21
22

23-63

64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

73



11

12

Schedule

1

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents
June 30, 2025
Schedule of TDA's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (LGERS)

Schedule of TDA's Contributions (LGERS)

Combining and Individual Fund Schedules:

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
General Fund - Budget and Actual

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Capital Projects Fund - Budget and Actual

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Valle Crucis Project School Fund - Budget and Actual

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Opioid Settlement Fund - Budget and Actual

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Hurricane Helene Disaster Fund - Budget and Actual

Combining Balance Sheets - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual:

Federal Equitable Sharing Fund

State Substance Abuse Tax Fund

Emergency Telephone System Fund

Fire District Funds

Occupancy Tax Fund

Representative Payee Fund

Deed of Trust Fund

Fines and Forfeitures Fund

American Rescue Plan Fund

SCIF Project Fund

Processing Plant Project Fund

Emergency 911 Building Project Fund

Opioid Fund - McKinsey Settlement

Solid Waste Fund

Solid Waste Reserve Fund

Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds
Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds
Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Funds

Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Funds

030326 BCC Meeting

74

75

76-80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105



27

28

29-A

29-B

30

Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents
June 30, 2025
Other Schedules:
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-Wide Levy
Secondary Market Disclosures
Ten Largest Taxpayers
Analysis of Current Tax Levy - Fire Districts
Compliance Section:
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for each major Federal Program

and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for each major State programs
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the State Single Audit
Implementation Act.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Corrective Action Plan

Schedule of Prior Year Findings

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

030326 BCC Meeting

106

107

108

109

110

111-112

113-114

115-116

117-118

119

120

121-123



030326 BCC Meeting

C. Randolph CPA, PLLC

Certified Public Accountant
560 Beaver Creek School Rd.
West Jefferson, North Carolina 28694
Phone: (336) 846-3211

Fax: (336) 846-1142

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Watauga County, North Carolina

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Watauga County, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30,
2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Watauga County’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditors, the accompanying financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Watauga County as of June 30, 2025,
and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of AppalCART, which represent 54 percent, 53 percent, and 55
percent of the assets, net position, and revenues, respectively, of the aggregate discretely presented
component units as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included
for AppalCART, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of Watauga County and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
The financial statements of Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority were not audited in
accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

Responsibilities of Management for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raises substantial doubt about Watauga County’s ability to
continue as a going concern for the twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



030326 BCC Meeting

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Governmental Auditing
Standards will always detect a material statement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Governmental Auditing Standards we:

e exercised professional judgement and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsible to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Watauga County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Watauga County’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11, the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System
Schedules of the County’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and County Contributions on pages
70 through 71, the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System Schedules of the Watauga County
District U Tourism Development Authority’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and County
Authority’s Contributions on pages 74 through 75, and the Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund
schedules of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and County Contributions on
pages 72 through 73, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Separation Allowance schedules of the Changes in
Total Pension Liability and Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll on pages 64 through
66, the Other Postemployment Benefits schedules of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related
Ratios, County Contributions, and Investment Returns on pages 67 through 69, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consist of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.



030326 BCC Meeting

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Watauga County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and component unit schedules, as well as the
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the
procedures performed as described above, and the report of other auditors the combining and individual
fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, component unit schedules, and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 30,
2026, on our consideration of Watauga County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of Watauga County’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Watauga
County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

O Rudolph CFA PULC

West Jefferson, North Carolina
January 30, 2026

20



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Watauga County

Year Ended June 30, 2025

As management of Watauga County, we offer readers of Watauga County’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. We encourage users to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information we have furnished in the County's financial statements and
notes which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

o The assets and deferred outflows of the County exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the fiscal
year by $290,331,310.

e The County’s total net position increased by $13,803,412 primarily due to an increase in revenues, particularly
property tax, exceeding budget coupled with operating expenditures below expected levels.

e The County’s unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $57,511,262 at the end of the year, representing
59% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of $2,220,989 in unassigned fund balance over the
previous year.

e Total principal payments for the fiscal year totaled $6,570,000 decreased outstanding debt.

e The County:

o  Continued construction of a new Valle Crucis school

o Continued a Tower project to enhance emergency communications
o Finished construction of a new parking deck

o Continued construction of a new 911 emergency facility

o S&P Global Ratings reaffirmed the County’s credit rating at AA and the County’s financial stability.

e For the eighth year, the County was able to allocate funds to the Capital Projects Fund as part of the original budget
ordinance denoting a continued rebound from the recession.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Watauga County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components, 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

The basic financial statements present two different views of the County's finances through the use of government-wide
statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Watauga County.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
———————————
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Govemment-wide Fund MNotes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
H H H Summary Detail
Basic Financial Statements :

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

21



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The next statements (Exhibits C through J) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There
are four parts to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental fund statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements 3)
the proprietary fund statements and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next sections of the basic financial statements are the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of
the data contained in those statements. Directly following the notes is the supplemental information. This section first contains
required supplemental information about the County's pension plans and the other postemployment benefits plan, followed by
additional supplemental information. This supplemental information is provided to show details about the County’s individual
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s finances,
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-
term information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how the net position has changed. Net position is the
difference between the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

Government-wide financial statements may be divided into as many as three categories: 1) governmental activities, 2) business-
type activities, and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as public
safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these
activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. This includes solid waste
services offered by Watauga County. The final category is the component units. AppalCART is a separate governmental entity,
which operates a transportation authority in Watauga County. Watauga County Board of Commissioners appoints the eight
member governing body. Watauga County provides some financial support and AppalCART is financially accountable to the
County. The Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority (TDA) is a separate governmental entity created to
administer occupancy tax funds collected to promote tourism in the County. The seven voting members of the Authority Board are
appointed by the County Board of Commissioners.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
Watauga County, like all governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-
compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All County
funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s activities are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available
for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting
which focuses on current financial resources. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed
short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County’s
programs. The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted
document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board
about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the
County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when
the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows three columns: 1) the final
budget as amended by the board, 2) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund,

22



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

and 3) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference
between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the
reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County has one proprietary fund, the Solid Waste Fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-like activities in the government-wide financial statements. Watauga County uses
enterprise funds to account for its solid waste operations. This fund is the same as those separate activities shown in the
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the government.
Watauga County has eight fiduciary funds, two of which are pension trust funds and the other six are agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 23 of this
report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required
supplementary information concerning Watauga County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees and other postemployment benefits. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 64 of this
report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Watauga County’s Net Position

Figure 2
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 155,175,152 $ 162,817,310 $ 8,069,913 $ 9,018,309 $ 163,245,065 $ 171,835,619
Capital assets, net 197,628,227 175,261,964 8,079,157 6,705,248 205,707,384 181,967,212

Total Assets 352,803,379 338,079,274 16,149,070 15,723,557 368,952,449 353,802,831
Total Deferred Outflows 6,507,819 7,495,753 562,687 670,191 7,070,506 8,165,944
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 18,680,625 14,943,005 490,235 628,619 19,170,860 15,571,624
Other liabilities 62,351,999 66,110,332 1,989,717 1,812,096 64,341,716 67,922,428

Total Liabilities 81,032,624 81,053,337 2,479,952 2,440,715 83,512,576 83,494,052
Total Deferred Inflows 2,061,221 1,480,447 117,848 75,197 2,179,069 1,655,644
Net Position:
Net investments in capital assets 144,912,377 129,353,105 7,980,233 6,699,540 152,892,610 136,052,645
Restricted 41,378,375 45,949,218 - - 41,378,375 45,949,218
Unrestricted 89,926,601 87,738,920 6,133,724 7,178,296 96,060,325 94,917,216

Total Net Position $ 276,217,353 $ 263,041,243 $ 14,113,957 $ 13,877,836 $ 290,331,310 $ 276,919,079

23



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The assets of the
County exceeded liabilities by $290,331,310 at June 30, 2025. The County’s net position increased by a total of $13,803,412 for
the fiscal year. Net position is reported in three categories: Net investment in capital assets of $152,892,610 restricted net
position of $41,378,375; and unrestricted net position of $96,060,325.

The net investment in capital assets is defined as the County's investment in County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
automotive equipment, office and other equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
The County uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding debt, the resources needed to repay that
debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. At June 30, 2025,
the increase in this category of net position correlates to reduced outstanding debt along with increased capital assets.

Another category of net position is restricted net position. This represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The County has restricted assets due to statutory requirements for Register of Deeds Automation
Enhancement Funds, Health Services, Public Safety, Education, General Government, Register of Deeds Pension Plan, and
Stabilization by State Statutes. Special revenues funds and Register of Deeds pension assets account for the balance of the
restricted net position.

The final category of net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. Several particular aspects of the County's financial operations affected the reporting of total
unrestricted net position:

e Close monitoring of expenditures
e High property tax collection rate

24



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Watauga County Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 5,280,674 $ 5,452,228 $ 7,776,306 $ 6,942,329 $ 13,056,980 $ 12,394,557
Operating grants and contributions 8,950,473 5,554,490 164,477 171,327 9,114,950 5,725,817
Capital grants and contributions 1,216,344 5,205,304 - - 1,216,344 5,205,304
General Revenues: -
Property taxes 51,920,314 50,440,018 - - 51,920,314 50,440,018
Other taxes 25,903,923 26,574,296 - - 25,903,923 26,574,296
Grants and contributions not - - - -
restricted 6,522,949 6,543,765 - - 6,522,949 6,543,765
Miscellaneous 482,064 631,723 75,723 112,055 557,787 743,778
Investment earnings 6,051,418 7,320,606 331,440 358,982 6,051,418 7,679,588
Total Revenues 106,328,159 107,722,430 8,347,946 7,584,693 114,676,105 115,307,123
Expenses:
General government 24,966,277 15,775,079 - - 24,966,277 15,775,079
Public safety 23,740,835 22,741,912 - - 23,740,835 22,741,912
Transportation 265,221 272,481 - - 265,221 272,481
Economic and physical development 4,321,990 5,151,083 - - 4,321,990 5,151,083
Environmental protection 560,932 620,372 - - 560,932 620,372
Human services 10,251,688 9,444,808 - - 10,251,688 9,444,808
Cultural and recreation 4,204,435 4,017,770 - - 4,204,435 4,017,770
Education 22,203,312 17,549,001 - - 22,203,312 17,549,001
Interest on long-term debt 2,272,950 2,490,596 - - 2,272,950 2,490,596
Solid waste - - 8,085,053 6,843,037 8,085,053 6,843,037
Total Expenses 92,787,640 78,063,102 8,085,053 6,843,037 100,872,693 84,906,139
Increase in net position 13,540,519 29,659,328 262,893 741,656 13,803,412 30,400,984
Net position, beginning 263,041,243 229,470,969 13,877,836 13,136,180 276,919,079 242,607,149
Zcri;’;upni:]‘;dparﬁjgis;ge”t - change in (364,409) 3,910,946 (26,772) - (391,181) ;
Net Position, beginning, restated 262,676,834 233,381,915 13,851,064 13,136,180 276,527,898 246,518,095
Net position, ending $ 276,217,353 $ 263,041,243 $ 14,113,957 § 13,877,836 $ 290,331,310 $§ 276,919,079

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $13,540,519, thereby accounting for
98% of the total growth in the net position of Watauga County. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e Sales tax remaining stable due to the improved economic factors particularly in the tourism industry, resulted in revenues
above projection;

e Continued high property tax collections at a rate of 98.57% for the current fiscal year;

e Close monitoring of expenditures throughout the year with actual expenditures below budget.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased Watauga County’s net position by $262,893, 2%. Key elements of
this increase are as follows:

25



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e Revenues for tipping fees were above projections due to a strong market;
¢ Close monitoring of expenditures throughout the year with actual expenditures below budget.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

Watauga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and accounting
requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of Watauga County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.
Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund increased to $57,511,262 while total fund balance increased to $79,024,854. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 59.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 81.3
percent of that same amount.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally,
budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once more exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from
external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain
services.

The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were $3,106,657 more than the budgeted amount. Actual operating
expenses were less than budgeted by $19,283,870. A significant driving factor in expenditures being below budget is due to the
ongoing capital projects, including Emergency Management expansion.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County's proprietary fund is used to provide information on the solid waste enterprise. Unrestricted
net position of the Solid Waste Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $6,133,724. The total increase in proprietary net
position was $262,893.

26



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: Watauga County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30,
2025, totals $205,615,188 (net of depreciation). These assets include construction in progress, buildings, land, equipment,
improvements, and vehicles. Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

e Purchased new vehicles and numerous pieces of equipment for County governmental departments;
e  Continued construction of new Valle Crucis school;

e Continued a Tower project to enhance emergency communications;

e Finished construction of a parking deck

e Continued construction of a new 911 Emergency Building

Watauga County's Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Figure 4
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Land $ 27,407,833 $ 27,400,033 $ 1,100,815 $ 1,100,815 $ 28,508,648 $ 28,500,848
Buildings 103,777,641 101,082,772 4,596,780 2,607,536 108,374,421 103,690,308
Other improvements 3,082,902 2,953,471 692,600 777,967 3,775,502 3,731,438
Leasehold improvements 4,473,563 4,722,577 4,563 4,811 4,478,126 4,727,388
Equipment 1,586,629 1,800,893 847,356 675,197 2,433,985 2,476,090
Vehicles 1,125,779 983,106 738,298 334,558 1,864,077 1,317,664
Construction in progress 56,121,050 36,266,282 6,549 1,204,364 56,127,599 37,470,646
Intangible assets 52,830 52,830 - - 52,830 52,830

Total $ 197,628,227 $ 175,261,964 $ 7,986,961 $ 6,705,248 $ 205,615,188 $ 181,967,212

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 3.A.6 of this report.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2025, Watauga County had no bonded debt outstanding or authorized.

Watauga County's Outstanding Debt

Figure 5
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Net pension liability (LGERS) $ 9,781,529 $ 9,887,070 $ 932,084 $ 942,141 $ 10,713,613 $ 10,829,211
Total pension liability (LEOSSA) 862,049 447,537 - - 862,049 447,537
Total OPEB liability (RIAP) 3,529,806 1,951,766 336,356 185,984 3,866,162 2,137,750
Compensated absences 1,701,471 1,627,126 176,320 142,221 1,877,791 1,769,347
g‘;‘;?;dc'::t:ﬁ” closure and post - - 495 461 495 461 495 461 495,461
Leases - - 98,924 122,498 98,924 122,498
Premium on lobs 3,466,535 3,731,270 - - 3,466,535 3,731,270
Premoim on direct refunding 429,315 572,420 - - 429,315 572,420
Direct placement installment 49,715,478 55,390,000 - - 49,715,478 55,390,000

Total $ 69,486,183  $ 73,607,189 $ 2,039,145 $ 1,888,305 $ 71,525,328 $ 75,495,494

Watauga County's General Fund direct installment notes decreased by $6,570,000 during the past fiscal year due to scheduled
debt service payments and increased $895,478 for a cash flow loan related to Hurricane Helene. There is no installment note

27



030326 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

debt associated with the business activities. The State of North Carolina limits the amount of debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries less outstanding
debt principal. The legal debt margin for Watauga County as of June 30, 2025 is $1,122,575,787. Additional information
regarding Watauga County's long-term debt can be found in Note 3.B.6.b of this report.

Economic Factors

The following key economic factors reflect the fiscal environment the County is working in:

- The County’s unemployment rate has remained flat at 3.7 percent at the end of June 2024 to June
2025;

- Appalachian State University provides continued stability to the local economy as a major employer
and source of overall positive economic impact from the student population;

- Investment earnings provided a strong rate of return for the County.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2026

Governmental activities — The County’s property tax rate has been set at 31.8 cents per $100 in property valuation. Sales tax
revenue is projected to remain in line with fiscal year 2025 budget based on actual results in the previous fiscal year.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund have increased 7 percent. Capital purchases are allocated mainly for vehicles, a new
Valle Crucis School, 911 Emergency Building and continued expansion of emergency service tower operations with other projects
still limited to primarily repairs and maintenance. Funds are allocated to be set aside this year for future capital school projects of
$5,179,550 and $3,872,500 for county projects-mainly funding $1,800,000 for emergency communications, $500,000 for future
maintenance and repairs, $50,000 for economic development, $100,000 for community recreation facilities, $22,500 for potential
flood mitigation, $1,200,000 for future county facilities, $100,000 for law enforcement expansion, $50,000 for library expansion,
and $50,000 to Caldwell Community College.

Businesses-type activities — Budgeted revenues for solid waste service revenues are projected an increase in solid waste and
tipping fees.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Watauga
County Finance Director, 814 West King Street, Suite 216, Boone, NC 28607. The report can also be found on our website
www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx.

28


http://www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)
Due from other governments
Lease receivable - current
Notes receivable - current
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Net pension asset - ROD
Lease receivable - noncurrent
Notes receivable
Right to use leased asset, net of amortization
Capital assets:
Land, intangible, and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total capital assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals
OPEB deferrals

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Debt service due within one year
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals
OPEB deferrals
Unearned revenue
Leases
Prepaid taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State Statute
Register of Deeds' pension plan
Education
General government
Public safety
Health services
Register of Deeds Automation/Enhancement
Unrestricted
Total net position $

Watauga County, North Carolina

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2025

Primary Government

030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit A

Component Units

Watauga County
District U Tourism

Governmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority
114,686,037 $ 7,227,913 $ 121,913,950 $ 4,053,941 § 12,873,184
12,635,963 132,890 12,768,853 - -
5,173,953 620,348 5,794,301 34,672 -
9,542,162 42,037 9,584,199 1,177,759 646,146
258,908 - 258,908 - -
835,512 - 835,512 - -
- 46,725 46,725 56,759 -
- - - 289,463 -
143,132,535 8,069,913 151,202,448 5,612,594 13,519,330
70,400 - 70,400 - -
592,200 - 592,200 - -
11,380,017 - 11,380,017 - -
- 92,196 92,196 192,438 -
83,581,713 1,107,364 84,689,077 1,223,792 697,983
114,046,514 6,879,597 120,926,111 11,642,781 1,308,242
197,628,227 7,986,961 205,615,188 12,866,573 2,006,225
209,670,844 8,079,157 217,750,001 13,059,011 2,006,225
352,803,379 16,149,070 368,952,449 18,671,605 15,525,555
5,948,321 509,372 6,457,693 - 91,746
559,498 53,315 612,813 - -
6,507,819 562,687 7,070,506 - 91,746
8,443,760 407,131 8,850,891 1,472,330 528,135
178,168 - 178,168 2,157 -
1,668,648 33,676 1,702,324 - -
1,255,865 - 1,255,865 - -
7,134,184 49,428 7,183,612 179,161 127,789
18,680,625 490,235 19,170,860 1,653,648 655,924
62,351,999 1,989,717 64,341,716 179,793 159,840
81,032,624 2,479,952 83,512,576 1,833,441 815,764
141,246 13,295 154,541 - 847
1,097,207 104,553 1,201,760 - -
- - - 3,600 -
817,602 - 817,602 - -
5,166 - 5,166 - -
2,061,221 117,848 2,179,069 3,600 847
144,912,377 7,980,233 152,892,610 12,874,630 2,006,225
21,134,893 - 21,134,893 - 646,146
111,563 - 111,563 - -
9,650,519 - 9,650,519 - -
13,805 - 13,805 - -
9,663,045 - 9,663,045 - -
678,833 678,833 - -
125,717 - 125,717 - -
89,926,601 6,133,724 96,060,325 3,959,934 12,148,319
276,217,353 $ 14,113,957 $ 290,331,310 $ 16,834,564 $ 14,800,690

29



o
£
@
Q
=
]
O
]
©
I
®
o
159}
o
069°008'¥L $  p9S'vER'9L $ oleLee’o6e $ LS6'€LL'VL $ ese’llz'9le $ Buipua ‘uonisod 10N
£8€'€69'C1 095'zze'LL 868°/25'9.¢C 90°1G8'El $€8'9/9'29¢ pejejsal se ‘Bujuuibaq ‘uonisod jau [ejo |
(8v9°211) (S00°es) (181716€) (z22°92) (607'79€) jusunsnipe pouad Joud
Le0'LL8'CL G96'GLe L) 6.0'616'9.¢C 9€8°2/8'€L €21 ¥0'€9C Buiuuibag ‘uonisod jau |ejo
10€°20L°'2 (966°28€) Zl'e08'cl £68'292 615°0¥S'El uonisod jeu ui sbuey)
0/8'€vE'y cLl'lz) ¥1.29€'16 €91°.0¥ 1GG'G56'06 senuaAal [eloush |ejo
0L2°LEY - 229°18S 2.0y 0SS°L.S pajou}salun ‘snosue||aosIy
- 061'Se 8v0'LS 1G9'LL (£09'02) sjesse Jo Juswiiedw] 0} anp sso7
261°28¢€ 2es°zol 868°28¢9 ovv'LEE 81¥°150'9 pajoulsalun ‘sbuluies Juswiseu|
- - 6¥6'225'9 - 6762259 swelbolid on10ads 0} pajollsal Jou SUOINGLIUOD pUE Sjuels)
80¥'¥ZS'e - 62£°€V0'S - 62€'€V0'S pue saxe} Jayio
- - ¥65'098°'0C - ¥65'098'02 xe} so|es uopdo [eo07]
- - ¥1€026°LS - ¥1€026°LS asodind |essuab 1oy paine| ‘sexe} Auadold
soexe|
IS8NuUdAal |elausD
(£95'9e2'2) $ - $ - ¢ - ¢ £969¢2°C $ fuoyny Juswdojersq
wsuno| M jousig Auno) ebneepp
(802'51S) $ 9/9'691°L $ 000°08€C $ 088°098°C $ ¥92'926'9 $ 1¥vOleddy
:s)un jusuodwon
(z0e'655°'22) (022'tv1) (zeo'siy'LL) yreole’L $ 0S6'vLL6 $ 086°9S0°€l $ 9/6°/v6°001 $ |ejoL
(0Lzvv1) (02'v¥1) - - L1Y'¥9L 90€'9LL'L €50°'G80'8 d)sem pljos
:sanIAnoe adA)-ssauisng
(2e0'S1¥'22) - (2e0'51¥°22) yre9le’L €.¥'066'8 ¥19°082'G £25°298°26 SONIAIOE [BJUSWUIBAOB [BJO |
(e88'v2) (e88'v2) - - - €88/ S19SSE paxI) JO B|BS U0 SSO
(0s6'222'2) - (0g6'222'2) - - - 0S6°cL2'C 1g9p wis)-buo| uo ses} pue jsaisiu|
(585'988°12) - (585'988°12) 09'9Le 18 - zie'enz'ee uoneonp3
(5e5'v61°2) - (5e5'v61°2) - - 006°600°'C SEV'Y0CT'y |euofjealdoal pue [einyiny
(697°889'G) - (69v'889'G) - 2LL'leS'y Lyy'se 889'L52'0L S80IAI9S UeWNH
(S51G'81) - (515'8¥Y) - LIv'ZLL - 2€6°09S uonosjoud [BJUSWLOIIAUT
(S¥0'2SL'Y) - (G¥0'zS1L'Y) - S¥6'691 - 066°L2€'Y juswdojeasp [eaisAyd pue ojwouoo]
(€28'62) - (sz8'6L) - 86£'G81 - 122'592 uonepodsuel |
(L¥e'sys1e) - (L¥e'spSs12) G86'6Y 626'9€€ ¥.5'808'L Ge8'0vL'eT Kyayes oljand
(088°120'61) $ - $ (088°L20'61) $ 68968 $ GS6°L19°c $ €5.'9zv'L $ 1,2'996'vC $ JusWUISA0B |elausD
10V |EJUBWUIBA0D)
;jJuswutanob Arewrid
Auoyiny 1¥vojeddy lelol SanIAOY SaIAIOY suonnquuo) suonnquuo) EERIIVER sasuadx3y sweiboid/suonouny
juawdojanaqg adA)-ssauisng |ejUBWIUIBA0Y) pue pue Joj sabaeyn
wsunoj sjueio [eyde) sjueug bunesado
nvsia

funo) ebnejepy

spuqn jusuodwo)

JuswiuIdaA0 Aewid

a nayx3

uoilIsod 39N ul sabueyd pue sanuanay (asuadx3) }3aN

sanuaAay weiboid

G20Z ‘0€ dunr papug Jea\ 8y} Jo4
SOIIAIIOY JO JUBWIBeIS
eujjosed yuoN ‘Ayuno) ebnejepy

30



030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit C
Watauga County, North Carolina
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2025
Major Funds Non-Major Funds
Capital Valle Opioid Hurricane Helene Other Total
Projects Crucis Settlement Disaster Governmental Governmental
General Fund Project Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,841,097 $ 31,682,812 $ 11,443,614 $ - 8 -3 - 8 115,967,523
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 125,717 - - 588,269 - 11,921,977 12,635,963
Taxes receivable, net 1,145,182 - - - - 460,565 1,605,747
Lease receivable 851,108 - - - - - 851,108
Due from other governments 8,899,915 - 273,945 - 263,229 105,073 9,542,162
Accounts receivable, net 227,435 - - 3,227,416 - 21,541 3,476,392
Notes receivable 12,215,529 - - - - - 12,215,529
Total assets $ 96,305,983 $ 31,682,812 $ 11,717,559 3,815,685 263,229 $ 12,509,156 $ 156,294,424
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,766,095 $ - % 1,950,316 - 4,929,652 $ 1,079,168 $ 9,725,231
Due to other governments 1,075,690 - - - - 592,958 1,668,648
Unearned revenue 255,865 - - - - 1,000,000 1,255,865
Total liabilities 3,097,650 - 1,950,316 - 4,929,652 2,672,126 12,649,744
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes receivable 1,145,182 - - - - 148,315 1,293,497
Prepaid taxes 5,166 - - - - - 5,166
FEMA disaster recovery - - - - 58,777 - 58,777
Opioid Settlement - - - 3,187,416 - - 3,187,416
Lease receivable 817,602 - - - - - 817,602
Notes receivable 12,215,529 - - - - - 12,215,529
Total deferred inflows of resources 14,183,479 - - 3,187,416 58,777 148,315 17,577,987
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State Statute 21,056,868 - - - - 78,025 21,134,893
Public safety - - - - - 9,663,045 9,663,045
Register of Deeds 125,717 - - - - - 125,717
General government - - - - - 13,805 13,805
Education - - 9,767,243 (116,724) 9,650,519
Health services - - - 628,269 - 50,564 678,833
Committed for:
Capital projects - 31,682,812 - - - - 31,682,812
Assigned for:
Future years' appropriation 297,501 - - - - - 297,501
Nonspendable for:
Leases 33,506 - - - - - 33,506
Unassigned 57,511,262 - - - (4,725,200) - 52,786,062
Total fund balances 79,024,854 31,682,812 9,767,243 628,269 (4,725,200) 9,688,715 126,066,693
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances $ 96,305,983 $ _ 31,682,812 $ 11,717,559 3,815,685 263,229 $ 12,509,156 $ 156,294,424

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) are different because:

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds
Net pension asset - ROD

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are unavailable in the funds - accrued interest taxes receivable

Deferred inflows for notes receivable

Deferred inflows for opioid settlement funds
Deferred inflows for FEMA disaster recovery
Deferred inflows of resources for taxes receivable

Contributions to the pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position

Contributions and administration costs for OPEB are deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position

OPEB related deferrals, net

Pension related deferrals-all plans, net
Net OPERB liability

Net pension liability - LEOSSA

Net pension liability - LGERS

$ 126,066,693
70,400
197,628,227
91,799
12,215,529
3,187,416
58,777
1,293,497
2,709,249
100,704
(638,413)
3,097,826
(3,529,806)
(862,049)
(9,781,529)

Some liabilities, including net pension liabilities, debt related payables and other postemployment benefits, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities

(55,490,967)

$ 276,217,353

31



REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Transportation

Economic and physical development

Environmental protection
Human services
Cultural and recreational
Education
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital assets

Proceeds from State Cash Flow Loan
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Prior period
adjustment/Restatement

Fund balance, beginning, restated

Fund balance, end of year

030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit D-1
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Major Funds Non-Major Funds
Capital Valle Opioid Hurricane Helene Other Total
General Projects Crucis Settlement Disaster Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Project Fund Funds Fund Funds Funds

46,640,180 $ -3 - 8 -3 -3 5,203,135 $ 51,843,315
22,139,896 - - - - 3,764,027 25,903,923
6,522,949 - - - - - 6,522,949
5,374,273 - - 464,229 3,520,352 525,484 9,884,338
848,928 - - - - 44,324 893,252
3,544,077 - - - - 189,283 3,733,360
3,382,748 1,539,212 876,586 - - 252,872 6,051,418
564,138 - - - - - 564,138
3,151,499 - - - - 21,541 3,173,040
92,168,688 1,539,212 876,586 464,229 3,520,352 10,000,666 108,569,733
13,045,213 - - 9,141,030 438,014 22,624,257
20,897,721 - - - - 8,233,161 29,130,882
265,221 - - - - - 265,221
746,745 - - - - 3,570,109 4,316,854
717,986 - - - - - 717,986
8,955,929 - - 646,139 - 190,892 9,792,960
2,947,131 - - - - - 2,947,131
22,203,312 - 17,997,604 - - - 40,200,916
6,570,000 - - - - - 6,570,000
2,400,112 - - - - - 2,400,112
78,749,370 - 17,997,604 646,139 9,141,030 12,432,176 118,966,319
13,419,318 1,539,212 (17,121,018) (181,910) (5,620,678) (2,431,510) (10,396,586)
56,058 - - - - - 56,058

- - - - 895,478 - 895,478
10,594,939 18,658,756 - - - 12,337,307 41,591,002
(18,416,719) (22,932,246) - - - (242,037) (41,591,002)
(7,765,722) (4,273,490) - - 895,478 12,095,270 951,536
5,653,596 (2,734,278) (17,121,018) (181,910) (4,725,200) 9,663,760 (9,445,050)
73,371,258 34,417,090 26,888,261 810,179 - 125,718 135,612,506
- - - - - (100,763) (100,763)
73,371,258 34,417,090 26,888,261 810,179 - 24,955 135,511,743
79,024,854 $ 31,682,812 $ 9,767,243 $ 628,269 $ (4,725,200) $ 9,688,715 $ 126,066,693

32



Watauga County, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized

Sale of assets not fully depreciated

Capital projects terminated CIP

Impairment of assets

Depreciation expense for governmental assets

Contributions to the pension plans in the current fiscal year are not included
on the Statement of Activities.

OPEB benefit payments and administrative costs made in the current fiscal
year are not included on the Statement of Activities.

Benefit payments paid and administrative expense for the LEOSSA in the
current fiscal year are not included on the Statement of Activities.

Expenses reported on fund statements that are capitalized on government-
wide statements - refunding costs

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not recorded as revenues in the funds

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Change in unavailable revenue for opioid settlement funds

FEMA disaster recovery

Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

OPEB plan expense

Pension expense-LGERS and ROD

Compensated absences

Pension expense-LEOSSA

Amortization of bond premiums

Combined adjustment

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments on long term debt

Issuance of long-term debt

Change in accrued interest payable

Total changes in net position of governmental activities

26,820,310

(5,474)
125,918

(20,603)

(4,427,970)

(1,910,512)

(371,383)
(58,777)
68,666

(2,375,226)
(3,300,805)
(74,345)
(127,433)
407,840

6,570,000
(895,478)
28,508

$

$

030326 BCC Meeting
Exhibit D-2

(9,445,050)

22,492,181
2,514,899

100,704

194,350

(277,620)

(1,910,512)

(361,494)

(5,469,969)

5,703,030

13,540,519

33



Watauga County, North Carolina

030326 BCC Meeting

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Human services
Cultural and recreation
Education
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other charges
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Fund balance appropriated
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

General Fund

Exhibit E

Budget

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget-
45,368,982 $ 45,407,982 $ 46,640,180 $ 1,232,198
22,170,300 22,172,800 22,139,896 (32,904)
4,843,529 5,679,229 6,522,949 843,720
4,960,882 7,507,954 5,374,273 (2,133,681)
796,439 796,439 848,928 52,489
3,203,926 3,203,926 3,544,077 340,151
151,000 151,000 3,382,748 3,231,748
30,500 30,500 564,138 533,638
1,432,497 4,112,201 3,151,499 (960,702)
82,958,055 89,062,031 92,168,688 3,106,657
11,824,526 17,828,686 13,045,213 4,783,473
20,722,173 31,112,820 20,897,721 10,215,099
79,820 265,221 265,221 -
739,395 938,759 746,745 192,014
549,183 1,685,907 717,986 867,921
10,245,765 10,699,950 8,955,929 1,744,021
3,218,937 3,329,838 2,947,131 382,707
17,944,947 23,299,947 22,203,312 1,096,635
6,572,000 6,572,000 6,570,000 2,000
2,400,112 2,400,112 2,400,112 -
74,296,858 98,033,240 78,749,370 19,283,870
8,661,197 (8,971,209) 13,419,318 22,390,527
10,000 10,000 56,058 46,058
3,119,939 10,594,939 10,594,939 -
(11,841,136) (18,416,719) (18,416,719) -
50,000 16,782,989 - (16,782,989)
(8,661,197) 8,971,209 (7,765,722) (16,736,931)
-3 - $ 5,653,596 $ 5,653,596

73,371,258
$ 79,024,854

34



Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2025

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Prepaid expense
Due from other governments

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total capital assets
Right to use leased asset, net of amortization
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB deferrals
Pension deferrals
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued compensated absences - current
Due to other governments
Leases - current
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Accrued landfill post closure and closure costs - noncurrent
Leases
Accrued compensated absences
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB deferrals
Pension deferrals
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit F

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

$ 7,227,913
132,890

620,348

46,725

42,037

8,069,913

1,107,364
6,879,597

7,986,961

92,196

16,149,070

53,315
509,372

562,687

407,131
36,990
33,676
12,438

490,235

932,084
336,356
495,461

86,486
139,330

1,989,717

2,479,952

104,553
13,295

117,848

7,980,233
6,133,724

$ 14,113,957

35



Watauga County, North Carolina

030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit G

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Sale of recycled materials

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Landfill operations

Recycling operations
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Interest and investment revenue
Insurance proceeds
Miscellaneous revenues
Gain on disposal of assets
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Total nonoperating revenues
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning
Prior period adjustment

Total net position, beginning, as restated

Total net position, ending

Proprietary Fund

$

$

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

7,429,966
346,340

7,776,306

7,490,799
122,619
471,635

8,085,053

(308,747)

331,440
747
3,325
71,651
164,477

571,640

262,893

13,877,836
(26,772)

13,851,064

14,113,957

36



Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Principal paid on long-term debt
Miscellaneous revenues

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds received from sale of fixed assets

Insurance proceeds

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources:

Change in deferred outflow of resources - pensions
Change in deferred inflow of resources - OPEB
Change in deferred outflows of resources - OPEB

Change in net pension liability
Change in net OPERB liability

Change in deferred inflow of resources - pensions

Change in accounts receivable
Increase in accrued interest
Change in accounts payable

Change in accrued compensated absences

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

030326 BCC Meeting
Exhibit H

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

$ 7,739,468
(5,406,690)
(2,032,383)

300,395

163,288
(12,025)
3,325

154,588

71,651
747
(1,740,003)

(1,667,605)

331,440

331,440

(881,182)

8,241,985

$ 7,360,803

$ (308,747)

471,635

77,567
36,431
29,937

(10,057)
150,372
6,220

(36,838)
6

(150,230)
34,099

609,142

$ 300,395

37



Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2025

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net position:
Assets held in trust for postemployment benefits other than pensions
Assets held in trust for law enforcement officers' special separation allowance
benefits
Individuals, organizations and other governments
Total fiduciary net position

030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit |

Irrevocable
Trust Custodial
Funds Funds
$ 5452287 $ 395
5,452,287 395
4,175,615 -
1,276,672 -
- 395
$ 5452287 $ 395

38



030326 BCC Meeting

Exhibit J
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Irrevocable
Trust Custodial
Funds Funds
Additions:
Employer contributions $ 807,163 $ -
Interest earned 207,369 -
Ad valorem taxes collected for other governments - 10,449,397
Collections on behalf of inmates - 147,590
Total additions 1,014,532 10,596,987
Deductions:
Benefits 143,169 -
Administrative expense 26,000 -
Tax distributions to other governments - 10,486,746
Payment on behalf of inmates - 144,479
Total deductions 169,169 10,631,225
Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position 845,363 (34,238)
Net position - beginning 4,606,924 34,633
Net position - ending $ 5,452,287 $ 395

39



Note 1 -

030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accounting policies of Watauga County and its component units conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more
significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity:

The County, which is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners, is one of the 100 counties
established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statue 153A-10. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County and its component
units, legally-separate entities for which the County is financially accountable. The discretely
presented component units presented below are reported in separate columns in the County’s
combined financial statements in order to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.

AppalCART

AppalCART operates mainly in Watauga County in the northwest part of North Carolina, providing
transportation services to the various areas and residents within Watauga County. Watauga County’s
Board of Commissioners appoints the eight member governing board of AppalCART and AppalCART
operates within the County’s boundaries for the benefit of the County’s residents. The County
provides some financial support to AppalCART, but it is not responsible for the debts of AppalCART
except when such are expressly granted by statute or by the consent of the Board of Commissioners
of Watauga County. The Board of Commissioners of Watauga County has the authority to terminate
the existence of AppalCART at any time, provided a 60-day written notice is given to AppalCART,
and all property and assets of AppalCART shall automatically become the property of Watauga
County and the County shall succeed to all rights, obligations and liabilities of AppalCART.
AppalCART designates its own management, approves its own budget, and maintains its own
accounting system; however, AppalCART is fiscally accountable to Watauga County and the County
has the authority to examine all records and accounts at any time. AppalCART, which has a June 30
year-end, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements may be
obtained from the entity’s administrative offices at AppalCART, 305 Hwy 105 Bypass, Boone, NC
28607.

Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority

The North Carolina General Legislation enacted a law which authorized Watauga County to levy a
room occupancy tax; and the Watauga County Commissioners adopted a resolution levying this tax
and created the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority. The Authority operates
within Watauga County’s boundaries for the promotion and development of tourism, and the County
provides room occupancy tax proceeds as their main source of revenue to the Authority, but the
County is not responsible for the debts and is not entitled to the surpluses of the Authority. The
Watauga County’s Board of Commissioners appoints the seven voting members of the Authority. The
Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority has a June 30 year end and is presented
as if it is a governmental fund. Complete financial statements may be obtained from the entity’s
administrative offices at Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority, 171 Grand Blvd,
Boone, NC 28607.

Basis of Presentation — Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus — Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements: The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Activities
display information about the primary government (the County) and its component units. These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange

40



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations
that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program
revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered by the
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund — This is a capital projects fund. It accounts for the County’s reserves set aside
for future capital needs.

Valle Crucis School Project Fund — This is a project fund to account for the new Valle Crucis School
project.

Opioid Settlement Fund — This fund reports revenues for amounts paid by a number of corporations
to settle various opioid lawsuits. These amounts are restricted to be spent for certain opioid
abatement and remediation activities.

Hurricane Helene Disaster Fund — This is a project fund to account for the revenues and expenditures
related to Hurricane Helene.

The County reports the following major enterprise fund:

Solid Waste Fund — This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and development of the
County’s transfer and disposal sites.

The County reports the following other fund types:

Pension Trust Funds — The County maintains two pension trust funds — the Other Post-Employment
Benefits Fund and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Fund. Pension trust
funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries
of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, or other postemployment benefit plans.
The Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Irrevocable Trust Fund accounts for the County’s
contributions for healthcare coverage provided to qualified retirees. The LEO Special Separation
Allowance (LEOSSA) Irrevocable Trust Fund accounts for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance, a single-employer, public employee retirement system. The resources in the
LEO Special Separation Allowance Fund have been set aside to pay future obligations of the LEO
Special Separation Allowance.

Custodial Funds — Custodial funds are used to report fiduciary activities that are not required to be
reporting in pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, investment trust funds, or private-

41



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

purpose trust funds. Custodial funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of
others that meet certain criteria. The County maintains the following custodial funds: the Municipal
Tax Fund, which accounts for ad valorem and vehicle property taxes that are billed and collected by
the County, and the Jail Inmate Commissary Fund, which holds cash collections for the benefit of
inmates from their friends and families.

Non-major Funds — The County maintains fourteen legally budgeted non-major funds. The Federal
Equitable Sharing Fund, the State Substance Abuse Tax Fund, the Emergency Telephone System
Fund, the Fire Districts Funds, the Occupancy Tax Fund, Emergency 911 Building Project Fund, the
Representative Payee Fund, the Fines and Forfeitures Fund, the Processing Plant Project fund,
American Rescue Plan Grant Fund, the Deed of Trust Fund, the Opioid McKinney Settlement Fund,
the Solid Waste Reserve Fund and the SCIF Project Fund are all reported as non-major special
revenue funds.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statures, all funds of the County are maintained during
the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The
government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from provided services and producing and delivering goods
in connecting with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims
and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end,
except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the
amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor
vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the current year. As of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the
assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective

42



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the
property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts.
Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year
in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013
and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are
offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilities franchise tax, collected and held
by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental
revenues, and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable until received in cash. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, are
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Expenditure driven grants are
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant
requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net positions available to finance the
program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs,
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

. Budgetary Data

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statues. An annual
budget is adopted for the General Fund, the Capital Project Fund, the Federal Equitable Sharing, the
State Substance Abuse Tax, the Emergency Telephone System, Fire Districts, Occupancy Tax,
Representative Payee, Fines, Opioid Funds and Forfeitures and Deed of Trust Special Revenue
Funds, and Enterprise Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Project
ordinances are adopted for the 911 Emergency Building Project fund, the Processing Plant Project
Fund, the Valle Crucis School Project, the SCIF Project fund and the ARP Project fund. All budgets
are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for the
multi-year funds. The budget officer is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriation
within a fund not to exceed 10% of the total departmental appropriation of the department whose
allocation is reduced; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the governing board. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were
necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board
must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County, AppalCART and the Watauga County District U Tourism Development
Authority are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by G.S.
159-31. The County, AppalCART and the Authority may designate, as an official depository, any bank
or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County,
AppalCART and the Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW
accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30 (c)] authorizes the County, AppalCART and the Authority to invest in
obligations of the United States of obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the
United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local
government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high
quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust (NCCMT).

The County, AppalCART and the Authority’s investments are carried at fair value as determined by
quoted market prices. The North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT), which consists of two
SEC-registered funds, is authorized by G.S. 159-30(c)(8). One of these funds, the Government

43



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Portfolio, is a 2a-7 fund which invests in treasuries and government agencies and is rated AAAm by
S&P and AAmf by Moody Investor Services. The Government Portfolio is reported at fair value.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools money from several funds, except the OPEB Irrevocable Trust Fund, the LEOSSA
Irrevocable Trust Fund, the DSS Trust Fund, and the Inmate Commissary Fund, to facilitate
disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and
investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The
County, AppalCART and the Authority consider demand deposits and investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are not limited as to use, to be cash or cash
equivalents.

2. Restricted Cash

Money for the Register of Deeds Automation Enhancement Fund is restricted by NC General Statute
161-50 to pay for computer equipment and technology needs for the Register of Deeds’ office.
Federal regulations require equitable sharing funds be used for approved law enforcement needs.
State substance abuse tax receipts are restricted to law enforcement needs. Emergency Telephone
Systems funds are restricted per NC General Statute 62A-46. Occupancy tax revenues are restricted
for disbursement to the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority. Taxes collected
on behalf of the fire districts are restricted as payable to the districts. The SCIF Project Fund is
restricted to eligible projects. Opioid Settlement Funds are restricted to approved eligible
expenditures.

Watauga County Restricted Cash

General Fund Register of Deeds $ 125,717
Federal Equitable Sharing Fund Law enforcement 127,835
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund Law enforcement 39,342
Emergency Telephone Fund 911 eligible expenditures 144,864
Occupancy Tax Fund Tourism 261,561
Representative payee Human senvices 27,007
Deed of trust General government 12,235
Fines and forfeitures School board 6,912
911 Emergency Project fund 911 building 10,369,536
SCIF Project Fund Maintenance of buildings and parking 13,930
decks/lots
Processing plant Environmental protection 890,999
Opioid Settlement Fund Opioid eligible expenses 588,269
Opioid McKinney Settlement Fund  Opioid eligible expenses 27,756
Total Governmental Activities $ 12,635,963
Enterprise Fund -
Capital Reserve Required by NCDEQ $ 132,890

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State Law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes
on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due
on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following January
6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2024.

3. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were
written off in prior years.

44



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

4. Lease Receivable

The County’s lease receivable is measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be
received during the lease term. There are no variable components under the lease agreement. A
deferred inflow of resources is recorded for the lease. The deferred inflow of resources is recorded at
the initiation of the lease in an amount equal to the initial recording of the lease receivable. The
deferred inflow of resources is amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

5. Inventory

The inventories of AppalCART are maintained for fuel oil, tires, and vehicle parts; valuation is at last
in first out (LIFO) basis. The cost of the inventory of AppalCART is recorded as an expense when
consumed.

6. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets received prior to July 1, 2015, are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Donated capital assets received July 1, 2015, are recorded at their acquisition value.
Minimum capitalization is $5,000 for all governmental fund assets. On July 1, 1989, the County
established the Solid Waste Fund to account for the operations of the landfill. At this time, all landfill
assets were transferred to this fund at original cost less accumulated depreciation from date of
purchase. Property, plant, and equipment acquired after July 1, 1989, are recorded at original cost at
time of acquisition. After July 1, 2002, the Fund’s minimum capitalization cost is $5,000. Prior to July
1, 2002, the Fund did not have a minimum capitalization cost. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to a Watauga County Board of Education property that has not been included
in capital assets. The property has been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase
financing. Lease agreements between the County and the Board of Education give the Board of
Education full use of Mabel School, full responsibility for maintenance of the facility, and stipulate the
County will convey title back to the Board of Education once all restrictions of the financing
agreements have been met. The property is reflected as a capital asset in the financial statements of
the Watauga County Board of Education.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives:

Years
Buildings 10 to 50
Leasehold improvements 10 to 50
Other improvements 810 99
Furniture and equipment 510 20
Vehicles and motorized equipment 5

Capital assets of the AppalCART are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as
follows:

Years
Furniture and equipment 5to 12
Communications equipment 6
Security and surveillance equipment 7
Maintenance equipment and fixtures 12
Vehicles 8to 14
Land improvements 10
Buildings 40-50

Capital assets of the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority are depreciated over
their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:
Years
Building and improvements 10-50

45



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

7. Right to use assets

The County has recorded right to use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB 87. The right
to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related
lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus
ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right to use assets are amortized on
a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.

AppalCART’s capital assets also include certain right-to-use assets. These right-to-use assets arise
in association with agreements where AppalCART reports a lease (only applies when AppalCART is
the lessee) and agreements where AppalCART reports an Information Technology (IT) subscription
in accordance with the requirements of GASB 87 and GASB 96, respectively.

AppalCART’s right-to-use lease assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial
measurement of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made at or prior to the start of
the lease term, less lease incentives received from the lessor at or prior to the start of the lease
term, plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease asset into service. The right-to-use lease
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.

AppalCART’s right-to-use IT subscription assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the
initial measurement of the subscription liability plus any subscription payments made at the start of
the lease subscription term, if applicable, plus capitalizable initial implementation costs at the start
of the subscription term, less any incentives received from the IT subscription vendor at the start of
the subscription term. Subscription payments, as well as payments for capitalizable implementation
costs made before the start of the subscription term should be reported as a prepayment (asset).
Such prepayments should be reduced by any incentives received from the same vendor before the
start of the subscription term if a right of offset exists. The net amount of the prepayments and
incentives should be reported as an asset or liability, as appropriate, before the start of the
subscription term at which time the amount should be included in the initial measurement of the 18
subscription asset. The right-to-use subscription assets should be amortized on a straight-line basis
over the subscription term.

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The County has the following items that meet
this criterion — pension related deferrals and OPEB deferrals. In addition to liabilities, the statement of
financial position can also report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The County has the
following items that meet the criterion for this category — prepaid taxes, FEMA disaster recovery,
taxes receivable, notes receivable, leases, OPEB deferrals and pension related deferrals.

9. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities on the Statement
of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs
are expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred. In fund financial statements,
governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt

46



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs whether withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received or not, are reported as debt service expenditures.

10. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County and AppalCART provide for the accumulation of up to thirty day
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. An expense and a liability for
compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned in the
County’s government-wide, proprietary fund and AppalCART statements. The vacation policy of the
Authority provides for the accumulation of up to fifteen days earned vacation leave with such leave
being fully vested when earned. On the Authority’s government-wide statement, an expense and
liability for compensated absences and salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The sick leave policies of the County, the Authority, and AppalCART provide for an unlimited
accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated
at the time of retirement with the County and the Authority may be used in the determination of length
of service for retirement benefit purposes. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 101 for the
County, Authority and AppalCart’s government-wide funds, an expense and liability for sick leave is
recognized using the “practical expedient approach” allowed by the Standard for the portion of sick
leave expected to be used and paid by the County.

11. Subscriptions
For the year ended June 30, 2025, AppalCART implemented the requirements of GASB Statement

No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (Subscriptions). The Statement
provides a definition of Subscriptions and provides uniform guidance for accounting and financial
reporting for such transactions. The guidance will decrease diversity in the accounting and financial
reporting for these transactions, thereby, increasing comparability in financial reporting among
governments. Further, the reporting of a subscription asset (a right-to-use intangible capital asset)
and a subscription liability will enhance the relevance and reliability of the financial statements.

During the current year AppalCART entered into a new subscription for accounting software. The
term of the agreement is five years. The Subscription does not have a stated interest rate.
Accordingly, AppalCART’s estimated incremental borrowing rate of 4.90% was used to discount the
subscription payments. The initial liability for the subscription was $68,350. The liability balance
remaining at June 30, 2025 was $27,943.

During the current year AppalCART entered into a new subscription for transit software that aids in
real time passenger information and route planning. The term of the agreement is five years. The
Subscription does not have a stated interest rate. Accordingly, AppalCART’s estimated incremental
borrowing rate of 4.90% was used to discount the subscription payments. The initial liability for the
subscription was $251,711. The liability balance remaining at June 30, 2025 was $150,798.

During the current year AppalCART entered into a new subscription for a human resources software.
The term of the agreement is three years. The Subscription does not have a stated interest rate.
Accordingly, AppalCART’s estimated incremental borrowing rate of 4.87% was used to discount the
subscription payments. The initial liability for the subscription was $14,859. The liability balance
remaining at June 30, 2025 was $5,640.

Accrued interest related to all IT subscription-based agreements was $2,157 at June 30, 2025.

The future minimum subscription obligations and the net present value of the minimum payments at
June 30, 2025, were as follows:

47



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2026 $ 66,731 $ 8,864 $ 75,595
2027 64,976 5,710 70,686
2028 52,674 2,565 55,239
2029 - - -
2030 - - -
Total $ 184,381 $ 17,139 $ 201,520

12. Opioid Settlement Funds

In April 2022, drug manufacturer Johnson & Johnson, and three drug distributors, McKesson,
AmerisourceBergen, and Cardinal Health, finalized a $26 billion-dollar nationwide settlement related
to multiple opioid lawsuits. These funds will be disbursed to each participating state over an 18-year
period according to an allocation agreement reached with all participating states. The majority of
these funds are intended for opioid abatement and the distribution of the funds will be front loaded.
North Carolina’s Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the state and local governments for the
settlement funds allocates the funds as follows: « 15% directly to the State (“State Abatement Fund”) «
80% to abatement funds established by Local Governments (“Local Abatement Funds”) « 5% to a
County Incentive Fund. The County received $464,229 as part of this settlement in Fiscal Year 2025.
Per the terms of the MOA, the County created a special revenue fund, the Opioid Settlement Fund, to
account for these funds. All funds are to be used for opioid abatement and remediation activities.
Funds are restricted until expended. $1,058,434 in funds have been expended as of June 30th, 2025.
The MOA offered the County two options of expending the funds. The County opted for Option A,
which allows the County to fund one or more high-impact strategies from a list of evidence-based
strategies to combat the opioid epidemic.

13. Reimbursements for Pandemic-related Expenditures

In FY 2020/21, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) established the Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds to support urgent COVID-19 response efforts and replace lost revenue for the
eligible state, local, territorial, and tribal governments. The County was allocated $10,911,724 of fiscal
recovery funds to be paid in two equal installments. The first installment of $5,455,862 was received
in July 2021. The second installment will be received in July 2022. County staff and the Board of
Commissioners elected to use $7,750,000 for Broadband and $3,125,179 for revenue replacement.
Revenue replacement funds were transferred to the General Fund. The funds were fully expended
as of June 30, 2025.

14. Net Positions/Fund Balances

Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents
constraints on resources that are either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through State statutes.

Fund Balances
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

48



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Leases — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the
year-end balance of the lease receivable in excess of the deferred inflow of resources for the
lease receivable, which is not a spendable resource.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes revenue sources that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed or imposed by law. The County has the following restricted items:

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute — North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of
government from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several
statutes enacted by the North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930’s that were designed to
improve and maintain the fiscal health of local government units. Restricted by State statute
(RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds. The
calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a formula for determining what portion of fund balance
is available for appropriation. The amount of fund balance not available for appropriation is
what is known as “restricted by State statute”. Appropriated fund balance in any fund shall not
exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures stand at the close of the fiscal
year next preceding the budget. Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon
which a restriction is “imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.” RSS is reduced by inventories and prepaids as they are classified as
nonspendable. Outstanding Encumbrances are included within RSS. RSS is included as a
component of Restricted Net position and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance
sheet.

Restricted for Register of Deeds — portion of fund balance restricted by revenue source for
automation and technology enhancements in the Register of Deeds’ office [G.S. 161-11.3].

Restricted for Public Safety — portion of fund balance representing the aggregate of net
positions for three special revenue funds: the Emergency Telephone System Fund, the State
Substance Abuse Tax Fund, and the Federal Equitable Sharing Fund.

Restricted for Health Services — portion of fund balance that can only be used to benefit
beneficiaries under the Social Security’s Representative Payee Program and the Opioid
Settlement Fund.

Restricted for Education — portion of fund balance that is restricted for the Watauga County
Board of Education.

Restricted for Register of Deeds — portion of fund balance that is restricted for the Register of
Deeds pension plan.

Restricted for General Government — portion of fund balance that is restricted for
expenditures for building improvements through the SCIF grant.

Committed Fund Balance — portion of fund balance which can only be used for a specific purpose by
a majority vote of Watauga County’s governing board (highest body of decision making authority).
Any change or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing board.

Committed for Capital Projects — portion of fund balance set aside for future capital project
expenditures.

Assigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance the governing board decides to use for a specific
purpose.

Subsequent year’s expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next
year’s budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body
approves the appropriation.

Unassigned Fund Balance — portion of the total fund balance that has not been restricted, committed,
or assigned to specific purposes or other funds at year-end.

49



Note 2 -

030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Watauga County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds,
federal funds, State funds, local non-county funds, and county funds. For the purposes of fund
balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in order
by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the County.

15. Defined Benefit Pension and OPEB Plans

The County participates in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that are
administered by the State: the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and the
Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF) (collectively, the “state administered
defined benefit pension plans”). For the purposes of measuring the net pension asset or liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of the state-administered defined benefit
pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state-administered defined pension plans’
fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the state-
administered defined benefit pension plans. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability,
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the HCB and additions to/deductions from the HCB’s fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the HCB. For this purpose, the
HCB recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments for all plans are reported at fair value. For this purpose, plan member contributions
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The County’s employer contributions are
recognized when due and the County has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the state-
administered defined benefit pension plans. Investments are reported at fair value.

Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Assets
1. Deposits

All of the County’s, AppalCART’s, and the Authority’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by
using one of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal
depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the County’s,
AppalCART’s, and the Authority’s agents in these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a
collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer’s
agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity
for the County, AppalCART, and the Authority, these deposits are considered to be held by their
agents in the entities’ names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved
averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-
bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy
of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this
information with the County, AppalCART, or the Authority. Because of the inability to measure the
exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, AppalCART, or the Authority, the potential exists
for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the
State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository
that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial
institutions. The County, AppalCART, and the Authority rely on the State Treasurer to monitor those
financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any financial institution used by
the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official
depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The County, AppalCART, and the
Authority have no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits

50



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

At June 30, 2025, the County’s deposits had a carrying amount of $40,255,900 and a bank balance of
$42,571,484. Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder is covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2025, Watauga County
had $3,650 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2025, AppalCART’s deposits had a carrying amount of $1,752,645 and a bank balance of
$1,752,570. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and
$1,502,570 in interest bearing deposits were covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2025, the Authority’s deposits had a carrying amount of $12,748,470 and a bank balance
of $12,857,882. Of the balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. The Authority had no cash on
hand.

2. Investments

As of June 30, 2025, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Valuation Less Than
Investments by Type | Measurement Fair Value 6-12 Months | 1-5 Years
6 Months
Method
) Fair Value
Commercial Paper Level 2 $34,446,831 | $30,554,669 $3,892,162
. i Fair Value
Certificate of Deposit Level 2 5,000,000 5,000,000 -
) Fair Value
Government Agencies Level 2 10,933,556 1,530,542 1,097,952 8,305,062
NC Capital
Management Trust — Fair Value
Government Portfolio Level 1 49,495,548 | 49,495,548 N/A
Total: 99,875,935 | $86,580,759 4,990,114 8,305,062

Because the NCCMT Government Portfolio has a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days,
they are presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. The NCCMT Government
Portfolio has an AAAm rating from S&P and AAA-mf by Moody’s Investor Service.

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets.
Ratings are from Standard and Poor’s scale.

Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: Debt securities are valued using directly observable, quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2: Debt securities are valued using a
matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities relationship
to benchmark quoted prices.

Interest Rate Risk. The County has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk. As a
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s
internal investment procedure limits at least half of the County’s investment portfolio to maturities of
less than 12 months. Also, the County’s internal management policy recommends purchases of
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no
more than five years.

Credit Risk. The County has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management
procedures that limits the County’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the

51



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are
rated. State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As of June 30, 2023, the County’s investments
in commercial paper were rated P1 by Standard & Poor’s, F1 by Fitch Ratings, and A1 by Moody’s
Investors Service. The County’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Government
Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's and AAAm-mf by Moody’s Investors
Services as of June 30, 2025. The County’s investments in US Agencies with Federal Home Loan
Bank is rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service. The County does
have an elevated credit risk due to safekeeping held in a third-party arrangement.

At June 30, 2025, AppalCART's investment stated at fair value, consisted of $2,301,296 in the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust’'s Government Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by
Standard and Poor’'s and AAAm-mf by Moody’s Investors Services. AppalCART has no formal policy
on interest rate risk or credit risk on its investments.

At June 30, 2025, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following:

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rating

NC Capital Management Trust —

Government Portfolio $ 124,714 | N/A AAAM
$ 124,714

Interest Rate Risk. The Authority has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk. As a
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
internal investment policy limits at least half of the Authority’s investment portfolio to maturities of less
than 12 months. Also, the Authority’s internal management policy requires purchases of securities to
be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no more than
two years.

Credit risk. The Authority has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management
procedures that limits the Authority’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the
purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are
rated. The Authority’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio carried
a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's and AAAm-mf by Moody’s Investors Services as of
June 30, 2025.

3. Property Tax — Use — Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the
County at the present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for
use-value taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the three
preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the original due date. This tax is
immediately due and payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present use-
value eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Tax Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2021 $854,116 $241,288 $1,095,404
2022 906,826 174,564 1,081,390
2023 871,082 89,286 960,368
2024 892,379 - 892,379
Total $3,524,403 $505,138 $4,029,541

52



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

4. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Other
Receivable Taxes Interest Lease
Accounts Opioid Receivable Receivable Receivable Total

Governmental Activities:

General $227,435 $ - $1,281932 $ 91,814 $ 851,108 $ 2,452,289

Other Governmental 21,541 4,024,270 472,110 - - 4,517,921
Total receivables 248,976 4,024,270 1,754,042 91,814 851,108 6,970,210
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (796,854) (148,295) - - (945,149)
Total-governmental activities $248976 $ 3,227,416 $ 1,605,747 $ 91,814 $§ 851,108 $ 6,025,061
Business-type Activities

Solid Waste $ 646,006 $ - 3 - $ - % - § 646,006
Allowance for doubtful accounts (25,658) - - - - (25,658)
Total-business-type activities $620,348  $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 620,348

The due from other governments that is owed to the County consists of the following:

Governmental activities:

NC DOR $ 6,603,806
Town of Blowing Rock 252,772
Town of Beech Mountain 399,056
Town of Seven Devils 33,451
Watauga County Clerk of Court 15,321
Caldwell Community College and Tech Inst. 24,145
NC Dept of Public Safety 265,619
Avery County 611
Appalachian State University 429
Town of Boone 1,400
NC State Treasurer 288,820
NCDOT 309,794
NCDIT 18,844
NC Board of Elections 16,482
NC DHHS 709,691
NC Adult Corrections 600
Appalcart 8,868
Watauga County TDA 255,218
NC Dept of Cultural and Natural Resources 325,898
Council of Government 11,337
Total-governmental activities $ 9,542,162

Business-type activities:
NCDOR $ 42,037

53



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

5. Lease Receivable

On July 1, 2021, the County entered into a 240-month lease as Lessor for the use of land. An
initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $1,044,692. As of June 30, 2025, the value
of the lease is $519,113. The lessee is required to make annual monthly payments of $13,125.
The lease has an interest rate of 3.40%. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as of June
30, 2025, was $487,524, and the County recognized lease revenue of $132,794 during the fiscal
year.

On March 1, 2025, the County entered into a thirty-six month lease as Lessor for the use of office
space. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $371,338. As of June 30, 2025,
the value of the lease is $331,995. The lessee is required to make annual monthly payments of
$11,479. The leave has an interest rate of 7.5%. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as
of June 30, 2025, was $330,078, and the County recognized lease revenue of $41,260 during the
fiscal year.

Governmental-Type Activities

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 258,908 $ 36,342 $ 157,500
2027 272,869 22,381 157,500
2028 241,353 7,980 157,500
2029 77,978 772 157,500
2030 - -
$ 851,108 $ 52,270 $ 708,750

6. Capital Assets
Primary Government:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Intangible
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being

depreciated

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings
Other improvements
Leasehold improvements
Equipment

Vehicles and motorized equipment

Total depreciable assets

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Impairment Balance
$ 27,400,033 $ 7,800 $ - - $ $ 27,407,833
52,830 - - - 52,830
36,266,282 26,422,834 6,568,066 - 56,121,050
63,719,145 26,430,634 6,568,066 - 83,581,713
139,234,551 5,589,494 - - 144,824,045
8,872,817 449179 - 10,490 9,311,506
7,893,112 - - - 7,893,112
8,679,254 396,812 135,558 47,949 8,892,559
3,619,361 522,257 562,388 - 3,579,230
168,299,095 6,957,742 697,946 58,439 174,500,452

54



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

030326 BCC Meeting

Buildings 38,151,779 2,874,022 - 20,603 41,046,404
Other improvements 5,919,346 319,748 - 10,490 6,228,604
Leasehold improvements 3,170,535 249,014 - - 3,419,549
Equipment 6,878,361 597,891 122,373 47,949 7,305,930
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,636,255 387,295 570,099 - 2,453,451
Total accumulated depreciation 56,756,276 4,427,970 692,472 79,042 60,453,938
Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 175,261,964 $ 2,537,572 $ 5474 $ $ (20,603) $ $197,628,227

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 1,973,854
Public safety 863,288
Economic development 5,136
Environmental protection 380
Human senvices 245,080
Cultural and recreational 1,340,232

Total $ 4,427,970

Construction commitments

All construction projects are reported in multi-year project authorizations. See fund-level

statements.
Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 1,100,815 $ - $ - $1,100,815
Construction in progress 1,204,364 718,611 1,916,426 6,549
Total non-depreciable assets 2,305,179 718,611 1,916,426 1,107,364
Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:
Improvements 1,297,757 - - 1,297,757
Leasehold improvements 319,959 - - 319,959
Buildings 4,417,101 2,123,399 - 6,540,500
Equipment 2,284,616 291,847 - 2,576,463
Vehicles 2,069,802 522,572 289,369 2,303,005
Total depreciable and
amortizable assets 10,389,235 2,937,818 289,369 13,037,684
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Improvements 519,790 85,367 - 605,157
Leasehold improvements 315,148 248 - 315,396
Buildings 1,809,565 134,155 - 1,943,720
Equipment 1,609,419 119,688 - 1,729,107
Vehicles 1,735,244 118,832 289,369 1,564,707
Total accumulated depreciation 5,989,166 458,290 289,369 6,158,087
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-type capital assets, $ 6,705,248 $ 3,198,139 $ 1,916,426 $7,986,961

55



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Discretely presented component units

Capital asset activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:
Buildings
Total depreciable and
amortizable assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental Activities capital assets, $1,700,101

Business-type activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable and Amortizable Assets:

030326 BCC Meeting

Land Improvements
Furniture and equipment

Shop equipment
Buildings
Vehicles

Total depreciable and

amortizable assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Land Improvements
Furniture and equipment

Shop equipment
Buildings
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
$ 697,983 $ - $ - $ 697,983

161,824 - 161,824 -
859,807 - 161,824 697,983
853,090 491,150 - 1,344,240
853,090 491,150 - 1,344,240

12,796 23,201 - 35,997

12,796 23,201 - 35,997

840,294 $ 467,949 $ - 1,308,243

82,006,226
Capital asset activity for the AppalCART for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

$ 1,114,242 $ - $ - $ 1,114,242
116,400 - 6,850 109,550
1,230,642 - 6,850 1,223,792
16,519 - - 16,519
700,334 6,850 13,294 693,890
403,859 3,870 - 407,729
6,711,170 - - 6,711,170
14,066,991 1,129,121 107,512 15,088,600
21,898,873 1,139,841 120,806 22,917,908
13,836 536 - 14,372
576,586 58,267 13,294 621,559
304,076 16,187 - 320,263
1,494,491 135,813 - 1,630,304
7,710,231 1,085,910 107,512 8,688,629
10,099,220 1,296,713 120,806 11,275,127
$ 13,030,295 $ (156,872) § 6,850 $12,866,573

Business-type capital assets, net

56



7.

030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Right to Use Leased Assets

The County has recorded right to use leased assets. The assets are right to use assets for leased
land. The related leases are discussed in the Leases subsection of the Long-term obligations
section of this note. The right to use lease assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the

terms of the related leases.

Right to use asset activity for the for the County for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as

follows:
Enterprise Fund Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Decreases Balance
Right to use assets
Leased land $ 144,380  $ - $ - $ 144,380
Total right to use assets 144,380 - - 144,380
Less accumulated amortization for:
Leased land 39,139 13,045 - 52,184
Total accumulated amortization 39,139 13,045 - 52,184
Right to use assets, net 105,241 (13,045) - 92,196

B.

AppalCART has recorded right to use leased assets. The assets are

right to use assets for

leased land. The related leases are discussed in the Leases subsection of the Long-term
obligations section of this note. The right to use lease assets are amortized on a straight-line

basis over the terms of the related leases.

Right to use asset activity for the for AppalCART for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as

follows:
AppalCART Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Decreases Balance
Right to use assets
IT subscriptions $357,195 $ - $ - $ 357,195
Total right to use assets 357,195 - - 357,195
Less accumulated amortization for:
Leased land 90,634 74,123 - 164,757
Total accumulated amortization 90,634 74,123 - 164,757
Right to use assets, net 266,561 (74,123) - 192,438
Liabilities
1. Payables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Salaries and Due to other Negative cash to
Vendors benefits governments tie to Exhibit A Total

Governmental activities:

General $ 1,215951 $ 550,144 $ 1,075,690 $ - $ 2,841,785

Valle Crucis Project 1,950,316 - - - 1,950,316

Hurricane Helene Disaster 4,929,652 - - (1,252,195) 3,677,457

Other governmental funds 1,079,168 - 592,958 (29,276) 1,642,850

Total-governmental activities $ 9,175,087 §$ 550,144 $ 1,668,648 $ (1,281,471) $ 10,112,408
Business-type activities:

Solid Waste $ 358,125 $ 49,006 $ 33676 % -9 440,807

57



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Pension Plan Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description. The County is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general
employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local government entities.
Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the County to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of
Trustees, which consists of 13 members — nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the
State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and
State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental Employees’
Retirement System is included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the State of North
Carolina. The State’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling
(919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.org.

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of
creditable service. A member's average final compensation is calculated as the average of a
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of
creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to
retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with
five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor benefits are available to eligible
beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service
and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 years of
creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or
have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to
receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions. The
plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon
actuarial gains of the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with
five years creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan
members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable
service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die
while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either
completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as
a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and
have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of
duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a
return of the member’s contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statue 128-30 and may be
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. County employees are required to contribute
6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the
LGERS Board of Trustees. The County’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended
June 30, 2025, was 15.04% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 13.68% for general
employees and firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with
employees contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the
year. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were $2,406,476 for the year ended June 30,
2025.

58


http://www.osc.nc.org/

030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Refunds of Contributions. County employees, who have terminated service as a contributing member
of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to
members with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting
period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment
cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2025, the County reported a liability of $10,713,613 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2024. The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2023. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of
June 30, 2024 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the County’s long-term share of
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2025, the
County’s proportion was 0.15892% (measured as of June 30, 2024), which was a decrease of
0.00459% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2023.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the County recognized pension expense of $3,253,936. At June
30, 2025, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,877,431 $ 12,623
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 1,456,509 -
Changes in proportion and differences between Town
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 114,440 140,194
Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,406,476 -
Total $ 5,854,856 $ 152,817

$2,406,476 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2026 $ 1,044,711
2027 2,080,272
2028 335,270
2029 (164,690)
Total $ 3,295,563

At June 30, 2025, the Authority reported a liability of $159,840 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2024. The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2024. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of
June 30, 2024 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Authority’s

59



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share of
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2025, the
Authority’s proportion was 0.00237% (measured as of June 30, 2024), which was a decrease of
0.00001% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2023.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Authority recognized pension expense of $51,992. At June 30,
2025, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 28,010 $ 188
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 21,730 -
Changes in proportion and differences between Authority
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 3,714 659
Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 38,292 -
Total $ 91,746  $ 847

$38,292 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authority
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2026 $ 17,285
2027 31,947
2028 5,832
2029 (2,457)
2030 -
Thereafter -

Total $ 52,607

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases 3.25 t0 8.25%

Investment rate of 6.5 percent, net of pension plan

return investment  expense, including
inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population.
The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an

actuarial experience study as of December 31, 2019 and adopted by the Board of Trustees on
January 28, 2021.

60



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers,
and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current
yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity projections are
established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other
asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis.
These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates or arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
as of June 30, 2025 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation  Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 33.0% 2.4%
Global Equity 38.0% 6.9%
Real Estate 8.0% 6.0%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.6%
Opportunistic  Fixed 7.0% 539
Income
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 4.3%

Total 100%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the
2024 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including
LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic
annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively
subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 2.38%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.5%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The
following presents the proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate
of 6.5 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.5 percent) or
one percentage point higher (7.5 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.5%) (6.5%) (7.5%)
County's proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) $ 18,984,836 $ 10,713,613 $ 3,909,395

61



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.5%) (6.5%) (7.5%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) $ 283,241 $ 159,840 $ 58,326

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the State of
North Carolina.

b. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description

Watauga County administers a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement
benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement officers. In June of 2016, the County
established an irrevocable trust, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
(LEOSSA) Irrevocable Trust Fund, to account for the assets set aside for this purpose. For reporting
purposes, the LEOSSA is presented as a pension trust fund as it meets the criteria for trust funds
outlined in GASB Statement 68.

Benefits Provided. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the
base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may
be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

The data required regarding the membership of the Watauga County Law Enforcement Separation
Allowance Plan was furnished by the County and the NC Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement
System. The following table summarizes the membership of the Plan as of June 30, 2024, the
valuation date:

Retirees receiving benefits 2
Inactive members entitled to but not receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 47

Total 49

Contributions. The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making
contributions based on actuarial valuations. For the year ended June 30, 2025, the County
contributed $194,350, or 6.49% of covered payroll. There were no contributions made by employees.
The County's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through
investment earnings.

Refunds of Contributions. Because all funds are contributed by the County, no refunds are available
to members of the plan.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability (TPL) in the June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases Based on service, ranging from 3.25 to 7.75 percent, including
inflation

Investment rate of return  3.93 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

62



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Mortality Pre-retirement mortality rates bases on the Pub-2010 Safety
Employees tables, project forward generationally using Scale
MP-2019
Post-retirement rate based on the Pub-2010 Safety Retirees
tables, set forward one year and multiplied by .97, then
projected generationally using Scale MP-2019

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.93%. Since the
assets are held in short term investments, a discount rate equal to the 20-year tax-exempt municipal
bond (rating AA/Aa or higher) rate was used. The index used for this purpose is the Bond Buyer 20-
Bond GO Index rate published closest to, but not later than, the measurement date of June 30, 2024.

Projected cash flows. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
the employer would contribute the actuarially determined contribution in the future.

Long term rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is
assumed to be 3.93% annually. Since the Separation Allowance assets are held in short term
investments a discount rate equal to the 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond (rating AA/Aa or higher)
rate was used. The index used for this purpose is the Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index rate published
closest to, but not later than, the measurement date of June 30, 2024.

Sensitivity of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.93 percent, as well as what the net pension
asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (2.93 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.93 percent) than the current
rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.93%) (3.93%) (4.93%)
Net pension liability $1,031,781 $862,049 $707,408

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the chart below:

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension
Liability Position Liability
(@) (b) (@) —(b)
Balance as of June 30, 2023; measurement date $1,308,515 $860,978 $447,537
Changes for the year:
Senvice cost 96,447 - 96,447
Interest 50,278 - 50,278
Benefit changes - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience 603,230 - 603,230
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (45,962) - (45,962)
Contributions — employer - 264,958 (264,958)
Contributions — employee - - -
Net investment income - 35,523 (35,523)
Benefits paid (54,958) (54,958) -
Plan administrative expenses - (11,000) 11,000
Net changes 649,035 234,523 414,512
Balance as of June 30, 2024; measurement date $1,957,550 $1,095,501 862,049

63



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to the LEOSSA Pension Plan
The assumed rate of return was decreased from 3.65% to 3.93% to reflect the change in the
Municipal Bond Rate. There were no changes between the measurement date of the net pension
liability and the County’s reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the net
pension liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the County recognized pension expense of $184,733. Since
certain expense items are amortized over closed periods each year, the deferred portion of these
items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce pension expense, they are labeled
deferred inflows. If they will increase pension expense they are labeled deferred outflows. The
amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in the
deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, if
any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive plan members at
the beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed five year
period.

At June 30, 2025 the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources as of the June 30, 2024 measurement date:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 501,151 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 15,085 -
Changes of assumptions and other inputs 2,064 -
Benefit payments and administrative expenses subsequent
to the measurement date 41,650 -
Total 559,950 -

The County paid $41,650 in benefit payments and $0 in admin expenditures subsequent to the
measurement date that are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from County contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2026 $ 60,533
2027 57,435
2028 54,104
2029 60,387
2030 68,545
Thereafter 217,296
Total $ 518,300

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County.
Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement

64



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Officers is included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the State of North Carolina.
The State’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report includes the pension trust fund financial
statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by
calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 required the County to contribute each month an
amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan.

Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2025 were $243,794, which consisted of $168,627 from the
County and $75,167 from the law enforcement officers. No amounts were forfeited.

d. Supplemental Retirement Income Plans for General Employees

Employees, other than law enforcement, have the choice of participating in a 401(k) plan or a 457
deferred compensation plan. The County contributes five percent of each employee’s salary to the
plan of their choice. Employees may make elective deferrals to each plan. Contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2025 to these plans were $1,073,661which consisted of $668,793 from the County
and $404,868 from employees. No amounts were forfeited.

e. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. Watauga County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension
Fund (RODSPF), a noncontributory, defined benefit plan administered by the North Carolina
Department of State Treasurer. RODSPF provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible
county register of deeds who is retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of
the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members — nine appointed
by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state House of
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio
members. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for the State of North Carolina. The State’s Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 28699-1410, by calling
(919) 981-5454, or at www.0sc.nc.qov.

Benefits Provided. An individual’s benefits for the year are calculated as a share of accumulated
contributions available for benefits for that year, subject to certain statutory limits. An individual’s
eligibility is based on at least 10 years of service as a register of deeds with the individual’s share
increasing with years of service. Because of the statutory limits noted above, not all contributions
available for benefits are distributed.

Contributions. Benefits and administrative expenses are funded by investment income and 1.5% of
the receipts collected by each County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 161 of the North
Carolina General Statutes. The statutory contribution currently has no relationship to the actuary’s
required contribution. The actuarially determined contribution this year, and for the foreseeable future,
is zero. Registers of Deeds do not contribute. Contribution provisions are established by General
Statute 161-50 and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Contributions to
the pension plan from the County were $11,692 for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

65


http://www.osc.nc.gov/

030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

At June 30, 2025, the County reported an asset of $70,400 for its proportionate share of the net
pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2024. The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2023. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023
utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s proportion of the
net pension asset was based on the County’s share of contributions to the pension plan, relative to
contributions to the pension plan of all participating RODSPF employers. At June 30, 2025, the
County’s proportion was .61095%, which was a decrease of .021% from its proportion measured as
of June 30, 2024.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the County recognized pension expense of $28,365. At June 30,
2025, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,546 $ 1,259

Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 27,187 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2,462 465
County contributions subsequent to the measurement

date 11,692 -

Total $ 42,887 % 1,724

$11,692 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net
pension asset in the year ended June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2026 $ 13,962
2027 12,943
2028 2,468
2029 98
2030 -

Total $ 29,471

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases 3.25

Investment rate of return 3.0 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population.
The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience review for LGERS for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2019.

66



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers,
and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current
yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple-year horizons. Global public equity return projections
are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections.
Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data
analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation.

The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with an investment consulting
firm as part of a study that was completed in early 2022, and is part of the asset liability and
investment policy of the North Carolina Retirement Systems. The long-term nominal rates of return
underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are
calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of
2.38%. Return projections do not include any excess return expectations over benchmark averages.
All rates of return and inflation are annualized. The adopted asset allocation policy for the RODSPF is
100% in the fixed income asset class and is 100% invested in the Bond Index External Investment
Pool. The long term expected real rate of return for the Bond Index Investment Pool as of June 30,
2024 is 2.76%.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset was 3.0%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from employers will be
made at statutorily required rates. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated
using the discount rate of 3.0 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net
pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(2.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.0 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.0%) (3.0%) (4.0%)
County’s proportionate share of ($46,646) ($70,400) (90,408)

the net pension liability (asset)
Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the State of
North Carolina.

f. Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The net pension liability (asset) for LGERS and ROD was measured as of June 30, 2024, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2023. The net pension liability (asset) for LEOSSA was measured as of
June 30, 2024, with an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2024. The County’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset) was based on the County’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative

67



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

to the contribution of all participating entities. Following is information related to the proportionate

share and pension expense:

LGERS ROD LEOSSA Total
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
(Asset) $ 10,713,613 $ (70,400) $ - $ 10,643,213
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.15892% 0.61095% n/a n/a
Net Pension Liability - - $ 862,049 $ 862,049
Pension Expense $ 3,253,936 $ 23,865 $ 184,733 $ 3,462,534

At June 30, 2025, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

LGERS ROD LEOSSA Total

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual

$ 1,877,431 $ 1,546 $ 501,151 $ 2,380,128

experience

Changes of assumptions - - 2,064 2,064
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan 1,456,509 27,187 15,085 1,498,781

investments

Changes in proportion and differences
between County contributions and 114,440 2,462 - 11
proportionate share of contributions

County contributions
(LGERS,ROD)/benefit payments and

6,902

administration costs (LEOSSA) 2,406,476 11,692 41,650 2,459,818
subsequent to the measurement date
Total $ 5,854,856 $ 42,887 $ 559,950 $ 6,457,693

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual $

. 12,623 $ 1259 § - $ 13,882

experience
Changes of assumptions - - - -
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan ) ) ) )
investments
Changes in proportion and differences
between County contributions and 140,194 465 - 140,659
proportionate share of contributions

Total $ 152817 $ 1,724 § - $ 154,541

g. Other Postemployment Benefit for Health Insurance

Plan Description
Plan Administration. Under a County resolution as of September 1, 2001,

Watauga County

administers the Healthcare Benefits Plan (HCB Plan) as a single-employer defined benefit plan that is

68



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) for all retirees of the County
who participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System and have
at least five years of creditable service with the County. The County has elected to partially pay the
future overall cost of coverage for these benefits. The HCB Plan is available to qualified retirees at up
to 75% of the monthly premium, until the age of 65 or until Medicare eligible, whichever is sooner
based on years of creditable service with the County. The Board of Commissioners may amend the
benefit provisions. The HCB Plan is in the County’s report as a pension trust fund with funds held in
an irrevocable trust. A separate report was not issued for the Plan.

Management of the HCB Plan is vested in the Watauga County Board of Commissioners.
Plan Membership. At June 30, 2024, the HCB Plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefit payments 20
Inactive plan members entitled to but

not yet receiving benefit payments
Active plan members

Total

23

N
o [Co

Benefits Provided. The HCB plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees. The County pays a
percentage of the cost of coverage for employees’ benefits through private insurers.

Contributions. The Board of Commissioners established the contribution requirements of plan
members and these requirements may be amended by the Board. The Board establishes rates based
on an actuarially determined rate. Per a County resolution, the County is required to contribute the
projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as
determined annually by the Board. The County’s contribution is dependent on the employee’s number
of years of creditable service with the County. Retirees pay the difference in the premium less their
subsidy based on years of service in the chart below. For the current year, the County contributed
$612,813.

County contributions to HCB Plan based on creditable years of service
$0 - 100% retiree
responsibility

10 years in LGERS with last 5 years with Watauga County

20 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 50% supplement
21 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 52.5% supplement
22 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 55% supplement
23 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 57.5% supplement
24 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 60% supplement
25 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 62.5% supplement
26 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 65% supplement
27 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 67.5% supplement
28 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 70% supplement
29 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 72.5% supplement
30 years in LGERS with last 10 years with Watauga County 75% supplement

69



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Investments

Investment policy. The HCB Plan’s policy in regards to the allocation of invested assets is established
by the County Financial Policy used by management. It is the policy of the County to pursue an
investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio and staggered
maturities. Investments are valued at fair value. The current asset allocation policy is in 100% fixed
income investments with an expected long term rate of return of 3.93 percent.

Rate of return. For the year ended June 30, 2025, the annual money weighted rate of return on
investments, net of investment expense, was 3.93 percent.

Net OPEB Liability of the County

The components of the net OPEB liability of the County at June 30, 2025 were as follows:

Total OPEB Liability $ 7,377,585
Plan fiduciary net position 3,511,423
County’s net OPEB liability $ 3,866,162

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of Total OPEB Liability is 47.6%.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2024 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.50 percent

Salary increases Based on service, ranging from 7.75 percent for Uniformed
Employees grading down to 3.25 percent over 40 years, and 8.25%
for General Employees grading down to 3.25 percent over 35 years,
including inflation

Discount rate 3.93 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.5 percent, then 7.25 percent decreasing by .25 percent per year,
4.50 percent ultimate rate

Healthy mortality rates

Pre-retirement (General) Pub-2010 General Employees table, projected

generationally using Scale: MP-2019
(Uniformed) Pub-2010 Safety Employees table, projected
generationally using Scale: MP-2019.

Post-retirement (General): Pub-2010 General Retiree table, set forward two years
and multiplied by 96% for males, unadjusted for females, projected
generationally using Scale MP-2019.

(Uniformed): Pub-2010 Safety Retiree table, set forward one year
and multiplied by 97%, projected generationally using Scale MP-
2019.

Total OPEB liabilities were rolled forward to June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 for the employer and
the plan, respectively, utilizing updated procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These returns are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates

70



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

of return by the major target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and
subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.93 percent. The
discount rate incorporates a municipal bond rate which is 3.93 percent as reported in the Bond Buyer
for the 20 Year general obligation bonds as of June 30, 2024.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net
OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.93 percent) or 1-percentage-point
higher (4.93 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.93 percent) (3.93 percent) (4.93 percent)
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 4,598,483 $ 3,866,162 $ 3,212,491

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare trend rate. The following presents the
net OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were to
calculate healthcare trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than
the current healthcare trend rate:

1% Decrease Healthcare Cost 1% Increase
in Trend Rates Trend Rate in Trend Rates
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 3,100,005 $ 3,866,162 $ 4,767,631

Changes in Net OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB. At June 30, 2025, the County reported a net OPEB liability of
$3,866,162. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was measured by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2024.

At June 30, 2025, the components of the net OPEB liability of the County, as measured at June 30,
2024, were as follows:

Changes of assumptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount
rate from 3.65 percent in 2023 to 3.93 percent in 2024.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the County recognized OPEB expense of $3,104,075. At June 30,
2025, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Deferred Outflows Inflows of
of Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 627,261
Changes of assumptions - 559,744
Net Difference between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments - 14,755
County contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 612,813 -
Total $ 612,813 § 1,201,760

$612,813 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease in the net OPEB

71



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

liability in the year ended June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

2026 $ (155,612)
2027 (190,461)
2028 (201,349)
2029 (244,847)
2030 (222,113)
Thereafter (187,378)

$ (1,201,760)

Other Employment Benefits
Death Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to all eligible employees through the Death Benefit
Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan). A
multiple-employer, State administered, cost sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The
beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership
in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service have at least one
year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death
benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest
months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit will be a
minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. Because all death benefit payments are made from
the Death Benefit Plan and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible
participants. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit
amount and the other benefit amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly
payroll based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees not
engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The County considers the contributions
to be immaterial.

The County has elected to provide additional death benefits for all eligible employees through a
commercial insurance carrier in the amounts equal to an employee’s salary rounded up to the next
$1,000. Coverage is provided at a maximum of $80,000 with no minimum value. Benefits in excess of
$50,000 are considered taxable to the employee as a fringe benefit.

Retirement Plan - AppalCART

Please see the separately issued financial report of AppalCART for a complete description of their
single employer pension plan.

Closure and Postclosure Care Costs — Solid Waste Landfill and the Land Clearing Inert Debris
(LCID)

Solid Waste Landfill - On April 8, 1994, the County stopped accepting municipal solid waste at the
County’s landfill, and closure procedures were initiated. State and federal laws and regulations
required the County to place a final cover on its landfill facility and to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the site for thirsty years after closure. Groundwater testing continues, as
required by NCDENR. Due to a NCDENR directive, in fiscal year 2004-2005, a methane collection
system was installed to prevent the potential for offsite migration. Further remedial actions are not
anticipated unless groundwater conditions change. The County has recognized all post-closure costs
as of June 30, 2025.

(LCID) - State and federal laws and regulations require the County to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure
care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting debris, the County

72



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period
based on landfill capacity used as each balance sheet date. The $495,461 reported as landfill
closure and postclosure care liability at June 30, 2025 represents a cumulative amount reported to
date based on the use of 23% of the total estimated capacity of the landfill. The County will recognize
the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care as the remaining capacity is filled.
These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2025.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources as of June 30, 2025 are as follows:

Deferred Deferred Inflows of Resources

Outflows Statement Governmental
of of Net Funds

Resources Position Balance Sheet
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Changes in assumptions, pension and
OPEB $ 2,064 $ 511,046 $
Pensions and OPEB - dlﬁgrence between 2,216,792 585,473 )
expected and actual experience
Pensions and OPEB - difference between 1,372,065 13,471 )

projected and actual investment earnings
Pensions and OPEB - change in proportion
and cﬁffer.ence between employer 106,946 128,462
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions

Contributions to pension and OPEB plans in

2,809,953 - -

the current year

FEMA disaster discovery - - 58,777
Note Receivable (General) - - 12,215,529
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General) - 5,166 5,166
Taxes receivable, net (General) - - 1,145,182
Opioid Settlement (Opioid Settlement) - - 3,187,416
Lease receivable (General) - 817,602 817,602
Taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) - - 148,315
Total deferred outflows of resources $6,507,819 $ 2,061,221 $ 17,577,987

Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates
in two self-funded risk-financing pools administrated by the North Carolina Association of County
Commissioners. Through these pools, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement
cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $135,429,542 for any one occurrence, general,
auto, professional, and employment practices liability coverage of $2,000,000 per occurrence, auto
physical damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of $250,000 per
occurrence and workers’ compensation coverage up to the statutory limits. The pools are audited
annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial statements are available to the
County upon request. The pools are reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single
occurrence losses in excess of $250,000 up to a $2 million limit for liability coverage, $4,000,000 of
aggregate annual losses in excess of $5,000 per occurrence for property, $1,000 per occurrence for
auto physical damage, and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers’

73



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

compensation. The County provides employee health, dental and life insurance benefits through
commercial carriers.

The County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because the
County is in an area of the State that has been mapped an “A” area (an area close to a river, lake or
stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is eligible to purchase coverage
of $500,000 per structure through the NFIP. Under this program, the County has purchased
commercial flood insurance for $824,000 for certain flood-prone structures. The County carries flood
insurance to avoid possible significant loss.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any
given time of the County’s funds are covered by a blanket bond for $250,000. The Finance Officer is
bonded for $1,000,000. The Tax Administrator, Register of Deeds, and County Manager (as Deputy
Finance Director) are each individually bonded for $50,000 each. The Sheriff is bonded for $25,000.

The County carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

AppalCART is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. AppalCART is insured with
the NC Association of County Commissioners Liability and Property and Worker's Compensation
Pools that provides coverage for general liability in the amount of $2,000,000 with an additional
$3,000,000 in vehicle liability purchased per NC DOT requirements and worker's comp insurance at
the statutory limits. The County is a member of these same pools.

The Watauga County Tourism Development Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The
Authority is insured with the NC Association of County Commissioners Liability and Property that
provide coverage for general liability in the amount of $2,000,000 and worker’s comp coverage with a
commercial firm at the statutory limits. The County is a member of the same Liability and Property

pool.
6. Long-term Obligations
a. Leases

Senviced by the Enterprise Fund:

The County has entered into agreements to lease certain parcels of land. The lease agreements
qualify as other than short-term leases under GASB 87 and, therefore, have been recorded at the
present value of future minimum payments as of the date of their inception.

The first agreement was executed in September 2013 to lease land and requires
240 monthly payments varying between $300 to $375. There are no variable
payment components of the lease. The lease liability is measured at a discount
rate of 3.39%, which is the stated rate in the lease agreement. As a result of the
lease, the County has recorded a right to use asset with a net book value of
$28,693 at June 30, 2025. The right to use asset is discussed in more detail in
the right to use asset section of this note. $ 31,424

74



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The second agreement was executed in September 2006 to lease land and

requires 240 monthly payments varying between $175 to $250. There are no

variable payment components of the lease. The lease liability is measured at a

discount rate of 3.39%, which is the stated rate in the lease agreement. As a

result of the lease, the County has recorded a right to use asset with a net book

value of $3,203 at June 30, 2025. The right to use asset is discussed in more

detail in the right to use asset section of this note. 3,427
The third agreement was executed in May 2013 to lease land and requires 240

monthly payments of $100. There are no variable payment components of the

lease. The lease liability is measured at a discount rate of 3.39%, which is the

stated rate in the lease agreement. As a result of the lease, the County has

recorded a right to use asset with a net book value of $7,828 at June 30, 2025.

The right to use asset is discussed in more detail in the right to use asset

section of this note. 8,323
The fourth agreement was executed in February 2015 to lease land and requires

240 monthly payments of $300. There are no variable payment components of

the lease. The lease liability is measured at a discount rate of 3.39%, which is

the stated rate in the lease agreement. As a result of the lease, the County has

recorded a right to use asset with a net book value of $27,698 at June 30, 2025.

The right to use asset is discussed in more detail in the right to use asset

section of this note. 29,421
The fifth agreement was executed in November 2013 to lease land and requires

240 monthly payments varying between $300 to $399. There are no variable

payment components of the lease. The lease liability is measured at a discount

rate of 3.39%, which is the stated rate in the lease agreement. As a result of the

lease, the County has recorded a right to use asset with a net book value of

$24,774 at June 30, 2025. The right to use asset is discussed in more detail in

the right to use asset section of this note. 26,329
Total Enterprise Fund leases $ 98,924
Leases

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum
lease payments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 12,438 3,038 $ 15,476
2027 10,335 2,636 12,971
2028 10,177 2,292 12,469
2029 10,754 1,935 12,689
2030 11,201 1,558 12,759
2031-2035 44,019 2,361 46,380
Total $ 98,924 $ 13,820 $ 112,744
b. Installment Purchase

As authorized by State law [G.S. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County financed various transactions
during previous years by direct placement installment purchase. The installment purchases were
issued pursuant to security agreements that require that legal title remain with the County as long as
the debt is outstanding because the property is pledged as collateral for the debt. The County has
four installment purchases serviced by the general fund.

75



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The first and second installment direct placement purchase agreements were executed on June 28,
2012 to refinance the construction of the new high school. These installment purchases were
refinanced June 28, 2012 into limited obligation bonds. The limited obligations bonds were issued in
two series, A and B. Series A is for a principal amount of $45,045,000 with terms ranging from 2016
to 2028. The Series A bonds were partially refunded on October 2, 2019. The refunded portion
totaled $17,390,000 with a new principal balance of $19,240,000. The refunding was undertaken to
reduce total debt service payments by $677,245 over the remaining life of the purchase agreements.
The Series A bonds have an outstanding balance at June 30, 2025 of $10,670,000. Series B was for
$10 million with a term of three years and a set rate of 1.81 percent and this series paid out in fiscal
year 2014-15.

The third direct placement installment purchase agreement was for limited obligations bonds and was
executed in the amount $18,490,000 for the construction of the community recreation center on
October 25, 2018. The installment purchase calls for annual payments of principal and semi-annual
payments of interest for a period of 15 years. The annual principal payments range from $1,320,000
to $1,325,000. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2025 is $10,565,000. Proceeds from the
LOBs included a premium of $1,723,277 which will be amortized and expensed in interest over the
life of the installment purchase agreement.

The fourth direct placement installment purchase agreement was for limited obligations bonds and
was executed in the amount $31,800,000 for the construction of the Valle Crucis School on October
27, 2022. The installment purchase calls for annual payments of principal and semi-annual payments
of interest for a period of 20 years. The annual principal payments range from $965,000 to
$1,625,000. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2025 is $27,585,000. Proceeds from the LOBs
included a premium of $2,997,003 which will be amortized and expensed in interest over the life of
the installment purchase agreement.

The County obtained a $895,478 Hurricane Helene Cash Flow note issued March 3, 2025 0%
interest, payable in annual installments with the final payment June 30, 2030. The annual principal
payments range from $1 to $358,190. The County’s outstanding note from direct borrowings related
to governmental activities of $895,478 is not secured by a pledge of the faith and credit of the state of
North Carolina or of the County but is payable solely from the revenues of the project or benefited
systems, or other available funds. The note contains provisions that an event of default would result
in (1) any other monies due to the County from the state may be withheld by the state and applied to
the payment of the outstanding note. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2025 is $895,478.

For Watauga County, the future minimum payments as of June 30, 2025, including $15,237,505 of
interest, are:

Governmental Activities

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2026 $ 6,545,001 $ 2,138,015 $ 8,683,016
2027 6,589,548 1,899,685 8,489,233
2028 6,644,096 1,660,005 8,304,101
2029 3,208,643 1,444,100 4,652,743
2030 3,303,190 1,297,100 4,600,290
2031-2035 12,070,000 4,440,000 16,510,000
2036-2040 8,115,000 2,103,450 10,218,450
2041-2042 3,240,000 255,150 3,495,150
Total $49,715,478 $ 15,237,505 $64,952,983

76



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

b. General Obligation Indebtedness

The County has no general obligation debt outstanding or authorized as of June 30, 2025. At June
30, 2025, Watauga County had a legal debt margin of $1,122,575,787.

c. Advance Refunding

In June 2012, the County issued $55,045,000 in limited obligation bonds to refinance the installment
purchase loans for the land and construction of the 2010 high school. These funds refinanced the
original debt remaining of $61,000,000 plus interest and expenses. This resulted in premiums totaling
$5,206,201 to be amortized over the remaining eight-year life of the new debt. On October 2, 2019,
the County issued $19,240,000 of limited obligation refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase
U.S. government securities that were placed in a refunded escrow held by US Bank. As a result, the
refunded bonds are decreased and the liability has been removed from the governmental activities
column of the statement of net position. Due to the refunding of the Series A limited obligation bonds
the premium on advance refunding liability was reduced by $1,639,207. A liability for the balance of
the premium of $429,315 and the annual amortization of interest expense is in the government-wide
statements.

d. Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2025:

Current
Beginning Ending Portion of

Balance, Restated Additions Retirements Balance Balance
Governmental Activities:
Direct placement installment $ 55,390,000 - $ 6570000  $48,820,000  $ 6,545,000
purchases
Cash Flow Disaster Response Loan - 895,478 - 895,478 1
Net pension liability (LGERS) 9,887,070 - 105,541 9,781,529 -
Total pension liability (LEOSSA) 447,537 414,512 - 862,049 -
Net OPEB liability 1,951,766 1,578,040 - 3,529,806 -
Premium on LOBS 3,731,270 - 264,735 3,466,535 264,735
Premium on advance refunding 572,420 - 143,105 429,315 143,105
Compensated absences 1,627,126 74,345 - 1,701,471 181,343
Total $ 73,607,189 2,962,375 $ 7,083,381 $69,486,183 7,134,184
Business-Type Activities:
Net pension liability (LGERS) $ 942141 - $ 10,057 $ 932,084 $ -
Net OPEB liability 185,984 150,372 - 336,356 -
?;csrztra:;sz?sﬁll closure and post 495461 i i 495461 i
Leases 110,949 - 12,025 98,924 12,438
Compensated absences 142,221 34,099 - 176,320 36,990
Total $ 1,876,756 184,471 $ 22,082 $ 2,039,145 $ 49428
Discretely presented component
units:
AppalCART
Lease liabilities $ 248,008 - $ 63,627 $ 184,381 $ 66,731
Compensated absences 118,338 168,665 112,430 174,573 112,430
Total $ 366,346 168,665 $ 176,057 $ 358,954 $ 179,161

77



030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Watauga County TDA
Net pension liability (LGERS) $ 157,365 $ 2,475 $ - $ 159,840 $ -
Compensated absences 92,297 35,492 - 127,789 127,789

$ 249,662 $ 37,967 $ - $ 287,629 $ 127,789

For Watauga County and the Authority, compensated absences for governmental activities are
liquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees
are taking leave time as it is earned.

For AppalCART, compensated absences are accounted for on the FIFO basis, assuming that
employees are taking time that has been previously earned.

Interfund Balances and Activity

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2025, consist of the following:

From the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to accumulate resources

for future capital acquisitions $18,416,719
From the ARPA Project Fund to the Capital Projects Fund 242,037
From the Capital Projects Fund to the 911 Building Capital Project Fund 12,337,307
From the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund 10,594,939
Total $ 41,591,002

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Capital assets $197,628,227 $ 8,079,157
Less long-term debt 48,820,000 98,924
Less LOBs premium 3,466,535 -
Less Advance refunding premium 429,315 -
Net investment in capital assets $144,912,377 $ 7,980,233

Fund Balance

Watauga County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond
proceeds, federal funds, state funds, local non-county funds, county funds. For the purposes fund
balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in
order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance.
The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the
County.

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of
General fund balance available for appropriation:

Total fund balance — General Fund $79,024,854
Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 21,056,868

Leases 33,506

Appropriated in future years’ 297,501

Register of Deeds Automation/Enhancement 125,717

Remaining fund balance $57,511,262

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitment related to purchase
orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.

78



Note 3 -

Note 4 -

Note 5 -

030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Encumbrances: General Fund - $11,929,518
Enterprise Fund - $61,413
Joint Ventures

The County participates in a joint venture to operate Appalachian Regional Library with two other
local governments. Each participating government appoints four board members to the twelve-
member Board of the Library. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint
venture because of the Library’s continued existence depends on the participating governments’
continued funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library,
so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2025. In
accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the
County appropriated $818,990 to the Library to supplement its activities. Complete financial
statements for the Library can be obtained from their offices at 148 Library Drive, West Jefferson,
NC 28694.

The County, in conjunction with Ashe and Alleghany Counties, participates in a joint venture to
operate the Appalachian District Health Department. Each participating government appoints one
board member to the Governing Board and they in turn appoint the other members of the
Governing Board. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Health
Department, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2025
In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the
County appropriated $1,030,000 to the Health Department to supplement its activities. Complete
financial statements for the Health Department can be obtained from the Health Department’s
offices at 126 Poplar Grove Connector Road, Boone, NC 28607.

Jointly Governed Organization

The County communally governs Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute with one
other government and the community college system of the State of North Carolina. The County
appoints two members of its fourteen members Board of Trustees. In accordance with the
intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated
$1,129,350 to Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute to supplement its activities.
Complete financial statements for the College can be obtained at 2855 Hickory Boulevard,
Hudson, NC 28638.

The County, in conjunction with seven other counties and nineteen municipalities, established the
High Country Council of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the
Council to coordinate various funding received from Federal and State agencies. Each
participating government appoints one member to the Council’'s governing board. The County
paid membership fees of $48,633 and purchased services in the amount of $25,790 with the
Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The County was the sub recipient of three
grants totaling $355,602. The first grant is for $320,784 in Home and Community Care Block
Grant funds and the second is for $19,964 in Nutrition Programs for the Elderly funds. Both are
from the US Department of Health and Human Services and the Division of Aging of the North
Carolina Department of Health and Human Services that was passed through the Council. The
third grant is for $14,854 from the Division of Aging of the North Carolina Department of Health
and Human Services that was passed through the Council. Complete financial statements for the
Council can be obtained at 468 New Market Blvd., Boone, NC 28607.

Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments and Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several Federal and State grants. Periodic audits of
these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate
expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys
to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No

79



Note 6 -

Note 7 -

030326 BCC Meeting
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant
moneys.

Prior Period Adjustment/Correction of Error

The County implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences, July 1, 2024. The objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and
measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required
disclosures. As a result, the County recognized an additional $290,418 in compensated absences
for sick leave as of June 30, 2025, resulting in a decrease in beginning net position of the same
amount. The County also had a restatement due to the Processing Plant not being feasible and
therefore eliminated resulting in a reduction in fund balance of $100,763 for receivables that were
previously recognized. The prior period adjustment is reflected in the nonmajor special revenue
fund, Processing Plant, and the General Fund.

Subsequent Events

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the County has evaluated subsequent events for potential
recognition and disclosure through January 30, 2026 — the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

The County is currently awaiting reimbursement from FEMA and the State of North Carolina for
various projects related to Hurricane Helene.

The County has received two additional cash flow loans in fiscal year 2026 for $590,884 and
$3,268,632.

80



‘Ajjigel) uoisuad jau 8y} uo Joays jueoyiubis e aAey 0} pajoadxa ale ey} ajep Buiodal sAUnoD By} pue ajep JuswaINseaw ay} usamiaq pabueyd ou alam alay |

sabueyo uondwnssy
sebueyo yyeusg
:9|Npayos o0} sajoN

‘pajou Jeaf Buioda. ayj 0} joud Jeak suo g aunp Jo 8jep JusLiaiNseaw ay) Jo se pajussaid SI UOHBULIOLU],,

()]
£
@
(0]
=
0
O
[a0]
©
N
[a2]
o
[42]
o

*9)el xapul puoq |edidiunw Jdwaxa Jeak-0z sy ul 8bueyd ay} uo paseq %E6'E O} %G9'E WOJ) PASEaIOUl SBM UIN}SI JO 8)el pawnsse ay |
€eC°/LS  $ 02.°G/S $ 996062 $ 80S18Z $ €/5692 $ 8¥LLES $ 68FVES 8z1L08¢  $ LEG'v¥ $ 6¥0C98 $
G88Z/Z  $ €lE'€/Z $ 80966E $ G/V0LF $ E€vEL9G $ G20999  $ 889°0GL €L.°0¥8 ¢ 86098 $ 105°G60°L $
SLv'vee 688°2/2 cLeele 809°66€ S.V0LY €ve’19G 620999 889°06. cLL0v8 86098
0Lv'8¥ 8zy 662'921 198°0. 89896 289'86 £99'v8 52006 692°02 £25'v€T
(9g2) - (L8%) (00s'81) (615'6) (000‘01) (0oo0‘01) (0os‘ol) - (000°L1)
(zog'c2) (1oL'2) (66€°21) (y¥z'92) (160's€) (eev'vy) (9ev'et) (062'62) (g28'01) (896'¥9)
902 8zy 252 198'G 1811 z89'c) €9l Gzs 692'02 £25'Ge
20e'LL $ L0L'L $ eeeeyl $ vrL'60L $ LB00EL $ €ev'eEL  $ 9€6°L€L 06.'62L $ €.80% $ 8S6'v9C  $
811064 $ €€06¥Y8 $ 765069 $ €86°1G. $ 916'9e8 $ €4.46L°L $ 1/1°G8T'L 1¥8°022°) ¢ GILS'80E’L  $ 0SG'/G6L $
¥6.°92. 811706/ €£0'678 7657069 €86°1G. 91698 €LL°161°1 11768Z°) 1¥8°022°L GLG'80EL
¥2£'€9 516'8S (6EH'8S1) 68€°1L9 £€6'v8 158'09¢ Y0v'L8 (98€'v9) ¥19'/8 G£0'679
(zog'c2) (1Lo1°2) (66€°21) (Yvz'92) (160°G€) (eev'v) (9ev'ey) (062'62) (e18°0%) (856°%S)
1€0°L1 99%'09 (82'09) (06¢€°12) 0€5'62 0s€'Ll2 9912 (c18'951) (g1g'zL) (z96'St)

- (6z2'€e) (o9t'c€LL) 11€'62 - LSL°LE - (e2€°1L1) - 0€2'€09
09492 viv'vl 8/G'G2 80€'92 Ge.'0¢ £28°0¢ 112'82 ¥89'62 ¥98'GH 812'0S
62167 $ soe've $ LzL.S $ 86£.G $ 6665 $ 996°G9 $ €9v°00) 9g6'c0l  $ 10Z'S6 $ L¥b'96 $

49102 wL10Z 8102 6102 0202 b20Z +220T €202 V20T +wG20Z

I 3Inpayds

sieaA |easiq ua] jseT

(19ssv) Aniqer uoisuad 3oN ay3 ur sabueyg ayj yo a|Npayos

eujjoie) yuoN ‘Ajuno) ebnejepp

}SNI] 8]qe20Aa.I| 82UBMO|lY Uoljesedag |e19adg ,S19910 JusWadIog Me

(q) Buipua-u
Buiuuibag-u

(e) Buipua-A
Bujuuibag-A

$20Z ‘0 dUN[ JO 8jep JUBWBINSESYY 8} JO SE S| UoeuLojUY,

(q) - () Burpua-Ayiqer uoisuad joN

od jau ue|d
od jau ue|d

uonisod jau ueid ul abueys jaN

BYio
SUOIINQIUOD JO punjey
asuadxa aAljessIuIwpY

SUOIINQLIUOD Jaquiaw jo spunyal Buipnjoul ‘sjuswAed ysuag

SWODUl JUSW)SOAUI JoN
Jaquiawi-suonngluo)
Jakojdwa-suonnguiuo)

uonisod jau ue|d

el uoisuad |ejo|
el uoisuad |ejo|

Apger) uoisuad |ejoy ul abueyd jaN

suoiNQUIU0d Jaqwiaw Jo spunjal Buipnjoul ‘sjuswAed jyouag
sjndui Jayjo pue suondwnsse jo sabueyd

aoualladxa |enjoe pue pajoadxa usamiaq aoualiayiq

sabueyd yysuag
1s8I8)U|
1S00 92IMI9G

Ayiger) uoisuad |ejo |

81



030326 BCC Meeting

'6102-dIN @1eas Buisn Ajjeuonelsusb
payoafold usy) ‘26" AQ palidiyinw pue Jeak suo piemioy }os ‘sa|qe} saauljey A1ejes 010Z-dnd Uo paseq juswallal Jaye pouad ay) Joj sajel Ajjelow juswalial-}sod
'6102-dIN @eos buisn Ajjeuonesasuab psemuoy pajosfoid ‘sajge} seakojdw A1ojes 01 0Z-qnd uopaseq aJe sajel A)ijeow juswalilai-ald Ajjenopn

| ‘osuadxa Juswisanul uejd uoisuad JO J8U ‘%GZ'E  UIN}OY JO d)ey JUSWI)SOAU|
1 ‘%G/ "/ - GZ'€ wouy Buibuel ‘@o1A18s Uo paseq sasealou| Aleles

%0S°C uonepu|

“Juswiainseaw ay} ui papnjoul spouad |je o} padde ‘suondwnsse [euenjoe Buimoljoy sy Buisn ‘420z ‘0E @uUnr JO Se Bjep Uo paseq painsesw Sem Jd1 oyl

:a|npayds 0} S8joN

e [eosy Joud 8y} Jo 0§ dUN[ JO BBp JUBLISINSES) 8} JO S S| UOHBULIOJU/,

%S1'8¢ %15°0€ %¥8'GL %¥0vL %vy el %¥0°€C %91°€C %96°¢€L %26'G)L %0882
GeL/€8°) 085°'€88°L €10°2€8°L ¥1G6'G00°C ¥1G6'G00°C z6s°20€C z6s°20€C 9eL'zeL'e 62Z'118'C Z61°€66°C
%¥Sve %61°Ce %98 LG %9529 %6.L°L9 %19°GS %1 ¥'8S %9889 %08°G9 %96°GS

€€C°L1S $ ozr'G.s ¢ 98606 § 80Si8C $ €.569¢ $ 8vLlES  $ 68¥'¥ES  $ 8cL'08€e  § LeGivy  § 6¥0C98  §

G88°C/Z €le'ese 809°66€ SLv'0LY £YE° 195 G20°999 889°05. €1L2°0v8 816098 105'560°}

811062 ¢ ceo6v8 ¢ ¥6S'069 § €86°LS. $ 9le'9es  § €22°/6V'L $ L/1's82°L $ iv8'0cet $ S1G'80et § 06G°.S6°L $

%9102 =L10C «»810C «»610C «»020C =«$20C #»CC0C «»€C0C A «»GC0C

siea ) |eosi4 ua] jse]
(3ossy) Ajiqer uoisuad 39N dy3 Jo dNpaydg

}SNJ| 9]qed0A3.I| ddueMO||y uoljeledag |e1oadg ,S1ad1O JUSWATIOUT MEeT
eujjoie) ypuoN ‘Auno) ebnejepn
¢ dInpaydg

$20Z ‘0E BuN[ JO 8)ep JUBWBINSEBAY\ Y] JO SB SI UOHBULIOJU],

Jlo1Aed paianod jo abejusoiad e se Ayjigel| uoisuad joN

JjoJAed paltono)

Ayjiqer) uoisuad |ejo} 0} uoiisod jau ueld jo oney
Ajpgel uoisuad 1oN
uonysod jau ueld

(7d.L) Aungery uoisuad ejo |

82



030326 BCC Meeting

'6102-dIN @1eos buisn Ajjeuonjessusb
pajosfoid uayy ‘26" Aq paljdiinw pue Jeak auo piemioy }os ‘sa|qe} saalllay Alejes 01.0zZ-dnd UO paseq juswalnal Jaye pouad ay) Joj sajel Ajjelow juswalfel-}sod

‘6102-dI\ 8/e2s Buisn Ajjeuonelauab piemioy pajosfoid ‘so|qe} seakojdwg A1ojes 010Z-Nd UOPaSEq aie sajel Ajl|elow juswalnal-ald Ajjeuopn
‘Ayaionpoud pue uonepul Buipnjoul ‘%G, "/ 0} GZ'¢ wolj buibues adinies uo paseg sasealoul Aieles

%08 uoneju|

asuadxa Juawysanul ueld uoisuad jo Jau ‘uoljejul Buipnioul ‘% e e uIn}ay JO ajey JusWisanu|

S]OSSe JO anjeA j1asep poyjaw uolen|ea }assy

9)ep JuswainNseaw ‘gz0g ‘0¢ aunr jo se Bujulewal sieak g'7  pouad uopezipowe Bujuleway

paso|0 ‘Jejjop [9AST] poyjaw uonezipowy

aby A3 poylaw }so9 [euenjoy

202 ‘0E dUN( papus Jeak sy} Joj S8Jel UOINQL)UOD SUILLIBISP 0} PaSn suoidwnsse pue spoysiy

pepodal 81e suoiNGUIUOD YdIYM Ul JESA [0Sl BU} JO pus By} 0} Joud SIBak OM} ‘g Bun( JO Se Paje|Nojed ale sajel UORNGLIUOD Paulwls)op AjjeLENioy :8)ep uonenjep
:9|npayos 0} sajoN

%LL'T %98°L %L6°G %679 %G6°9 %86°G %29'G %05 | %EY'6 %6Y°9 lloxAed paianoo jo ebejusoied e se suopnqguIuod
08G'€88°L ¢ 882'€C8’L $ €L0°2€8°L $ ¥LG'S00C $ ¥IG'S00'C $ ¢8S'L0€'T $ 26SL0€'T $ 9eL'Tel'T $ seelleT § zev'eeeT $ lloxAed paianoo sfunog
85502 $ (oz6'Ly) ¢ (9gp) $ (pSLy) ¢ (eoz'oe) ¢ (S06'82) ¢ 98Z'cy $ 29671l $ (222'66) $ 9l¥'e $ (sse0x8) Aousolep uolNqLUILOY
1TL'6€E 66€'chL v¥.'601 160°0E} ger'eel 9¢6°L€1 06.'621 €/8'0v 856792 0SE'v61 uOBNQUIUOD palinba A|[ENJOBUOD U} O} UOE[SI Ul SUORNGLIUOD
G8Z°09 $ 6.L'S6 $ 80e'60L $ ¥vS'88 ¢ o€z'e0L ¢ L€0'6OL  $ 9:0CLL ¢ Ovg'z8L ¢ lsL'soL  $ 992461 § uonnquiu0d Jekojdwe paulwiR}ep AllEUENOY
9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 1202 ze0e €202 ¥z0z 5202
slea) |easiq ua] jseq
suonnquuo) AJuno) jo ajnpayoss
ISNJ] 9|qed0A3.l] ddUBMO||y uonjeiedag |e1oadg ,S1921}JO JUdWADIOUT MET]
¢ 9|npayoss eujjose) yuoN ‘Aunon ebnejepy

83



suondwnsse jo sabuey)

sabueyo yyeuag
a|npayos 0} sajoN

NN

‘pajou teak Buipoda. ay) 0} Joud Jeak auo Og aunp Jo djep JuslaINSeaw ay} JOo Se pajuasaid S uoewIoul,

D
£
@
Q
=
0
O
[a0]
©
N
™
o
3

%E6°€ 0} %G9°E WOl pabueyo sjel Junodsip ay} 20z 104
%8182 %ET' 8L %¥G 61 %2102 %181 %6602 %0E" VL %8yl %8Y°12
8ZL'09L°0L $ ZLS'GLL0L $ PE80OSYLL $ 6GZ'SZ8LL $ 6S2'GZ8'LL $ Z¥0L/0'WL $ €bSL9E'SL $ €61°098'GL $ L¥S966°LL $
%96°22 %.LY'SY %80" %SG v %Y Ly %68°Zh %S.°2S %195 %09" LY
116298C $ 129'€S6'L ¢ S99tz $ 1G8'8/€T $ 8Gv'eE6C $ €G2'SS6'C  $ L/6'96LC $ 0SLLELT $ 29L998°C  §
120°€58 GEL'829°L Gv.'89.°L 6SY'LL6'L ¥G1°850°C 19£'612C G11.TGYT 299'8.5C €Zr'LISE
961°€9. 120°€S8 GEL'8Z9'L Gv1'89L°L 657 1L16°1 ¥51°8G0°C L9€612C G11TGV'T 299'8/SC
GZ8'68 vL2'6LL 0Lo‘ovL vLLTYL S62 YL 109'091L vLY'cee 188621 192°2€6
(008') - (000°52) (8esz1) (0oo0°c1) (ooo'cl) (oos'c1) - (000 %1)
(002'021) (008201) (ooL‘zel) (00S‘L¥L) (oog'6EL) (00s'9z1) (00g‘c0l) (oog‘oLL) (00g“L1L)
688°L viLL'0L oLe'ze A TNA> G62'CY 1099 vLLL 188621 199°0Z1
9e¥'202 $ 0082/8 $ 008'v9Z $ 000'v92 $ 008262 $ 005c62 $ 000°6Y¢ $ 00€0LL $ 00v'.6 $
ZE6'GLL°E 95£°785°C 0L¥ZL0Y 0LE°062Y Z12'266'Y YL9VLL'S 256V ZLY'9LLY G8G°//E°L
A ZE6'GLLE 9G€7Z85°E 0L¥ZL0Y 0LE°062 Y Z12'266'Y vI9'vLL'S 2SL°6v9'y ZIvoLLY
186'89% (926'¢€1) ¥50°0EY 006212 206°'10.L 20¥'Z81L (298'2S) 099'99 €11°199°C
(002°0z1) (008°201) (oolzz1) (00S°1¥1) (0oos6E1) (0oos'9z1) (008°c01) (oog0L1) (001 11)
G66'79Z (102'602) (88¢°16%) €90'vC) S6E0LL G¥8°0¢C (159'900°1) (8ze's0L) (zvi'601)

- (025'991) 6.1'G0.L (Lz6'vLL) (806'662) (098'%91) 998'9LL (288'991) (€9t°209)

- - - - - - - - 160°G26°C
G958zl 6.£'70L 00¥‘eel vr129lL zTe’lS)L Gle'9LL 122'8L1 Y9521 0z€°081
121961 $ 919'6te $ €96'%02 $ vLL'sve $ £68'c.2 $ zvs'oce $ 96v°0GE $ 119'6.2 $ 10062 $

1102 8102 6102 0z0Z 1202 2202 €202 ¥z0z 6202

v aInpayag

LSoney paje|ay pue (Jossy) A

siea )\ [e9SI4 dUIN }seT]
eI 9340 39N 2y} Ul sabuey ay jo anpayas

ISnu] 9|qed0AaLl| spyauag JuswAhojdwg 3sod J9Yl0
eujjoie) ypuoN ‘Auno) ebnejepn

llo1Aed aakojdwa pasanod jo abejusodiad se Ayjigei] 9340 18N ueld
llo1Aed aakojdwa paiano)

Aynqen

9340 [ejo] 8y} jo abejusoiad e se uolisod JoN Aseionpid ueld

(q) - () Buipua-Anjiqel] 9340 19N

(q) Buipua-uonisod jau Aseronpyy ueld
Buiuuibag-uonisod jau Aseronpyy ueld

uonisod jau Aseionpyy ueld uir abueys jaN

asuadxa aAljelSIuILPY

SUONQIUOD Jaquiaw Jo spunyas Buipnjoul ‘syuswiAed Jyauag
QWOOUI JUSWISAAUI }JON

Jaquiaw-suonNguuoD

Jako|dwa-suoinqgiuod

uonisod jau Aseronpyy ueld

(e) Buipua-Ayijiqel) g3dO IlejoL
ButuuiBag-Ayjiqer g3do [ejoL

Aynqer g3do [ejo3 ut abueyd jaN

SUONQIIUOD Jaquiaw Jo spunjas Buipnjoul ‘sjuswied jyauag
sinduj Jayjo pue suondwnsse jo sabuey)

oouaadxa |enjoe pue pajoadxa usamiaq adualaylq
sabueyo jyeuag

Jsauay|

}S00 92IAIBS

Ayngen g3do [eloL

84



030326 BCC Meeting

"J9)e| pue /£0Z J0} 0G'H 0} Buisealoap GzZ0Z 104 %G 9 S}S00 pual) aiesy)esH
'6102-dIN @deos Buisn Ajjeuoiesauab pajosfoid ‘sieak aaiyy

3oeq 19s ‘9|qe) S9N}l pajdesIp [el1aua) 010Z-dnd :(pawuoyun) pajgesia '610zZ-dW aeds Buisn Ajjeuonessusb pajosfoid ‘9,26 Ag palidiinw pue Jeak auo piemioy }os
‘a|qe) sealnal A1vjes 01L0z-and :(pawuoyun) AyyeaH ‘6L0Z-dN :21eas Buisn Ajjeuonelauab pajosfoid ‘ejge) seakojdwa A1ajes 010z-dnd :(pawuojun) Juswalnay-ald

'6102-dIN @deog Buisn Ajjeuonelsoush pajosfoid ‘sajewsy Joy JeaA BUO YOB( 18S ‘SO|eW Joj SIESA 981y} pIeMIO) }9S ‘9|qe) Seallal pajgesip Ayleyop
[elauan) 010Z-dnd :(jesousn) pajgesiq "610Z-dIN @/eas Buisn Ajjeuonessusb psajosfold ‘ssjews) 4o} paisnipeun ‘ssjew 1o} %96 Aq paldiinw pue sieak om} piemioy}
19S ‘a|ge) seaunal [elauan) 0L0Z-dnd :(jessusn) AyyesH '6L0Z-dW :o[edas Buisn Ajjeuonesausb pajosfoid ‘s|ge) seakojdws |eleusas 0L0Z-qnd :(|eisusn) Juswaliay-aid

GZ0Z Jeak [eosy 10} %GZ'E ulnyal Jo 8jel JUSWISIAU|

‘sleak Gg Jano 9,Gz'c 0} umop Buipelb seakojdwig [eIoUSD) 10} %GZ'Q PUE ‘SIESA Of JOAO %GZ S 0} umop Bulpelb seakojdwg paswloyun Jo} %G /") ‘92IAI8S Uo paseq

Auaizonpoud pue uoiejur Buipnjoul sasealoul Alejeg

%0G°¢ 8jel uonejul

anje/ 19)ep poyjaw uoljen|ea }Jassy

202 ‘0€ dunr woJj sieak-9z pouad uoneziowe Buluieway

0202 ‘0S dunr Jo se Jejjop [9A8] Jeak Qg paso|D poylaw Uofeziowy

poyjaw }s09 [elienjoe abe Ajug poyiaw }s09 |elienjoy

juswainseaw g0z ‘0g dunr JO Se %E6'S PUB £20Z ‘0 duUn( JO SB %G9'¢ a)el Junoasiq

$202Z ‘0€ eunr :ejep juswainsesyy

‘panodal aie suoiNgUIU0D YdIym Ul JeaA [Bosl) 8y} JO pua ay) 0} Jolid Jeak auo ‘g¢ aunp JO Se Ajjlenuuelq paje|nodjed ale sajel UoiNguIuod paulwlalap Ajjeuenioy :ajep uoienjep

:$8)eJ ,UoNNQLIUOD paulwIelep Alleuenoe, ysiigelss 0} pasn suoidwnsse pue spoyisiy
a|npayos 0} S9JON

Jl0JAed palanood jo abejuadlad e se suoinguuod

uonNQLIUOD paulwialep Ajlelenioe
8y} 0} UOHEJa] Ul SUOKNQLIU0D

%L6'} %658 %8E'C %0€°Z %81°Z %S1°C %8¥'C %ZL0 %16°G %LY'E

06.'Z1G'0L $ 8zL'09L'0L $ zLG'Svi'0L § ves'osvlL $ 6Sz'Se8'LL $ vpe'eed'€l § Lv0'LL0WL $ €vGL9E'GL § €62'098'SL $ LvS'966'LZL $ llo)ked paianod

(162's¢) $ (rri'e69) ¢ (520%2) $ (gze'oe) $ _86¢v) $ (v2'01) $_8I1¥'6LL $_cev'voe ¢ (G19'zes)  $ (SozhhiL) ¢ (sseoxe) Aousioyep uonngiuod

9ev'202 008228 000952 000792 008'.5¢2 005'€62 000'6¥€ 00€'0L1 00%'L€6 €18'219

G89'LLL $ 999641 $ Gze'esz ¢ z.9lze $ sel'ciz ¢ €S.T8 $ siv'eoy $ SeLviy $ S8L'viy § 809lvy  $  UOBNQLIUOD paululsiep Ajjelentoy
9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 1202 2202 €202 vzoz 5202

§ aInpayag

SIedA |eosiq ua] jseT
suonnquuo) A&Junoy Jo s|NpPayss

Jsni] ajqedoAadl] syyauag juawhojdws 3sod J8Yyjo
eujjose) yuoN ‘Ajuno) ebnejepy

85



030326 BCC Meeting

%86°0

%180

%ce’ |

%08l %S1L'Z %LE0 %.0°0 %EL'S %b0'Y asuadxe JUSLISSAUL JO JouU ‘Uinjal Jo Sjel pajyBlom-Aouow [enuuy

Lloc

9 a|npayos

8L0c

610C

020¢ X414 ceoe €20¢C 1£A\4 14114

sieaA |edasi{ aulN iseT
suinjay JUawW)saAuU| Jo aINpayos

Jsni] a|qedoAall] spyauag Juswhojdwz 3sod 13yl
euijoie) yuopN ‘A&junon ebnejepp

86



‘ueld Y397 8y} ul seskojdws juedionued (e oy abejusdiad swes ay) aq [|IM SIUL 4

‘0¢ aunp Buipus JeaA |eosly Joud a8y} JO Se paulwslep alam Jeak |eosiy yoes Joj pajuasald sjunowe ay| ,

o

£

©

o)

=

]

O

m

©

N

e}

=

2}

=}

%6086 %LV'16 %81 ¥6 %€9'L6 %9806 %19'88 %1556 %0106 %61'C8 %0€°€8
%lv'L %SG vE %lL€C %L9'vE %1 28€ %€0°8Y %6S°0¢ %¥9°0L %19°LL %0289
06S'9€5'0L $ 108'C89°0L $ 180°cl80L 66€°0€E'LL $ L€0°22L°LL $ €eL'¥ELTL $ zesle6eCL $ vrO'8e9'cl § 9zsiei'sk § L9zolL'sh §
€80°18. $ 1vL'069'c $ €82'¥95T L9e°'gz6'c ¢ €10°00S'Y $ G19'8e8's $ lel‘ess’c § ,98'ce9'6  $ LigeesoL § €L9'cizOL $
%¥0v.L1°0 %06€.1°0 %S8291°0 %65591°0 %8L¥91°0 %L1E9L0 %81991°0 %Z12021°0 %1G€91°0 %268S51°0

9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 ¥4114 ceoe €202 veoe §20e

1 3Inpayog

,SIEBA [BOSIH US] }SET]

(S¥397) waysAg Juswaliay ,sdakojdwg JuswUIdA0Y |ED0T]

(3@ssy) Ajijiqer] uoisuad }9N @y} jo aleyg ajeuoipiodoid s,A)unod ay} Jo ajnpayosg

euljote)d yuoN ‘Ajuno) ebnejeppy

«+ Agel| uoisued
|e10} 8y} jo abejusalad e se uonisod Jau Aseionply ueld

ll0JAed aakojdwa paianod sy jo abejusoiad e se (Josse)
Ayjiger) uoisuad jau 8y jo aseys sjeuoptodoud s,Aluno)

|joiAed aakojdwa paianod s,Auno)

$ (jesse)
Ajigen) uoisuad jau ay} jo aseys ajeuonsodosd sAunod

% (19sse) Ayjigel| uoisuad jau ay} jo uoiiodoud s,AlUuno)

87



o
=
@
L}
=
@]
O
oM
©
I8
e}
=
IS}
=}

%S89 %8¢’ L %19'L %96°L %9€°0} %SG L1 %veCTh %SLEL %S6°€L lloJked

paJ1ano9 jo abejussiad e se suolnqgliuo)

108'289°0L $ 180°cL8'0L $ 66E0EE’LL $ LE0°LLLLL $ zes'lee ¥¥0'8€9'EL 9zs°'1ZL 'Sl L9z‘0LL'GL v62'Sye’ L) lloJAed paianod sAunod

- $ N $ N $ N ¢ B $ B - - - $ (sse@9x8) Aousioyap uonnquUIuo)

191°zeL GLL'86L 8/8°198 6G€°LE6 GEO'V8Z'L 8Y.'GLG"L 106'G98‘L €€9'G90'C 9.v'90v'C uonnqyuod paiinbal

Ajlenjoeljuod sy} 0} uofe[al Ul suoiNgUIUoD

191°zeL $ GlLL'86L $ 878198 $ 65€°,€6 $ geo'v8et  $ 8vL'GLSL 106'G98‘L €€9'G90'C av'oor'e  $ uoinquyuod paiinbal Ajlenjoenuo)

9loe 102 8102 6102 1202 [44114 €202 v2oe 14114

g a|Npayos

SIBOA [BOSIH UB] JseT
wiaysAg juswalley ,soakojdwig [eJUBWUIBAOY) [B207]

suopnquuo) s,Ajunon
eujjosen yuoN ‘Ajunon ebnejepy

88



()]
£
@
(0]
=
0
O
[a0]
©
N
[a2]
o
[42]
o
‘ueld SY397 8y} ul seakojdwa juedioued |je o) abejusoiad swes sy} aq ||IM SIUL .
'0€ aunp Buipus JeaA |eosyy Jold 8y} JO Se paulwialep alom Jeak |eosyy yoes oy pajuasald sjunowe ayj ,
%62 L6 %ZL1°09} %LL €S %LEESL % v9lL %29 ELL %€G°9G 1} %¥0°6EL %YL GEL %L9°€El « AYIIge uoisuad
|ejo} ay} jo abejuadlad e se uonisod Jau Aleonpy ue|d
(00s'zsL) ¢ (992'%zL) ¢ (PSO'LLL) ¢ (0s0'zoL)  $ (v9z'LLL) ¢ (zes'zvl) ¢ (19g'6zL)  $ (€1228) ¢ (Lv6'SL) $ (oov'0r) $ $ (tosse)
Ajigen uoisuad jau ay) jo aleys ajeuoniodold s,Ajuno)
(62659°0)  (¥£2990)  (29059°0) (€1919°0) (65£95°0) (10229°0) (06529°0) (21¥29°0) (561€9°0) (56019°0) % (1osse) Ajjiqel| uoisuad jau ayj jo uoipodold sAuno)d

910C AN 810¢C 610C 0coc XA 114 (44114 €20¢C veoe §20C

LSIBaA |Be0SI4 Ua] iseT
(4dSaoy) pun4 uoisuad |eyuawalddng ,spaaq jo J19)sibay

(y@ssvy) Aujiqer] uoisuad 39N 3y} jo aleys ajeuoipodold s,Ajunon ayj} Jo ajnpayss
eujjoien ypon ‘Ajuno) ebnejepy

6 9INpayas

89



D

=

3

(0]

=

@]

O

m

©

N

s

o

[s]

o

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $_ - ¢ - $_ - $ (sse0xa) Aousioyep uonnqLIuOY

2sr's €59'G €L2'S 1S€'S 956G AN 168°L IPL'6  vLO0L 269°LL uonNqguIUoD palinbal
Al[enioeljuoo 8y} 0} Uole|al Ul SUORNQIIU0D

Zsv's $ €59'S $ €2s ¢ 215€¢ ¢ 996G $ cCii's  $ 168L ¢ ivi'e $ viO'OL $ 269LL $ uonnquod paiinbai Ajjenjoenuod

9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 120z zeoz €202 v20zT 5202

0l 3Inpayds

SIea [eosi4 U] 1seT
(4dSaoy) pun4 uoisuad |eyuswajddng ,spaaq jo 19)sibay

suonnquuo) s,Ajunon
eujjoien ypioN ‘Aunon ebnejepn

90



030326 BCC Meeting

‘ueld SY397 9y} ul siekojdwa juedionued (e Joj abejuasiad swes 8y} 89 |[IM SIUL .

‘0¢ aunr Buipus Jeak |eosly Jold 8y JO Se paulwielep alam Jeak [eosl yoes 1o} pejuasald sjunowe ayj ,

«Aligey uoisuad [ejo) ay)
%b920L  %6.'86 %6086 %LY'16 %8L¥6 %0026 %0026 %L v8 %6128 %0€'€8 jo obejusoiad e se uopisod Jou Asepnpy ueld

JloJAed palanoo
s}l Jo abejusalad e se (jasse) Ajjigel) uoisuad

%8¢°0l %96°¢Y %08°L¢ %L10°0% %0¢'6€ %9S"¢Y %cC6'81 %L1€°0.L %cC8'€L %16'V9 Jou ay} Jo aleys ajeuoiodoid shiioyiny
Liz'sgL $ 98leyL $ sze'esL $ eeL'esl  § 266°GZL $ Lel'elL  $ 0/8'GZL ¢ S00v6L $ 2ol'ele § L009vC $ lloJAed pasanod sAoyiny

¢ (yesse) Aunqgel uoisuad
088'Zh $ ¥e€l9  $ GoL'Zy  $ GGL'T9  $ 61889 $ 0.6'€L $ 6/T'€E $ €TS9EL $ G9ELSL $ O¥8'6SL $ Jou By jo aseys ejeuoiodoid shoyiny

9 (1osse)
%.8200'0  %682000 %9.2000 %cC92000 %cZS200'0 %.L02000 %Z1200'0 %C¥2000 %8EC00'0  %.LECO00 Ajnge) uoisuad yau 8y} jo uoipodoud s Aoyiny

9loc Lioe 8l0c 6102 020C X411 ceoe €202 yeoe §20C

LSIEa A |eosi4 ua] Jseq
waysAg Juswoainey ,s9akojdwig |EJUSWUIBAOL) |20
uonjewJoju] Azeyuswajddng pasinbay

(L3SSV) ALIMIAVIT NOISNId 13N FHL 40 JUVHS FLVNOILYOdO¥d S.ALRMOHLNY JHL 40 31INAIHOS
(ALNNOD VONV.LVM 40 LINN LNINOdIWOI V)
ALIMOHLNY LNJNdOTIAIA NSIRINOL N LOIRILSIA ALNNOD VONVLIVM

L1 3Inpayds

91



030326 BCC Meeting

%Ll L %ve L %88, %18°L %668 %810l %v6°01 %L0¢Cl %ce€L %09°€l
9822yl $ 8ze'esL § €zL'ssL § L99'G2L § L6eL'€lL $ 0/8'GLL $ S00V6L $ C9LELe $ L009vC $ 09518 $
, $__- $__- $__- $__- $__- $__- $__- $__- $__ - $

Lvz'ol LvZ'LL Lz2°C L9'€L 619'GL 168'LL 9zz'ie 0L9'se 9G6.'z¢ z62'8¢e
bwe'or  $ ZvehL  $ Zezer  $ 1alL'el $ 6L9GL  $ 68LL § 922le  § 0196 § 96.C¢  $ C6Z8E  $

9loc yALII4 8L0¢c 6L0¢C \TA 114 (X414 (44114 €202 veoe §20e

wiv)sAg Juawalley ,saakojdwg JuswWUIdAOL) [B20]

Siea) |eosiq ud] jse]
uonjewJoju] Azeyuswajddng pasinbay

SNOILNGI™YLNOD S.vadl N 1OI™M1SId ALNNOD VONVLIVM
(ALNNOD VONVLVM 40 LINN LNINOJINOD V)
ALIR™MOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIA NSIRINOL N LOIRILSIA ALNNOD VONV.LVM

Z1 aInpayos

jjoJAed
pa1an09 jo abejuadiad e se suolngUIuoD

|loJAed palanod sAjioyiny

(ss@oxa) Aouaioyap uonlngUIuoD

uonnguuod palinbai
Al[enjoesjuod ayj 0} uoljelal ul SUoiNGUIU0D

uonNgUIU0o palinbai Ajjenioenuo)

92



030326 BCC Megtifgiule 1

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES:
Taxes - ad valorem:
Current year $ 45,960,736
Prior years 500,191
Advertising and interest 179,253
Total Taxes - ad valorem $ 45,407,982 46,640,180 $ 1,232,198
Taxes - other:
Local option sales taxes 20,860,594
Real estate transfer tax 960,735
ABC Bottle tax 24,755
Heavy equipment rental tax 14,990
Gross receipts tax 75,722
Video programming tax 203,100
Total Taxes - other 22,172,800 22,139,896 (32,904)
Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
Miscellaneous revenues from Towns 3,364,279
Medicaid hold harmless 2,885,092
Tax collection fees 192,648
Occupancy tax administrative fee 45,701
Payments in lieu of taxes 35,229
Total Unrestricted Intergovernmental 5,679,229 6,522,949 843,720
Restricted Intergovernmental:
Grants-Federal and State 4,991,989
Public School Building Capital Fund - Lottery 316,670
Court facilities fees 65,614
Total Restricted Intergovernmental 7,507,954 5,374,273 (2,133,681)
Permits and Fees:
Sheriff's office permits and fees 106,540
Planning and inspection fees 400,885
Register of deeds fees 282,031
Fire inspection fees 31,918
Child Support fees 27,554
Total Permits and Fees 796,439 848,928 52,489
Sales and Services:
POA services 7,893
TDA Financial and other services 24,000
Recreation fees 2,009,900
Reimbursement for Inmates 8,612
Rent 215,683
Lease revenue 180,552
DMV notary/passport processing fees 225,867
Town of Boone consolidated 911 436,737
Town of Beech Mountain medic services 434,828
Election revenues 5
Total Sales and Service 3,203,926 3,544,077 340,151
Investment earnings: 151,000 3,382,748 3,231,748
Miscellaneous:
Other 3,151,499
Donations 564,138
Total Miscellaneous 4,142,701 3,715,637 (427,064)
TOTAL REVENUES 89,062,031 92,168,688 3,106,657

93



030326 BCC Megtifgiule 1

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Final Budget Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
General Government
Governing Body:
Salaries and benefits $ 63,200
Operating expenses 8,196
Total Governing Body $ 71,452 71,396 $ 56
Administration:
Salaries and benefits 659,315
Operating expenses 13,531
Total Administration 681,100 672,846 8,254
Finance:
Salaries and benefits 355,861
Operating expenses 122,726
Total Finance 637,252 478,587 158,665
Tax Administration:
Salaries and benefits 886,217
Operating expenses 385,901
Total Tax Administration 1,356,421 1,272,118 84,303
Tax Revaluation:
Operating expenses 243,361
Total Tax Revaluation 554,618 243,361 311,257
Tag Office:
Salaries and benefits 289,140
Operating expenses 3,892
Total Tag Office 316,106 293,032 23,074
Legal Services:
Operating expenses 116,000 82,307 33,693
Court facilities:
Operating expenses 2,000 864 1,136
Board of Elections:
Salaries and benefits 423,900
Operating expenses 148,664
Total Board of Elections 578,105 572,564 5,541
Register of Deeds:
Salaries and benefits 611,595
Operating expenses 73,284
Capital outlay 8,817
Total Register of Deeds 724,442 693,696 30,746
General Administration:
Operating expenses 1,181,586
Total General Administration 2,078,050 1,181,586 896,464
Information Technologies:
Salaries and benefits 614,197
Operating expenses 637,462
Capital outlay 135,972
Total Information Technologies 1,429,885 1,387,631 42,254

94



Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Maintenance:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Maintenance

Public Buildings:
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Public Buildings

Total General Government

Public Safety
Sheriff's Office:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Sheriff's Office

Detention Center:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Detention Center

Emergency Services:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Emergency Services

Emergency Management:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Emergency Management

Planning and Inspections:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Total Planning and Inspections
Other Emergency Services:
Animal Control:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Total Animal Control
Total Public Safety

Transportation
Transportation:

Economic and Physical Development
Special Appropriations:

Economic Development:

Total Economic and Physical Development

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Final Budget

$ 2026028

7,256,327

17,828,686

7,035,238

3,315,262

__ 14,069,834

2779492

861,941

2,810,383

240,670

31,112,820
265,221

744,914
193,845

938,759

Actual

1,927,019
38,130
11,787

1,976,936

2,483,013

1,635,276

4,118,289

13,045,213

5,448,082
593,398
526,490

6,567,970

2,265,242
730,742
4,995

3,000,979

1,608,966
72,891
3,183,507

4,865,364

442,136
2,206,431
71,115

2,719,682

808,132
53,763
861,895

2,641,254

231,399
9,178
240,577

20,897,721

265,221

645,919
100,826

746,745

030326 BCC Megtifgiule 1

Variance

$ 49,992

3,138,038

4,783,473

467,268

314,283

9,204,470

59,810

46

169,129

93

10,215,009

98,995
93,019

192,014

95



030326 BCC Megtifgiule 1

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Final Budget Actual Variance
Environmental Protection
Cooperative Extension:
Salaries and benefits $ 336,683
Operating expenses 19,565
Capital outlay 25,627
Total Cooperative Extension $ 438,214 381,875 $ 56,339
Soil and Water Conservation:
Salaries and benefits 160,341
Operating expenses 12,454
Capital outlay 163,316
Total Soil and Water Conservation 1,147,693 336,111 811,582
Total Environmental Protection 1,585,907 717,986 867,921
Human Services
Public Health: 1,030,000 1,030,000 -
Mental Health: 171,794 171,794 -
Social Services:
Salaries and benefits 4,419,597
Operating expenses 311,243
Capital outlay 73,399
Beneficiary payments 1,251,367
Total Social Services 7,404,481 6,055,606 1,348,875
Project on Aging:
Salaries and benefits 1,325,001
Operating expenses 208,416
Total Project on Aging 1,924,202 1,533,417 390,785
Veterans Services:
Salaries and benefits 162,339
Operating expenses 2,773
Total Veterans Services 169,473 165,112 4,361
Total Human Services 10,699,950 8,955,929 1,744,021
Education
Public Schools - current 17,580,079
Public Schools - capital outlay 3,493,883
Community College - current 1,079,350
Community College - capital outlay 50,000
Total Education 23,299,947 22,203,312 1,096,635
Cultural and Recreational
Library: 818,990 818,990 -
Recreation:
Salaries and benefits 1,817,529
Operating expenses 245,640
Capital outlay 64,972
Total Recreation 2,510,848 2,128,141 382,707
Total Cultural and Recreational 3,329,838 2,947,131 382,707
Debt Service
Principal retirement 6,570,000
Interest and fees 2,400,112
Total Debt Service 8,972,112 8,970,112 2,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 98,033,240 78,749,370 19,283,870
Revenues over (under) expenditures (8,971,209) 13,419,318 22,390,527

96



030326 BCC Megtifgiule 1

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Final Budget Actual Variance

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Sale of capital assets $ 10,000 $ 56,058 $ 46,058

Transfers to Capital Projects Fund (18,416,719) (18,416,719) -

Transfers from Capital Projects Fund 10,594,939 10,594,939 -

Fund balance appropriated 16,782,989 - (16,782,989)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 8,971,209 (7,765,722) (16,736,931)

Net change in fund balance $ - 5,653,596 $ 5,653,596

73,371,258

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year $ 79,024,854

97



030326 BCC Meeting

Watauga County, North Carolina
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budget Actual
Revenues:
Investment earnings - $ 1,539,212
- 1,539,212
Expenditures:
General government 18,658,756 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures (18,658,756) 1,539,212
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds 18,658,756 18,658,756
Transfer to other funds (22,932,246) (22,932,246)
Appropriated fund balance 22,932,246 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 18,658,756 (4,273,490)
Net change in fund balance - (2,734,278)
Fund balance, beginning of year 34,417,090
Fund balance, end of year $ 31,682,812

Schedule 2

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

§_ 1539212
1,539,212

18,658,756

20,197,968

(22,932,246)

(22,932,246)
$ (2,734,278)

98



Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental

Donation of land - Watauga County Schools $

Donations

Total intergovernmental
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Capital outlay - land
Building and improvements
Professional services

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from installment obligations issued
Premium on installment obligations
Transfer from other Funds

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 3
Watauga County, North Carolina
Valle Crucis School Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025
Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable
Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
1,105,000 1,105,000 $ - $ 1,105,000 -
115,000 115,000 - 115,000 -
1,220,000 1,220,000 - 1,220,000 -

- 2,847,047 876,586 3,723,633 3,723,633
1,220,000 4,067,047 876,586 4,943,633 3,723,633
1,305,000 1,286,142 1,285 1,287,427 17,573

50,932,964 26,812,826 17,518,871 44,331,697 6,601,267
3,094,000 3,191,782 477,448 3,669,230 (575,230)
55,331,964 31,290,750 17,997,604 49,288,354 (6,043,610)
(54,111,964) (27,223,703) (17,121,018) (44,344,721) 9,767,243
31,800,000 31,800,000 - 31,800,000 -
2,997,002 2,997,002 - 2,997,002 -
19,314,962 19,314,962 - 19,314,962 -
54,111,964 54,111,964 - 54,111,964 -
- 26,888,261 (17,121,018) $ 9,767,243 9,767,243

26,888,261

9,767,243

99



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 4
Watauga County, North Carolina
Opioid Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmenta’
Opioid settlement funds $ 686,140 $ 464,229 $ (221,911)
Total revenues 686,140 464,229 (221,911)
Expenditures:
Human services 686,140 646,139 40,001
Total expenditures 686,140 646,139 40,001
Net change in fund balance $ - (181,910) $ (181,910)
Fund balance, beginning of year 810,179
Fund balance, end of year $ 628,269

100



Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmenta’
FEMA reimbursement

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 5
Watauga County, North Carolina
Hurricane Helene Disaster Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 10,000,000 $ 3,520,352 $ (6,479,648)

Total revenues 10,000,000 3,520,352 (6,479,648)
Expenditures:
General government 10,895,478 9,141,030 1,754,448
Total expenditures 10,895,478 9,141,030 1,754,448
Revenues over (under) expenditures (895,478) (5,620,678) (8,234,096)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds form State Cash Flow loan 895,478 895,478 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 895,478 895,478 -
Net change in fund balance $ - (4,725,200) $ (8,234,096)

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year

$ (4,725,200)

101



$

S9OUE|Eq PUN) PUE ‘SBIINOSAI JO
SMOJJul PaLIBJep ‘S8

qel| [ejoL

S9oUBleq pUNy [€10 |
Kisjes anand
paubisseun
S92IMIBS Y)|eoH
JuswuIaA0b [e1ouaD

ainels a)ejs Aq uoneziiqels

110} pajoLISaY
:saouejeg puny

S90IN0SaI JO SMOJJUI PaLIBJep [eJ0L
a|qeAl@al saxe |
:S90IN0SAY JO SMOU| PaLBeq

:SIONVIVE ANN4 ANV ‘SIOUNO0SIY 40 SMOT4ANI a3¥¥343a ‘saiLavil

(o]
£
=
(]
(0]
=
@)
@)
m
©
N
s
o
[s]
o
9G1'60S°Ch $ 96/'/2 ¢ 12'82¥'0L $ 666'068 $ oe6El zL6'9 $ sez’zck ¢ 1002 $ 118'€LS $ €9¢e'GLL $ 80.'¢9l $ zve'ee $ 9/€'6vl
G12'889'6 962'22 829'06€'6 (y22'911) S08'cl - - 808'¢ - - 8€0'29L 820'6€ 9.£'6vL
S¥0'€99'6 - LyY'LEe’s - - - - - - - v6L'EVL 820'6€ 9/€'6¥L
(vzL'9uL) - (vzLokL) - - - - - - - - -
¥95°0S 96/°/C - - - - - 808'2Z - - - - -
S08'cl - - - so0g'cl - - - - - - - -
620'8L - 181°6S - - - - - - - yv8'8lL - -
Sle'syl - - - - - - - - Sle'syl - - -
sie'syl - - - - - - - - sie'syl - - -
9z1'2/9'C - 680'8€0° L €22'200') GZlL Z16'9 See'el 661 't 118'€/S 8¥0'/C 0/9°'L 1433 -
856'26S - - - - ZL6'9 sez'el - L18'eLS - - - -
000°000°L - - 000°000°L - - - - - - - - -
891'6.0'L - 680'8€0°L €eL'L scl 66L'% - 8v0'L2 0L9'L y1€ -
9G1'60S'C) 96/'/¢C 112'82¥'0L 666068 0€6°ElL Zl6'9 $ _sezzl  $_L00'/2 $ _118'€LS $ _€9¢e'GL| $ 80.'€9l $_zve'ee $ 9/€'6vlL
G9S'09% - - - - - - - osz'zie sie'syl - - -
Lws'Le - - - - - - - - - - - LSz
€L0'0L - 181°6S - - - - - - 8v0'L2 vve'sL - -
116°126°LL $ 962'/2 ¢ 9e5'69¢'0L $ 666'068 $ og6'El $ ¢i6'9 $ sez'eh $ 100'L2 $ 195'19Z $ - $ vo8'vyl $ zve'ee $ ge8'/zl
spung pung pung pung pung puny puny pung pung spung pung pung pung
|eJUBIUIBAOD) JUETIET T joafoud 109foid jo9foud sainylapio4 Isnip aaked xej| sjousiq wajsAs Xe] asnqy Buneys
Jofewuon Kasunyopn Buipjing L16 jueld 4198 pue sauil4 jo pasQg aAnejuasasday Kouednoog and ILETEYN q ]
lejol ploido Kouabiawg Buissasoid Kouabiawg ajels Jeiapaq

9 9|npayog

spund joafoid

leyded

GZ0Z ‘o aunr

SpuUN4 [eJUBWIUIBAOL) JofewuoN

198yg 9oueleg bBuluiquon

eujjoied yyon ‘Ajunon ebnejepy

spung anuaAay |e19adg JolewuonN

$

$

sjosse [ejo]
18U ‘a|qeAI90a) SOXE ]
9|gBAIBD8I SJUNODDY

sjuawuIanob Jayio woyy ang
sjusjeAInba ysed pue Yseo pajoLlsay

‘s13assv

102



030326 BCC Meeting

G1.'889'6 96.'/2 - 829'06€'6 (vzLoLL) S08°cl - - 808'2C - - $ 8€029L $ 8206 9/€'6vL  $ Jeak Jo pus ‘seoueleq pung
§66'vC - Lie'zee (zeg'eor) (€92°001) €6L'€ - - z8L'61 - - GEV'OLL G€0'8Z §99°zZ1L pajesal
‘1eak jo Buluuibaq ‘@oueleq pun4
(€92°001) - - - (€92°001) - - - - - - - - - juswysnipe pouad Jold
8LL'szl - Le'zee (zzs'eor) - zL0'0k - - 28.'61 - - GEV'OLL Ge0'8Z §99°zZL Jeak Jo Buluuibaq ‘seoueleq pung

092'€99'6 96L°L2 (L1e'zee) 0S1'v6.'6 (196'G1) €6L°€ - - 9z0'c - - €09'GY €66'01 L9z sooue|eq punj ul abueyo jJoN
0.£2'560'CL - (2€0°2v2) L0€'L€€°CL - - - - - - - - - - SosN pue s80Inos Buioueuy Jayjo [ejoL
L0€'LE€'TL - - L0€'L€€°CL - - - - - - - - - - Spun} 18yjo woy Jgjsuel]
(2£0'2¥2) - (2£0'2¥2) - - - - - - - - - - - spuny Jayjo 0} Jaysuel]
(s3sn) S30UNOS ONIONVNI4 ¥3IHLO

(015°LEY72) 9s.'/¢ 92L'6 (261°ev572) (196's1) €6.°€ - - 920 - - €09'SY €660} LLL'9z sainypuadxa Jano
sanuaAal Jo (Aous|olep) sseox]

9Ll'zeV'CL - - €19'61L°C 196'GL 9vv'esi €82'681 yee' vy 268°061 601°0LS°€ SEL'E0C'S 99Z'v€C 180°02 - sainyipuadxa [ejo
268°061 - - - - - - - 268°061 - - - - - S9JIAISS UBWINH
L9L°e€T's - - €19'GLL'C - - - - - - SEL'E0Z'S 99Z'veT 180°0C - Aysyes olgnd
601°025'€ - - - - - - - - 601'0L5°€ - - - - juswdojaAap dlwouooy
¥10'8EY - - - 196°S1L orv'8gL €82'681 14844 - - - - - - JUSWIUIBAOE [esausD
SFAUNLIANIAXT

999°000°0L 96.'LC 92L'6 916zeT - 6€£2°261 €82'681 vZerY 816°c6l 601025 SEL'E0Z'S 698°6.2 080°LE 1129z SdnusAal |ejo]
2/8'25¢C - 92L'6 916zeT - 0¢ - - - - - 16’ 6.9°L 0LL's sbuuiea jusuwisanu|
1YS°1T - N - - - - - - - - - sz S8NUBASI SNoBUE||92sIW 18YI0
¥8Y'GZS 96L'Le - - - 602°Z61 - - - - - 8L1'9.2 Lov'62 - [BJUSWIUIBAOBIB)UI PRJOLISOY
€82'681 - - - - - €82'681 - - S90IAISS pUE SBjeS
vee' vy - - - - - - ey - - - - - - $988) pue sjuIsd
120'9L°€ - - - - - - - 816'c6l 601°025°€ - - - - $8sus2l| pue saxe} JIBYlo
GEL'E0Z'S - - - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - GEL'e0Z'S $ - $ - - $ S9Xe) Walo[eA py
S3INN3IATY

spung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung pung
|ejuswuIBA0D) juswaes yafoid ysfoid yo8foud jo8foid sainjap04 FELITR oaked xe] sjousia wayshg xe] asnqy Buueys
JofewuoN Aesunjol dyv Buiping 116 jueid 4108 Ppue saulg Jo pasg o aid L U
lejor proido Kouabiawz Buissesoid Kouebiloawz ajels |esopad

L aInpayos

spund jo9foid
leydey

Spung anuaAay |e1oadg Jofewuon

GZ0Z ‘0€ dunp papu3 eaA 8y} Jo4
SpuN4 [EJUSWUIBAOS) JoleWUON
saouejeg pun4 ul sabuey) pue ‘sainjpuadx3 ‘senusrsy Jo ainpayog buluiquod
euljose) yyon ‘Ajuno) ebnejepy

103



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 8
Watauga County, North Carolina
Federal Equitable Sharing Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - Federal $ 23,000 $ - $ (23,000)
Other income - 21,541 21,541
Investment earnings - 5,170 5,170
Total revenues 23,000 26,711 3,711
Expenditures:
Public safety 23,000 - 23,000
Revenues over (under) expenditures - 26,711 26,711
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriated fund balance - - -
Net change in fund balance $ - 26,711 $ 26,711
Fund balance, beginning of year 122,665
Fund balance, end of year $ 149,376

104



Watauga County, North Carolina
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - State
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriated fund balance

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budget

$ 28,239

28,239

28,239

28,239

Schedule 9
Variance
Favorable
Actual (Unfavorable)
29,401 $ 1,162
1,679 1,679
31,080 2,841
20,087 8,152
20,087 8,152
10,993 10,993
10,993 $ 10,993
28,035
39,028

105



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 10
Watauga County, North Carolina
Emergency Telephone System Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental:
Emergency Telephone Surcharge funds 226,133 $ 226,133 $ -
911 Radio Grant 49,985 49,985 -
Investment earnings - 3,751 3,751
Total revenues 276,118 279,869 3,751
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Implementation services 5,000 220 4,780
Software 43,715 43,715 -
Training 14,884 9,221 5,663
Telephones 46,534 56,362 (9,828)
Hardware 300,655 123,063 177,592
Furniture 178,800 1,685 177,115
Total expenditures 589,588 234,266 355,322
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriated fund balance 313,470 - (313,470)
Total Other Financing sources (uses): 313,470 - (313,470)
Net change in fund balance - 45,603 $ 45,603
Fund balance, beginning of year 116,435
Fund balance, end of year $ 162,038

106



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 11
Watauga County, North Carolina
Fire Districts Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes $ 5,439,708 $ 5,203,135 $ (236,573)
Total revenues 5,439,708 5,203,135 (236,573)
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Beaver Dam Fire Department 170,750 159,604
Beech Mountain Fire Department 3,042 2,826
Blowing Rock Fire Department 819,129 751,665
Boone Fire Department 1,464,620 1,458,866
Cove Creek Fire Department 385,406 388,008
Creston Fire Department 9,432 7,517
Deep Gap Fire Department 327,421 307,461
Fall Creek Fire Department 15,669 14,249
Foscoe Fire Department 870,774 842,517
Meat Camp Fire Department 378,944 359,481
Shawneehaw Fire Department 201,837 185,111
Stewart Simmons Fire Department 511,358 462,118
Todd Fire Department 89,236 85,729
Zionville Fire Department 192,090 177,983
Total expenditures 5,439,708 5,203,135 236,573
Net change in fund balance $ - - $ -

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year $ -

107



Watauga County, North Carolina
Occupancy Tax Fund

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Revenues:
Occupancy tax

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Tourism development
Administrative fee
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budget

5,000,000

5,000,000

4,950,000

50,000

5,000,000

Schedule 12
Variance
Favorable
Actual (Unfavorable)
3,570,109 $ (1,429,891)
3,570,109 (1,429,891)
3,524,408 1,425,592
45,701 4,299
3,570,109 1,429,891
- $ -

108



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 13
Watauga County, North Carolina
Representative Payee Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ 246,936 $ 193,918 $ (53,018)
Total revenues 246,936 193,918 (53,018)
Expenditures:
Human services
Payments made for the benefit of beneficiaries 246,936 190,892 56,044
Total expenditures 246,936 190,892 56,044
Net change in fund balance $ - 3,026 $ 3,026
Fund balance, beginning of year 19,782
Fund balance, end of year $ 22,808

109



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 14
Watauga County, North Carolina
Deed of Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Permits and fees
Register of deeds $ 75,000 $ 44,324 $ (30,676)
Total revenues 75,000 44,324 (30,676)
Expenditures:
General government
Payments of fees collected to the State of N.C. 75,000 44,324 30,676
Total expenditures 75,000 44,324 30,676

Net change in fund balance $ - - $ -

Fund balance, beginning of year, restated -

Fund balance, end of year $ -

110



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 15
Watauga County, North Carolina
Fines and Forfeitures Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Permits and fees
Register of deeds $ 240,000 $ 189,283 $ (50,717)
Total revenues 240,000 189,283 (50,717)
Expenditures:
General government
Payments of penalties, fines and forfeitures to the
Watauga County Board of Education 240,000 189,283 50,717
Total expenditures 240,000 189,283 50,717

Net change in fund balance $ - - $ -
Fund balance, beginning of year -
Prior period restatement - change in accounting principle -

Fund balance, beginning of year, restated -

Fund balance, end of year $ -

111



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 16
Watauga County, North Carolina
American Rescue Plan Funds
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025
Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable
Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental:
ARP Funds $ 10,911,724 § 10,911,724  § - $ 10911724 §$ -
Investment earnings 242,037 232,311 9,726 242,037 -
Total revenues 11,153,761 11,144,035 9,726 11,153,761 -
Expenditures:
ARP Expenditures 7,750,000 7,750,000 - 7,750,000 -
Total expenditures 7,750,000 7,750,000 - 7,750,000 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3,403,761 3,394,035 9,726 3,403,761 -
Other financing sources:
Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund 242,037 - 242,037 242,037 -
Transfers to General Fund 3,161,724 3,161,724 - 3,161,724 -
Total other financing sources 3,403,761 3,161,724 242,037 3,403,761 -
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 232,311 (232,311) $ - $ -
Fund balance at beginning of year 232,311
Fund balance at end of year $ -

112



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 17
Watauga County, North Carolina
SCIF Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025
Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable
Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental:

OSBM SCIF funds $ 662,500 470,291 $ 192,209 $ 662,500 $ -
Other miscellaneous revenues 349,650 349,650 - 349,650 -
Investment earnings - 110 30 140 140

Total revenues 1,012,150 820,051 192,239 1,012,290 140
Expenditures:
Hannah building roof 449,650 429,825 - 429,825 19,825
County parking deck 362,500 362,500 - 362,500 -
Hannah building road 200,000 17,714 188,446 206,160 (6,160)
Total expenditures 1,012,150 810,039 188,446 998,485 (13,665)
Net change in fund balance $ - 10,012 3,793 $ 13,805 $ 13,805
Fund balance at beginning of year 10,012
Fund balance at end of year $ 13,805

113



Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:
OSBM grant
ADTF grant
Tobacco trust
ARC construction grant
ARC equipment grant
EDA infrastructure

Golden Leaf grant

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Equipment
Building improvements
Professional services
Contingency

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Fund balance, beginning, restated

Fund balance at end of year

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 18
Watauga County, North Carolina
Processing Plant Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025
Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable
Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
1,000,000 $ - - 3 -3 (1,000,000)
474,450 - - - (474,450)
220,236 - - - (220,236)
500,000 - - - (500,000)
100,000 - - - (100,000)
817,000 - - - (817,000)
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000)
4,111,686 - - - (4,111,686)
521,819 - - - 521,819
3,861,703 - 3,861,703
127,050 100,763 15,961 116,724 10,326
101,114 - - - 101,114
4,611,686 100,763 15,961 116,724 (4,494,962)
(500,000) (100,763) (15,961) (116,724) 383,276
500,000 - - - (500,000)
500,000 - - - (500,000)
- $ (100,763) (15,961) $ (116,724) $ (116,724)
(100,763)
(100,763)
$ (116,724)

114



Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental:
911 Priority grant
Investment earnings
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Equipment
Land and building
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 19
Watauga County, North Carolina
Emergency 911 Building Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025
Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable
Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
2,797,013 $ 691,659 $ - $ 691,659 $ (2,105,354)
- 2,966 232,516 235,482 235,482
2,797,013 694,625 232,516 927,141 (1,869,872)
2,797,013 689,725 - 689,725 2,107,288
15,837,307 3,908,422 2,775,673 6,684,095 9,153,212
18,634,320 4,598,147 2,775,673 7,373,820 (11,260,500)
- (3,903,522) (2,543,157) (6,446,679) 9,390,628
15,837,307 3,500,000 12,337,307 15,837,307 -
15,837,307 3,500,000 12,337,307 15,837,307 -
- $ (403,522) 9,794,150 $ 9,390,628 $ 9,390,628
(403,522)
$__ 9390628

115



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 20
Watauga County, North Carolina
Opioid Fund - McKinsey Settlement
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmenta’
Opioid settlement funds $ 9,889 $ 27,756 $ 17,867
Total revenues 9,889 27,756 17,867
Expenditures:
Human services 9,889 - 9,889
Total expenditures 9,889 - 9,889
Net change in fund balance $ - 27,756 $ 27,756

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year $ 27,756

116



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 21
Watauga County, North Carolina
Solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Final Favorable
Revenues: Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 6567986 $ 7,429,966 $ 861,980
Sale of recycled materials 250,000 346,340 96,340
Total 6,817,986 7,776,306 958,320
Non-operating revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue 6,800 3,325 (3,475)
Investment earnings 50,000 331,440 281,440
Insurance proceeds - 747 747
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 155,000 164,477 9,477
Total 211,800 499,989 288,189
Total revenues 7,029,786 8,276,295 1,246,509
Expenditures:
Landfill operations:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,952,152
Other operating expenditures 5,214,078
Lease payments 12,025
Total landfill operations 7,412,316 7,178,255 234,061
Recycling operations:
Salaries and employee benefits 80,237
Other operating expenses 42,382
Total recycling operations 138,474 122,619 15,855
Capital outlay:
Capital outlay 1,740,003
Total capital outlay 1,740,003 1,740,003 -
Total expenditures 9,290,793 9,040,877 249,916
Revenues under/(over) expenditures (2,261,007) (764,582) 1,496,425
Other financing sources:
Sale of fixed assets - 71,651 71,651
Transfer to reserve (132,890) (132,890) -
Appropriated fund balance 2,393,897 - (2,393,897)
Total other financing sources 2,261,007 (61,239) (2,322,246)
Revenues over expenditures and other sources $ - (825,821) $ (825,821)

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:

Change in deferred outflow of resources - pensions (77,567)
Change in net pension liability 10,057
Change in deferred inflow of resources - pensions (6,220)
Change in deferred outflow of resources - OPEB (29,937)
Change in deferred inflow of resources - OPEB (36,431)
Change in net OPEB liability (150,372)
Capital outlay 1,740,003
Principal retirement 12,025
Transfer from solid waste reserve 132,890
Depreciation and amortization (471,635)
Change in accrued compensated absences (34,099)
Total reconciling items 1,088,714
Change in net position $ 262,893

117



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 22
Watauga County, North Carolina
Solid Waste Reserve Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
Solid waste capital reserve $ 132,890 $ - $ 132,890
Total expenditures 132,890 - 132,890
Revenue over(under) expenditures (132,890) - 132,890
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from solid waste fund 132,890 132,890 -
Total other financing sources 132,890 132,890 -

Net change in fund balance $ - $ 132,890 $ 132,890

118



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 23
Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position
Irrevocable Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
LEO Special Other Post
Separation Employment
Allowance Benefits Totals
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,276,672 $ 4,175,615 $ 5,452,287
$ 1,276,672 $ 4,175,615 $ 5,452,287
Net position:

Assets held in trust for retirement benefits $ 1,276,672 $ 4175615 $ 5,452,287

119



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 24
Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Irrevocable Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
LEO Special Other Post
Separation Employment
Allowance Benefits Totals
Additions:
Employer contributions $ 194350 $ 612,813 $ 807,163
Interest 39,971 167,398 207,369
Total additions 234,321 780,211 1,014,532
Deductions:
Benefits 41,650 101,519 143,169
Administrative expense 11,500 14,500 26,000
Total deductions 53,150 116,019 169,169
Change in net position 181,171 664,192 845,363
Net position, beginning 1,095,501 3,511,423 4,606,924

Net position, ending $ 1,276,672  $ 4,175,615 $ 5,452,287

120



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 25
Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Custodial Funds
June 30, 2025
Municipal Inmate
Tax Commissary
Fund Fund Totals
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ (17,559) $ 17,954  $ 395
Total assets $ (17,559) $ 17,954  $ 395
Net position:

Restricted for:
Individuals, organizations and other governments (17,559) 17,954 395
Total net position $ (17,559) $ 17,954  $ 395

121



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 26
Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Custodial Funds
June 30, 2025
Municipal Inmate
Tax Commissary
Fund Fund Totals
Additions:
Ad valorem taxes for other governments $ 10,449,397 % - 10,449,397
Collections on behalf of inmates - 147,590 147,590
Total additions 10,449,397 § 147,590 10,596,987
Deductions:
Tax distributions to other governments 10,486,746 - 10,486,746
Payments on behalf of inmates 144,479 144,479
Total deductions 10,486,746 144,479 10,631,225
Change in net position (37,349) 3,111 (34,238)
Net position, beginning 19,790 14,843 34,633
Net position, ending $ (17,559) $ 17,954 395

122



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 27
Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Balance and Balance
June 30, 2024 Additions Credits June 30, 2025
Fiscal year:
2024 - 2025 $ - $ 46,619,718 $ 45,955,034 $ 664,683
2023 - 2024 529,439 - 282,839 246,600
2022 - 2023 195,444 - 75,719 119,725
2021 - 2022 118,436 - 45,579 72,857
2020 - 2021 87,949 - 30,686 57,263
2019 - 2020 68,425 - 18,502 49,923
2018 - 2019 34,649 - 9,965 24,684
2017 - 2018 40,457 - 11,054 29,403
2016 - 2017 20,907 - 4,876 16,031
2015 - 2016 20,625 - 19,861 764
2014 - 2015 13,743 - 13,743 -
$ 1,130,074 $ 46,619,718 $ 46,467,859 1,281,932
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts General Fund (136,750)
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net General Fund $ 1,145,182
Reconcilement with revenues:
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund $ 46,640,180
Reconciling items:
Advertising and interest collected (179,253)
Other adjustments (6,180)
Prior year releases and refunds 13,112
Total reconciling items (172,321)
Total collections and credits $ 46,467,859

123



030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 28
Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County-wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Total Levy
Property
excluding
Registered Registered
Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original levy:
Property taxed at current year'srate  $ 13,806,192,165 $ 0.00318 $ 43,903,693 $ 43,903,693 $ -
Motor vehicles 705,850,535 0.00318 2,244,605 - 2,244,605
Penalties - 4,691 4,691 -
Total 14,512,042,700 46,152,989 43,908,384 2,244,605
Discoveries:

Property taxed at current year's rate 159,878,541 0.00318 560,300 510,593 -
Penalties - 156 162 -
Total 159,878,541 560,456 510,755 -

Abatements: (29,473,899) (93,727) (93,727) -

Total property valuation $ 14,642,447,341

Net levy 46,619,718 44,325,412 2,244,605

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2025 664,683 664,683 -

Current year's taxes collected $ 45,955,034 $ 43,660,729 $ 2,244,605

Current levy collection percentage 98.57% 98.50% 100.00%

124



Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio

Watauga County, North Carolina

Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County-wide Levy

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Real Property $
Personal Property
Public Service Companies
Total Assessed Valuation $
Tax Rate per $100
Net Levy (Includes penalties, discoveries, releases and abatements) $

030326 BCC Meeting
Schedule 29-A

100%

13,5699,287,727

909,904,975
133,254,640

14,642,447,341

0.00318

46,619,718

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists the levies by the County on behalf of fire
protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024:

Fire Protection District

Tax Rate per $100

Beech Mountain Rural $ 0.05 $
Blowing Rock 0.05
Boone Rural 0.06
Cove Creek 0.05
Cove Creek Rural 0.05
Deep Gap 0.05
Foscoe 0.05
Foscoe Rural 0.05
Meat Camp 0.05
Northwest Watauga 0.05
Shawneehaw 0.05
Shawneehaw Rural 0.05
Stewart Simmons 0.085
Todd 0.07
Zionville 0.05
Total Net Fire Protection District Levies $

Net Levy

2,830
761,073
1,452,850
388,998
339
311,166
729,253
114,967
364,582
169,092
176,270
8,769
460,790
85,044
176,964

5,202,987

125



030326 BCC Meeting
Schedule 29-B
Watauga County, North Carolina
Ten Largest Taxpayers
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

2024 Percentage of
Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation
Blue Ridge Electric Membership Coop Electric Utility $ 95,207,610 0.65 %
Boone Owner LLC Rental Properties 71,958,400 0.49
850 Blowing Rock Road (NC) Owner LP  Rental Properties 63,342,030 0.43
Residence at Peak of Boone LLC Rental Properties 22,163,580 0.15
MV of Boone LLC Rental Properties 39,437,070 0.27
Residence at Rivers Walk LLC Rental Properties 30,044,615 0.21
WSCR Meadowview Owner IX LP Rental Properties 37,759,120 0.26
Skyline Terrace Apartments LLC Commercial Rental Properties 32,833,660 0.22
BSL Property LLC Rental Properties 30,645,440 0.21
Shadowline Student Property LLC Rental Properties 78,802,670 0.54

$ 502,194,195 3.44 %

126



Tax rate per $100
Net levy

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2025

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

Tax rate per $100
Net levy

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2025

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

Tax rate per $100
Net levy

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2025

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

030326 BCC Meeting

Schedule 30
Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
Fire Districts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
Beech Mtn.
Northwest Rural Blowing Rock Boone
Watauga Fire Service Rural Rural Cove Creek
Fire District District Fire District Fire District Fire District
$ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.06 $ 0.05
$ 169,092 $ 2830 $ 761,073 $ 1,452,850 $ 388,998
4,557 9 11,158 19,008 5,922
$ 164,535 $ 2821 $ 749,915 $ 1,433,842 $ 383,076
97.31% 99.68% 98.53% 98.69% 98.48%
Cove Creek Foscoe
Rural Rural
Fire Service Deep Gap Foscoe Fire Service Meat Camp
District Fire District Fire District District Fire District
$ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05
$ 339 § 311,166 $ 729,253 $ 114,967 $ 364,582
2 10,334 7,872 1,727 11,237
$ 337 $ 300,832 $ 721,381 $ 113,240 $ 353,345
99.41% 96.68% 98.92% 98.50% 96.92%
Shawnheehaw
Rural Stewart
Shawnheehaw Fire Service Simmons Todd Zionville
Fire District District Fire District Fire District Fire District
0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.085 $ 0.07 $ 0.05
$ 176,270 $ 8,769 $ 460,790 $ 85,044 $ 176,964
2,482 253 3,753 1,042 4,383
173,788 $ 8,516 $ 457,037 $ 84,002 $ 172,581
98.59% 97.11% 99.19% 98.77% 97.52%

127



030326 BCC Meeting

C. Randolph CPA, PLLC

Certified Public Accountant
560 Beaver Creek School Rd.
West Jefferson, North Carolina 28694
Phone: (336) 846-3211

Fax: (336) 846-1142

Independent Auditor’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and
Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government
Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Watauga County, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Watauga County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Watauga County’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated January 30, 2026.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Watauga County's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Watauga County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Watauga County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Watauga County’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

128



030326 BCC Meeting

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

O, Rudelbh CPA. PLLC

West Jefferson, North Carolina
January 30, 2026

112

129



030326 BCC Meeting

C. Randolph CPA, PLLC

Certified Public Accountant
560 Beaver Creek School Rd.
West Jefferson, North Carolina 28694
Phone: (336) 846-3211

Fax: (336) 846-1142

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and On Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Watauga County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Watauga County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified
as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North
Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Watauga County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2025. Watauga County’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, Watauga County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2025.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Watauga County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of the Watauga County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Watauga County’s federal
programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Watauga
County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting

130



030326 BCC Meeting

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user of the report on compliance about Watauga County’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we

e exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding Watauga County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e obtain an understanding of Watauga County's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Watauga County's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance. Goven these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

O, Rudolbh CPA. PLLC

West Jefferson, North Carolina
January 30, 2026

131



030326 BCC Meeting

C. Randolph CPA, PLLC

Certified Public Accountant
560 Beaver Creek School Rd.
West Jefferson, North Carolina 28694
Phone: (336) 846-3211

Fax: (336) 846-1142

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program On Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Watauga County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program
Opinion on Each Major State Program

We have audited Watauga County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified
as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North
Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Watauga County’s major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2025. Watauga County’s major State
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, Watauga County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended
June 30, 2025.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Watauga County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of Watauga County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Watauga County’s State
programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Watauga
County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and

132



030326 BCC Meeting

therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material nhoncompliance when it
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user of the report on compliance about Watauga County’s compliance with the requirements of each major State
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we

e exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding Watauga County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e obtain an understanding of Watauga County's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Watauga County's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

O, Rudolbh CPA. PLLC

West Jefferson, North Carolina
January 30, 2026

133



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance to GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes X No

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified __yes _x none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __yes _X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
o Material weakness(es) identified? ___yes X _Nno

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes X__none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified.
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? ___yes X_no

The following were audited as major federal program for Watauga County for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2025:

Program Name or Cluster Assistance Listing No.
Medicaid Cluster 93.778
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance 97.036

The threshold for determining Federal Type A programs for Watauga County is $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X__yes no

134



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

II.

III.

Iv.

State Awards
Internal control over major state programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? ___yes X _No

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes X _none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major state programs: Unmodified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the State Single
Audit Implementation Act ___yes X _No

Major State program for Watauga County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, are:

State Program
Round 1 State Cashflow Loan for Disaster Response

Opioid Settlement

Federal Program — State Match
Medicaid Cluster
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance

Financial Statement Findings

None noted.

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None noted.

State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.

135



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICE

814 West King St., Suite 216 - Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007
Fax (828)265-8006

i
¢ T
[

Ly

Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

II. Financial Statement Findings
None noted.

ML Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None noted.

Iv. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.

136



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

None noted.

137



030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Federal Federal
Assistance Pass-Through (Direct & Pass-
Grantor/Pass-Through Listing Grantor's Through) State Passed-through
Grantor/Program/Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures  to Subrecipients
Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
SNAP Cluster
Administration:
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 396,555 54,137 54,137
Total SNAP Cluster 396,555 54,137 54,137
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 396,555 54,137 54,137
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Safety:
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 20,625 - -
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 3,558,078 21,052 -
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 3,578,703 21,052 -
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Administration on Aging:
Passed-through High Country Council of Governments:
Aging Cluster:
Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG)
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Il B - Access Services 93.044 333 5,667 -
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Il C - Congregate Meals 93.045 47,062 2,768 -
Special Programs for the Aging - Title 11l C - Home Delivered Meals 93.045 114,466 6,733 -
Special Programs for the Aging - Title 11l C -In-Home Support Servic 93.044 135,772 7,987 -
Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) 93.053 30,936 - -
Total Aging Cluster 328,570 23,155 -
Passed-through N.C. Department of Insurance:
Centers tor Medicare and Medicaid Services Research,
Demonstrations and Evaluations 93.779 7,908 - -
Administration for Children and Families:
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
Family Preservation 93.556 8,002 - -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster:
Workfirst administrative 93.558 42,593 - -
WorkFirst services 93.558 193,149 - -
Total Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster 235,742 - -
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 225,504 (140) -
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant:
Administration 93.568 35,205 - -
Crisis Intervention Payments 93.568 (288) - -
Permanency Planning 93.645 20,557 - -
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 194,380 - -
Total Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant: 249,854 - -
Total Division of Social Services 719,102 (140) -
Medicaid Cluster:
Medical Assistance Program:
Administration 93.778 1,374,571 114,990 -
Total Medical Assistance Program 1,374,571 114,990 -
Division of Social Services:
Administration
Health choice 93.767 148,483 47,606 -
Total N.C. Health Choice 148,483 47,606 -
Foster Care and Adoption Cluster (Note 3)
Adoption Assistance 93.659 5,959 - -
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 298,836 11,004 -
Foster Care - Direct Benefit Payments 96.658 157,404 49,532
Adoption/Foster Care Special Provision 93.658 (2,052) - -
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster (Note 3) 460,147 60,536 -
Subsidized Child Care (Note 3)
Child Care Development Fund Cluster
Division of Social Services
Child Care Development Fund - Administration 93.596 81,385 - -
Total Child Care Development Fund Cluster 81,385 - -
Total Subsidized Child Care (Note 3) 81,385 - -

138



Health Care Financing Administration

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:

Medical Assistance Program
Chafee Foster Care Independence - Direct Benefit Payment
Total Division of Medical Assistance

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Total Federal Awards

State Awards:
N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed-through Region D Council of Governments:
Senior center general purchases
POA ARPA
Division of Social Services
State Foster Care Benefits Program

Total N.C. Department of Health and Human Services

N.C. Department of Public Safety:
Division of Administration, Community Programs
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Programs
Emergency Management Division:
Cybersecurity Grant
Flood Mitigation Efforts
Total N.C. Department of Public Safety

N.C. Department of Information Technology
Priority One 911 Grant
Total N.C. Department of Information Technology

N.C. Department of Public Instruction:
NC Public School Building Capital-Lottery Proceeds
Public School National Forest Service

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction

N.C. Department of Transportation:
Employment Transportation Operating Assistance
Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance
Rural General Public Program

Total N.C. Department of Transportation

N.C. Department of Environmental Quality
Division of Water Resources:
UT to Dutch Creek Stream Restoration
Valle Crucis Watauga River Access
Total N.C. Department of Environmental Quality

N.C. Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
Soil Conservation Assistance
Soil Conservation Technician Cost Sharing

Total N.C. Department of Agriculture

N.C. Department of Natural and Cultural Resources:
America 250 Grant

Total N.C. Department of Natural and Cultural Resources

N.C. Division of Military and Veteran's Affairs
NCDMVA Grant
Veteran's Service Program

Total N.C. Division of Veteran's Affairs

N.C Office of State and Budget Management
State Capital and Infrastructure Fund
Total N.C. Office of State and Budget Management

N.C. Department of State Treasurer
Round 1 State Cashflow Loan for Disaster Response
Total N.C. Department of State Treasurer

Total State Awards

Other Financial Assistance:
Opioid Settlement (See Note 4)

Total Federal and State Awards

93.674

24/25 AANCT3GP
DAAS-735-ARPA

State Foster Care 25

MOA 2280074
DRMG2309

G2022P1

CW34296
CW34061

G40100296015SWC
G40100296015SWC

Contract 2025-0080
143B-1211C4

030326 BCC Meeting

4,566 1,142

4,566 1,142

3,124,732 247,289

7,099,990 322,478

54,137

- 14,854
16,559

- 333,058

- 364,471

- 169,945

169,445

- 11,070
- 28,474

- 209,489

169,445

- 49,985

- 49,985

- 316,670
- 57

316,670
57

- 316,727

316,727

- 14,667
- 95,167
- 75,567

- 185,401

- 24,350
- 57,579

- 81,929

- 3,600
- 26,888

- 30,488

- 5,000

- 5,000

18,289
- 2,273

- 20,562

- 192,209

- 192,209

- 895,478

- 895,478

- 2,283,465

486,172

- 810,179

$ 7,099,990 § 3,416,122

$

540,309

139



030326 BCC Meeting

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

1. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and State award activity of Watauga County under the programs of the
federal government and the State of North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2025. The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Watauga County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net position or cash flows of Watauga County.

2. Summary of Significant Account Policies:

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. Benefit payments are paid directly to recipients and are not included in the County's basic financial
statements. However, due to the County's involvement in determining eligibility, they are considered Federal awards to the County and are included in this schedule.

3. Indirect Cost Rate
The County has elected not to use the 10-percent minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

4. Opioid Settlement
The North Carolina Department of Justice does not consider Opioid Settlement Funds either Federal or State financial assistance since they are from a settlement with major drug

companies. Since these funds are subject to the State Single Audit Implementation Act, they are reported as Other Financial Assistance on the SEFSA and considered State
awards for State single audit requirements.

5. Cluster of Programs:
The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for state audit requirement purposes:
Subsidized Child Care
Foster Care and Adoption

5. Loan oustanding
Watauga County had the following loan balances outstanding as of June 30, 2025. The loans made during the year are included in the SEFSA in the state expenditures presented
in the schedule. Balances and transactions during related to these programs are included in the County's basic financial statements.

Grantor's Amount
Program Title Number Qustanding
Round 1 State Cashflow Loan for Disaster Response $ 895,478

140



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

LUCKY DOG VINTAGE MARKET - USE OF HUMAN SERVICES LOT

Manager’s Comments:

Trevor Shue, organizer of the Lucky Dog Vintage Market, has submitted a request
to use the grassy area and parking lot at the Human Services Center for market events
on select dates from March 2026 through September 2026. The proposed dates do
not conflict with the ASU football schedules and the Watauga County Farmers’
Market. The rate to be charged is $200; which is the same as last time.

Staff seeks direction from the Board.

141



030326 BCC Meeting

Deidre.Earp

From: Deron.Geouque

Sent: Monday, February 23, 2026 12:03 PM

To: Board Packet

Subject: FW: Trevor Shue Lucky Dog Vintage Market, Next Board Meeting.

We are looking to schedule dates for the 2026 LDVM calendar at the Poplar Grove connector grassy area. | would like
you to put me on the next schedule for the next board meeting. | also have the dates we are looking at for LDVM that
don't interfere with the AppState football season or the King Street farmers market.

Saturday March 14th
Saturday April 11th
Saturday May 2nd
Saturday June 13th
Saturday August 15th
Saturday September 12th

Thank You
- Trevor Shue

Lucky Dog Vintage, LLC

142



030326 BCC Meeting

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA LICENSE AGREEMENT

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of March 3, 2026, by and between
Watauga County, a corporate body politic, being hereinafter referred to as the “Licensor,” and
Lucky Dog Vintage, being hereinafter referred to as “Licensee”.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

WHEREAS, Licensor is the owner of the parking lot and building of the Watauga County Human
Services Center located at 132 Poplar Grove Connector, Boone NC 28607, hereinafter referred to
as the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, Licensee wants to use the parking lot to host its clothing market on the dates listed
in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Licensor and Licensee hereto desire to enter into an agreement to set forth their
respective rights and obligations regarding use and maintenance of the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties
hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Grant of License. Licensor hereby grants to Licensee, subject to all of the terms and
conditions hereof, a license to use the Property to host its clothing market on the dates listed in
Exhibit A for itself, its clients, customers, patrons, other related invitees and the general public.
However, Licensee does not have the rights granted herein to the exclusion of the rights of the
Licensor to use the Property in any matter it wishes so long as it does not unreasonably impede
the use of the Property by Licensee for the purpose stated herein.

2. Personal License Only. It is agreed between Licensor and Licensee that this license is
personal to Licensee and shall not inure to the successors or assigns of Licensee.

3. Licensee Has No Interest or Estate. Licensee agrees that it does not and shall not claim at
any time any interest or estate of any kind or extent whatsoever in the Property, or any portion
thereof, by virtue of this license or Licensee’s occupancy or use hereunder and Licensor
conveys no interest in the Property to Licensee by this Agreement.

4. Use of the Property. The Licensor shall collect the garbage from the containers on the
Property at 6:00 PM on the dates listed in Exhibit A, and this License shall automatically
terminate at the conclusion of each date’s use. The Licensee shall keep the Property in a good
state of repair and in a safe condition during its use on each occasion. Any repairs or other
changes made by Licensee shall require the prior consent of Licensor and shall be at the sole
cost and expense of Licensee. The Licensee shall pay to Licensor a fee of Two Hundred Dollars
($200.00) per date of use as outlined in Exhibit A for its use of the Property.

Page 1 143



030326 BCC Meeting

5. Indemnification. Licensee shall indemnify and hold Licensor, jointly and severally, its
agents, servants, employees, invitees, representatives and their respective heirs, successors and
assigns, harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, liabilities or expenses
concerning bodily injury or death, damage to the Property resulting from, or in any way
connected with, the condition or use of the Property by Licensee, its invitees, customers, guests
and the general public during the use of the Property. Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee
if for any reason whatever Licensee’s occupation or use of the Property hereunder shall be
hindered or disturbed. Licensee shall be responsible for maintaining a liability insurance policy,
at its sole cost and expense, naming the Licensor as named insured, in form and amount
mutually agreeable between Licensor and Licensee.

6. Termination of License.  This License shall commence at 9:00 AM and automatically
terminate at 6:00 PM on the dates listed in Exhibit A.

7. Modification. The terms, covenants, conditions and provisions of this License Agreement
may be extended, abrogated, modified, rescinded or amended in whole or in part only with the
consent of the Licensor and Licensee and only in writing.

8. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State
of North Carolina.

9. Notices. Any notices or other communications to be given hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been given if delivered in person or mailed by United States certified
or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the parties at the following
address, or to such other address as shall be given in writing by one party to the other:

As to Licensor:

Deron Geouque, County Manager
Watauga County

814 West King Street, Room 205
Boone, NC 28607

As to Licensee:

Trevor Shue

Lucky Dog Vintage
1167 West King Street
Boone, NC 28607

10. Recording. This Agreement, or Memorandum thereof, shall not be recorded without
Licensor’s prior written consent, and if recorded Licensee hereby agrees to pay the cost and
expense thereof.

Page 2 144



030326 BCC Meeting

11. Waiver. No waiver of any condition, covenant or restriction of this Agreement by either
party shall be deemed to imply or constitute a further waiver of the same or any other
condition or covenant of this Agreement.

12. Captions. The captions of the various paragraphs of this Agreement are for convenience
only and are not a part of this Agreement and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms
and provisions of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, all as of the day
and year first above written.

Licensor: Licensee:
Watauga County Lucky Dog Vintage
By: By:
Deron Geouque Trevor Shue
County Manager
Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners

Exhibit A: Market Dates

March 14, 2026
April 11, 2026

May 2, 2026

June 13, 2026
August 15, 2026
September 12, 2026

Page 3 145



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

REQUESTING APPOINTMENT OF HOME & COMMUNITY CARE
BLOCK GRANT (H&CCBG) ADVISORY COMMUNITY AND LEAD
AGENCY

Manager’s Comments:

Each year the Board is required to appoint a lead agency and advisory committee to
make recommendations on how to best expend the County’s allocation from the
Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) funds. These funds were
previously established by the Older American’s Act and are administered by the
North Carolina Division of Aging.

Board action is requested to approve the Watauga County Project on Aging as the
Lead Agency and the list of nominations for the Community Care Block Grant
Advisory Committee for FY 2027. In that this is the first reading, you may delay
action or waive your policy and appoint the members to the Advisory Board as
presented.

Direction from the Board is requested.

146



030326 BCC Meeting

Watauga County Project on Aging

132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A @ Boone, North Carolina 28607
Website: www.wataugacounty.org/aging angie.boitnotte@watgov.org
Telephone 828-265-8090 Fax 828-264-2060 TTY 1-800-735-2962  Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711

MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager

FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director

DATE: February 23, 2026

SUBJ: Appointment of the Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) Advisory

Committee and Lead Agency

Each year the Board of County Commissioners is required to appoint a Home and Community Care
Block Grant Advisory Committee and Lead Agency. The primary function of this committee is to assist
the County in determining the best plan for the use of HCCBG funds.

Please accept the attached list as nominations for the Home and Community Care Block Grant
Advisory Committee for FY27. | also recommend that the Watauga County Project on Aging

be appointed as the Lead Agency.

147



030326 BCC Meeting

HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT
ADVISORY COMMITTEE FY 2027

LEAD AGENCY

Angie Boitnotte, Director
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A
Boone, NC 28607

Watauga County Project on Aging
265-8090
angie.boitnotte@watgov.org

ADVISORY COMMITTEE

NAME

Braxton Eggers
814 W. King St., Suite 205
Boone, NC 28607

Zack Green

Area Agency on Aging
468 New Market Blvd.
Boone, NC 28607

Christie Markham, Adult Services Supervisor
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite C
Boone, NC 28607

Karina Romero, Health Promotion Program Manager
126 Poplar Grove Connector
Boone, NC 28607

Debbie Wellborn, Director
P. O. Box 605
Jefferson, NC 28640

Brooke Whitman, Watauga Center Director
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite B
Boone, NC 28607

Kat Danner
280 Foster Circle
Boone, NC 28607

Joyce Donley
382 Foggy Lane
Boone, NC 28607

Mary Moretz
1419 Deerfield Rd.
Boone, NC 28607

REPRESENTING

Watauga County Board of Commissioners
265-8000
Braxton.Eggers@watgov.org

High Country Council of Governments
265-5434 ext. 122
zgreen@hccog.org

Watauga County Department of Social Services
265-8100
christie.markham@watgov.org

Appalachian District Health Department
264-4995
karina.romero@apphealth.com

Appalachian Senior Companion Program
(336)846-4898
wellbrnda@appstate.edu

Daymark Recovery Services
264-8759
brwhitman@daymarkrecovery.org

Senior Citizen
264-7985 or 773-0682
dannerk@charter.net

Senior Citizen
(828)773-1919
joyollis2002@yahoo.com

Senior Citizen
(828)264-2281
maryemoretz@gmail.com

Updated: 2/20/26
148



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8§8:

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

A. Request to Purchase APX Consolettes
Manager’s Comments:

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director will request the Board approve the
purchase of 2 Consolettes for the current 911 Center. Total cost is $21,655 and is
part of the 725G State contract for Motorola.

Board approval is required to formally approve the purchase of the APX Consolettes
with Motorola in the amount of $21,655.

149



030326 BCC Meeting

February 24, 2026
To: Board of Commissioners
CcC: Deron Geouque, County Manager

Subject: APX Consolettes

Board of Commissioners,

Please consider my request for $21,655 for replacement of two consolettes in the current 911
center. These consolettes are at their end of service life due and must be upgraded to remain compliant
with VIPER requirements. This quote is priced as part of the 725G State contract for Motorola. This
replacement has been considered as part of the overall infrastructure project upgrade and funds are
available for this purchase.

Respectfully,

T W

William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P
Emergency Services Director

150



QUOTE-3431564
0 MOTOROLA SCOLUTIONS 030326 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES

12/17/2025

The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is confidential proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. or the Motorola Solutions entity
providing this quote (“Motorola”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the Information is not to be
disclosed publicly or in any manner to anyone other than those required to evaluate the Information without the express written permission of Motorola.

MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and are used under license. All $§tkr trademarks are
the property of their respective owners. © 2020 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.




030326 BCC Meeting

@ MOTOROLA SCLUTIONS QUOTE-3431564

12/17/2025

WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES

184 HODGES GAP ROAD
BOONE, NC 28607

Dear Will Holt,

Motorola Solutions is pleased to present WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES with this quote for quality
communications equipment and services. The development of this quote provided us the opportunity to evaluate
your requirements and propose a solution to best fulfill your communications needs.

This information is provided to assist you in your evaluation process. Our goal is to provide WATAUGA COUNTY
EMERGENCY SERVICES with the best products and services available in the communications industry. Please direct

any questions to Stori McIntyre at storimcintyre@callmc.com.

We thank you for the opportunity to provide you with premier communications and look forward to your review and
feedback regarding this quote.

Sincerely,

Stori McIntyre

Motorola Solutions Manufacturer's Representative

152



@ MOTOROLA SCOLUTIONS

Billing Address:

WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY

SERVICES

184 HODGES GAP ROAD

BOONE, NC 28607

us

Line #

1a

1b
1c
1d

1e
1f

19
1h

1i

1]

1k
1l

m

Item Number

APX™ Consolette
L37TSS9PW1CN
G90AC

GAO0580AA
CAO01598AB
G51AT

GAO5508AA
G78AR
GAO05509AA
L999AG

G843AH

G806BL

QA09113AB
W969BG

G361AH

Description

ALL BAND CONSOLETTE CN

ADD: NO MICROPHONE
NEEDED APX

ADD: TDMA OPERATION
ADD: AC LINE CORD US

SOFTWARE LICENSE
ENH:SMARTZONE

DEL: DELETE VHF BAND
ADD: 3Y ESSENTIAL SERVICE
DEL: DELETE UHF BAND

ADD: FULL FP W/E5/KEYPAD/
CLOCK/VU

ADD: AES ENCRYPTION AND
ADP

SOFTWARE LICENSE ENH:
ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX

ADD: BASELINE RELEASE SW

SOFTWARE LICENSE ENH:
MULTIKEY OPERATION

SOFTWARE LICENSE ENH: P25
TRUNKING SOFTWARE APX

Qty

N

N

NOINN N

QUOTE-3431564

Quote Date:12/17/2025
Expiration Date:02/15/2026

Quote Created By:
Stori MclIntyre
storimcintyre@callmc.com

End Customer:

WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY
SERVICES

Will Holt

Contract: 19144 - 725G NORTH

CAROLINA, STATE OF (NON-ARIBA
BASED POS)

List Price Sale Price Ext. Sale Price
$11,053.00 $8,289.75 $16,579.50
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$530.00 $397.50 $795.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$1,766.00 $1,324.50 $2,649.00
-$800.00 -$800.00 -$1,600.00
$288.00 $288.00 $576.00
-$800.00 -$800.00 -$1,600.00
$929.00 $696.75 $1,393.50
$560.00 $420.00 $840.00
$607.00 $455.25 $910.50
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$388.00 $291.00 $582.00
$353.00 $264.75 $529.50

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the
""Underlying Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between
Motorola and Customer, then Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.

Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800

Page 3

153



@ MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS QUOTE-3431564

Grand Total $21,655.00(USD)

Notes:

e Unless otherwise noted, this quote excludes sales tax or other applicable taxes (such as Goods and Services
Tax, sales tax, Value Added Tax and other taxes of a similar nature). Any tax the customer is subject to will be
added to invoices.

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the
""Underlying Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between
Motorola and Customer, then Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.

Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800
154

Page 4



0 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS 030326 BCC Meeting

Purchase Order Checklist NA OM

arked as PO/ Contract/ Notice to Proceed on Company Letterhead
(PO will not be processed without this)

PO Number/ Contract Number

PO Date

Vendor = Motorola Solutions, Inc.

Payment (Billing) Terms/ State Contract Number

Bill-To Name on PO must be equal to the Legal Bill-To Name

Bill-To Address

Ship-To Address (If we are shipping to a MR location, it must be documented on PO)

Ultimate Address (If the Ship-To address is the MR location then the Ultimate Destination
address must be documented on PO)

PO Amount must be equal to or greater than Order Total

Non-Editable Format (Word/ Excel templates cannot be accepted)

Tax Exemption Status

Signatures (As required)

NOTE: When an email order is submitted a confirmation is sent from Motorola AutoNotify referencing a
case number.
Once checklist is complete, order still must go through Order Validation/Credit Approval

155



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8§8:

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

B. Request to Purchase Uninterrupted Power Supply
Manager’s Comments:

Mr. Holt will request the Board approve the purchase of an additional UPS for the
current 911 Center in the amount of $26,919.35. This UPS will provide uninterrupted
power to the radio equipment rack which currently 1s served by generator only.

Board approval is required to formally approve the purchase of the Uninterrupted
Power Supply in the amount of $26,919.35.

156



030326 BCC Meeting

February 24, 2026
To: Board of Commissioners
CcC: Deron Geouque, County Manager

Subject: Uninterrupted Power Supply

Board of Commissioners,

Please consider my request for $26,919.35 for the purchase of an additional UPS in the current
911 center. This UPS will provide uninterrupted power to the radio equipment rack which currently is
served by generator only. This quote is provided by Mobile Communications America who is responsible
for maintaining this equipment and has been reviewed by our IT Department as well. This purchase has
been considered as part of the overall infrastructure project upgrade and funds are available for this
purchase.

Respectfully,

W

William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P
Emergency Services Director

157



030326 BCC Meeting

Mabile MOBILE COMMUNICATIONS AMERICA, INC.
' »7A Communications 4800 REAGAN DR
M C : CHARLOTTE, NC 28206
America

Phone: 704-597-5220

Fax:
QUOTATION Page 1
341001422
Bill To: Ship To:
Watauga County NC Emergency Services Watauga County NC Emergency Services
184 Hodges Gap Rd Suite D 184 Hodges Gap Rd Suite D
Boone, NC 28607-8635 Boone, NC 28607-8635
Contact: Contact: WILL HOLT
Contact #: Contact #:828-265-5668
Date: 12/23/2025 Customer #: 108188 Terms: NET 30 DAYS
Quantity Description uU/M Unit Price Extended
1 Eaton 2-Post Rack-Mount Installation Kit for EA 166.60 166.60
Select Eaton 9PX UPS Systems
1 Eaton Tripp Lite Series 2-Post Rack-Mount Installation Kit of 2U and EA 233.83 233.83
Larger
4 Eaton 9PX Lithium Batt CAB EA 3,912.52 15,650.08
1 Eaton 3000VA UPS RT LV NET Bundle EA 6,471.68 6,471.68
1 FIELD TECH LABOR ONLY EA 2,220.00 2,220.00
1 SHIPPING/HANDLING EA 475.00 475.00
1 Customer provided L5-30R Outlet will be required EA 0.00 0.00
Accepted By: Date:
Please contact custgmer representative by phone or email with any questions: Subtotal - $25.217.19
Customer Rep: Stori MclIntyre Tax : $1.702.16
Phone #: Total Quote : $26,919.35

Email: StoriMclintyre@callmc.com
Quote Valid for 30 Days.

Effective August 1, 2018, all credit card payments are subject to a 2% convenience fee
All orders are subject to the MCA Terms and Conditions attached hereto and incorporated by reference.
Order are also subject to partial shipment and partial invoice.

Tax calculations provided are estimates and are subject to change.
158



030326 BCC Meeting

MEA

MOBILE COMMUNICATIONS AMERICA, INC. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following Terms and Conditions ("T&Cs"), together with the terms of the relevant Quote, and any other documents incorporated herein by
reference, constitute the sole and entire agreement (“Agreement”) between Mobile Communications America, Inc. a Delaware corporation
("MCA™ and the Buyer whose name appears on the signature page of the Quote "Buyer”; MCA and Buyer are referred to collectively as the
"Parties” and each, individually, a "Party”} with respect to the eguipment and/or parts ("Goods™ and/or services ("Services”; collectively, the
"Waork™) to be provided by MCA to Buyer in the Quote, and supersede all prior or contemporaneous understandings, agreements, negotiations,
representations and warranties, and communications, both written and oral, The quantity, quality and description of the Goods shall be as
specified in an applicable Quote and/or any applicable specification agreed to in writing by the Farties. With respect to Services, any Quote is
expressly subject to MCA's inspection of the site where the Services will be performed and its suitability for the Services in MCA's sole and absolute
discretion,

By accepting a Quote, Goods or Services from MCA, Buyer's consent to this Agreement will be conclusively established regardless of the manner
of acceptance. Buyer acknowlaedges and agrees to this Agreement and no other terms and conditions issued on Buyer's PO or other work/order
form are incorporated or will apply unless agreed upon by both Parties in writing and signed by the Parties, This Agreement will prevail over any
of Buyer's general terms and conditions of purchase regardless of whether or when Buyer has submitted its purchase order or such terms,
Fulfillment of Buyer's order does not constitute acceptance of any of Buyer's terms and does not serve to modify or amend this Agreement. In
the event of any conflict between these T&Cs and the Quote, these T&Cs shall govern, unless the Quote expressly states that the terms and
conditions of the Quote shall contral,

IMDEPEMDEMNT CONTRACTORS. Neither the transactions contemplated by the Agreement or any other document between the Parties are intended
to constitute or create a joint venture, pooling arrangement, partnership, or formal business organization of any kind. The Parties shall act as
independent contractors at all times and neither Party shall act as an agent for the ather, and the employees of one Party shall not be deemed
employees of the other Party.
SHORTAGES AND DEFECTS OF GOODS: Buyer will be deemed to have accepted the Goods unless MCA is notified in writing of the rejection of
any unit of the Goods within three (3) days of receipt. Any claim of shortages or defects must be made within three (3} days of delivery to Buyer.
Claims must b2 provided to MCA in writing and must detail for MCA the specific reasonis) for rejection. Buyer shall afford MCA prompt and
reasonable opportunity to inspect all Goods against which any caim is made. Buyer shall not return any Goods to MCA without prior authorization,
After MCA has reviewed the rejection notice and autharized the return, Buyer will return the rejected Goods to MCA (or MCA's designae) in the
same condition as when it was received. All returns must be in the original container and packaging along with all accessories and instructions
included must be shipped freight prepaid. Notwithstanding the foregaing, {a) in the event MCA reasonably determines that the basis for rejection
relates to a matter covered by a Manufacturer Warranty, MCA shall have no lability under this Section other than to inform Buyer of such
determination.
PRICING AMD PAYMENT: Pricing for the Services or the Goods, or the manner or method by which such prices shall be set or finally determined,
shall be set forth in the Quote. All quatations reflect ULS. Dollars. Buyer acknowledges that prices may fluctuate due to manufacturer costs,
supply chain variances, tariffs or Force Majeure Events (hereinafter defined). As such, MCA reserves the right to adjust prices accordingly andfor
cancel Quates at any time, MCA will make reasonable effort to provide Buyer timely notice of such changes. The right to refuse to accept any
Quotes for any reason is reserved by MCA even if a previous gquotation has been made. All payments must be made in U.5. Dollars. Payment
shall be due and payable no later than thirty (307 days from the date of inveice. If Buyer makes payment by check, the check must be drawn on
a U5 bank, Payment shall not be deemed received by MCA for any purpose hereunder, induding MCA'S security interest in the Goods, until such
time as MCA receives cleared available funds, Ezch Quote, assuming due fulfillment thereof, shall be considered a separate and independent
transaction and payment therefor shall be made accordingly. Payment shall not be withheld on account of any caim by Buyer against MCA. Buyer
shall not and acknowledges that it will have no right, under this Agreement or any other agreement, document, o law to withhold, offset or debit
any amounts owed or dua to MCA or any of its Affiliates against any other amount owed ar due to MCA or any of its Affiliates under any other
document or agreement. If Buyer disputes any portion of a MCA invoice, Buyer shall pay the undisputed portion when due and MCA and Buyer
shall wark in good faith to resobve the dispute as to the balance within thirty (20) days from notice of the disputed paortion, at which paint Buyer
agrees to pay that portion whether an agreement has been reached or otherwise, Any invoiced amount which is not paid in accordance with this
Agreament shall be considered overdue, Nonpayment or delay in payment by Buyer shall be considerad a breach of the Agreement, If services,
installation and/or shipments (as applicable to a particular Quote) are delayed by the Buyer, payments shall be due on the date when MCA is
prepared to perform (or cause a third party to perform). Goods held for the Buyer shall be at the risk and expense of the Buyer. Goods shipped
as exchanges will be invoicad for full value until the exchange is complete and Goods has been returned to MCA in good and working condition,
at which point a cradit for the full value will be given to Buyer, If the financal condition of the Buyer at any time does not, in MCA's sole and
absolute discretion, justify continuance of performance or shipment on the terms of payment specified, MCA may require full or partial payment
from the Buyer in advance. In the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of the Buyer, or in the event any proceedings are brought by or against the
Buyer under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws, MCA shall be entitled to cancel any Quate then outstanding and shall receive reimbursement for
any expenses incurred by it in connection with such cancellation and any applicable cancellation charges.,
STANDARD TERMS WITHOUT CREDIT: If Buyer has not established preliminary credit with MCA, prepayment of the full amount of any invoice
is required, unless such requirement is waived by MCA in its sole and absalute discretion.
STANDARD TERMS WITH CREDIT:
a.  Up to $50,000.00 = within Nat thirty {30} days after date of inveice submitted by MCaA.
b. Ower $50,000.00 may require the below milestone payments:

«  40% down once a Quate is accepted by MCA

«  50% once materials shipped for Buyer's use

« 10% within thirty {30) days of the earlier of invoice or completion of installation, if applicable,
WNOM-STANDARD CREDIT TERMS: Megotiable prior to Quote acceptance.

MCA T&C (v February 2025}

159



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

030326 BCC Meeting

MON-STANDARD PAYMENT TERMS: Non-standard payment terms which include cash payments and credit card payments by customers with
credit terms with MCA, may be subject to convenience fees, in MCA's sole and absolute discretion,
LATE FEES: MCA shall be entitled, without prejudice to any of its other rights or remedies, after a seven {7) day grace period, to charge Buyer
interest at the rate of 1.5% on any past due amount.
TAXES: The prices stated In any quote or Quote may nat include any provision for sales, use, excise, or similar taxes. The amount of any and all
such present or future taxes or other government charges applicable to the Services and, if applicable, the Goods will be added by MCA to the
sales price and shall be paid by the Buyer, unless Buyer provides MCA with a tax-exemption certificate acceptable to the taxing authority. If MCA
is required to pay or bear the burden of any exduded tax, the prices set forth herein shall be increased by the amount of such tax and any
interest or penalty assessed, and Buyer shall pay to MCA the full payment of any such increase no later than ten (10} days after receipt of
invoiced charges.
SECURITY INTEREST. Buyer grants to MCA a purchase money security interest in the Goods, including any software provided hereunder, and to
the proceads thereof until the full price and all other liabilities due to MCA are satisfled. Upon any default or breach by Buyer hereunder and to
the axtent applicable, MCA shall have all of the rights and remadies of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code or other applicable
laws, which rights shall be cumulative, Buyer heraby authorizes MCA to take any and all steps it determines are necassary to cause its sacurity
interest to be maintained and perfected, including, without limitaticn, the filing of any financing statements, and any amendments and/or renewals
thereof. MCA shall have the right to enter Buyer's premises and repossess and remove any Goods if full payment has not been timely received
by MCA,

DELIVERY: Unless otherwise specifically stated in an agreement signed by the Parties, delivery of all Goods shall be FOB MCA's shipping facility

or at MCA's option, FOB point of manufacture. The Goods shall be delivered to the delivery address stated in the Quete. Shipping or delivery dates

are best estimates only, in either case during the Buyer's usual business hours. MCA will arrange for ground shipment through a carrier of its
chaice unless a specific carrier has been mutually agreed upon in writing by both Buyer and MCA. All shipping charges will be prepaid by MCA
and subseguently added to the Buyer’s invaice, Title and risk of loss or damage shall pass to Buyer upon MCA's delivery of the goods to a common
carrier or other delivery agency for shipment to Buyer. MCA assumes no liability in connection with shipment nor shall the carrier in any way be
construed to be an agent of MCA. MCA shall not be liable for any damages or penalty for delay caused by transportation or failure to give notice
of such delay. The Goods shall be marked in accordance with the Buyer's instructions and any applicable regulations or reguirements of the
carriar, if applicable, and properly packed and secured so as to reach their destination in an undamaged condition in the ordinary course. If MCA
is unable to make deliveries as specified by Buyer, MCA shall notify Buyer immediately. Upon MCA's notification to the Buyer of delivery, or upon
stoting the Goods at the Buyer's reguest, the Buyer is deemed to have acoepted the Goods, and thus, the cwnership and all associated liabilities
for the Goods. Upan delivery, any and all risks related to the possession, use, or maintenance of the Goods shall be borne solely by the Buyer,

Insurance is the sole responsibility of the Buyer. MCA is not responsible for procuring insurance for the Goods, and the cost of any insurance

coverage will not be included in the Product price unless explicitly requested by the Buyer at the time of Quote acceptance. Should the Buyer

request MCA to insure the Goods, the associated costs will be added to Buyer's invoice. MCA reserves the right to make deliveries in installments
and the contract shall be severable as to such installments. Delivery delay or default of any installment shall not relieve Buyer of its obligaticn to accept
and pay for remaining deliverias.

INSPECTION: MCA shall take any steps necessary to comply with any reasonable request by the Buyer to inspect or test the Goods prior to

installation. If as a result of inspection or testing the Buyer is not satisfied that such Goods will perform as anticipated per the written guidelines

of the applicable manufacturer of any particular Goods (each, a "Manufacturer”), and if the Buyer so informs MCA within three {3) days of
inspection or testing, MCA shall take commerdially reasonable steps as are necessary to ensure compliance. Failure to so inform MCA within such
three (3)-day period shall constitute Buyer's irrevocable waiver of its rights under this Section.

CAMCELLATION. In the event of a cancellation by Buyer for any reason, Buyer will be responsible for payment to MCA for all Goods received, all

non-cancelable goods on order with third-party suppliers, as well as Services provided up to the date of cancellation as follows:

a. Goods: Buyer will pay the full price for all Goods that have been delivered and received, or which are in transit, whether to the project site
ar as Offsite Stored Materials, through the date that notice of cancellation is received by MCA, These Goods will be invoiced at the previously
agreed-upon rates and payment will be made within 30 days of the date of invoice,

b. Goods on Order and Mon-Cancelable: Buyer will pay the full agreed upon price for all Goods that have been ordered spedfically for the
project and which cannot be canceled or returned for full reimbursement. This includes any custom-made items or materials that were
procurad for the project. Thesa Goads will be invoiced at the previcusly agreed-upon rates and paymeant shall be made within 30 days of
the date of invoice.

C.  Sarvices Provided: Buyer will pay for all Services rendered by MCA up to the date notice of project cancellation is received by MCA. The
Services will be invoiced at the previously agreed-upon rates and payment will be made within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice.
Servicas provided include but are not limited to consultation, design, installation labor, project management, subcontracted services and any
other services outlined in the Agreement.

d. Returnable or Cancelable Goods: May be returned at Buyer's expense and may be subject to restocking charges. Programmed Goods may
be returned at MCA's discretion and will be subject to a repragramming fee.

WARRANTY:

a. MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTIES. Manufacturers of the Goods provide warranties, including, a software warranty and a license warranty, of
varying periods and coverage {collectively, “*Manufacturer Warranties™), Written copies of Manufacturer Warranties are available upon
request. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that MCA shall have no obligation whatsoever in respect of Manufacturer Warranties and makes
no warranty with respect to any goods or supplies supplied by any third party,

b. LIMITED SERVICES WARRANTY. MCA wamrants to Buyer that it shall perform the Services using personnel of required skill, experience, and
qualifications and in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with generally recognized industry standards for similar services
and shall devote adequate resources to meet its obligations under the Agreement (“Limited Services Warranty™). The Limited Services
warranty shall survive for a period of twealve {12) months following the date Services commences (the “Warranty Period™. The Limited
Sarvices Warranty is not assignable or transferrable to any third party (including any Affiliate of Buyer).

C.  WARRAMNTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEFT FOR THE LIMITED SERVICES WARRANTY, MCA MAKES MO WARRANTY WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT
TO SERVICES AMDYOR ANY GOODS, IMCLUDING ANY [A) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, (B} WARRANTY OF FITMESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE; (C) WARRANTY OF TITLE; (D} WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMEMT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A
THIRD PARTY; OR (E) OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE,
USAGE OF TRADE, OR OTHERWISE.

MCA TRC (v February 2025)

160



15.

16.

17.

18,

19.

20.

21.

22,

030326 BCC Meeting

d.  WARRANTY CONDITIONS. MCA shall not be liable for a breach of the Limited Services Warranty unless: (A) Buyer gives written notice of
breach thereof, reasonably described, to MCA within twenty (207 days of the time when Buyer discovers or ought to have discovered the
breach and such notice is given during the Warranty Period and (B) MCA reasonably verifies Buyer's claim that the Services was defective.
MCA shall not be liable for a breach of the Limited Services Warranty If (1) Buyer makes any further use of such Goods after giving such
natice; (il) the defect arises because Buyer failed to follow MCAS oral or written instructions as to the storage, installation, commissioning,
use or mamtenance of the Goods; or (i} Buyer alters or repairs such Goods without the prior written consent of MCA,

e.  EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES. Subject to Buyer's compliance with the paragraph tidled “Warranty Conditions” above, Buyer's sole and exclusive
remedy for breach of the Limited Services Warranty shall be, in MCA's sole discretion, (i) to repair or re-perform the applicable Services or
{1y to credit or refund the price of such Services at the pro rata contract rate. SUCH REMEDY SHALL BE THE BUYER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
REMEDY AND MCA'S ENTIRE LIABILITY FOR ANY BREACH OF THE LIMITED SERVICES WARRANTY.

AFFILIATES. MCA reserves the right, without prior notice to Buyer, to provide any Goods through, or cause any of its obligations under this
Agreement to be performed by any of its Affiliates, In such case, the work shall be treated as a separate agreement between the Buyer and
Affiliate, governed by the Agreement with the Affiliate taking the place of MCA for all purposes herein. Buyer is to make payment directly to the
Affiliate for such Quotes, For the purposes of this Agreement, "Affiliate” shall mean, with respact to a Party, any entity which owns or controls,
is owned or controlled by, or is under commeon ownership or control with, such Party. In addition, MCA may subcontract the Services to be
provided to Buyer to a third party without Buyer's consent, provided that such subcontracting will not release MCA from any of its obligations
under the Agreement,
FORCE MAJEURE: MCA shall not be responsible for any failure to perform due to causes beyond its reasonable control, such as, but not limited
to, acts of God, flood, fire, earthquake, explosion, acts of the Buyer, acts of avil or military authority, war, invasion, hestiliies (whether war is
declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot or other civil unrest, embargoes or blockades, national or regional emergency, judicial action,
pandemic, epidemic, default of subcontractors or vendars, labor disputes, accident, failure or delays on transportation, and inability to obtain
necessary power, labor or materials (each, & "Force Majeure Event™). In the event of any delay due to such causes, or other difficulties, (whether
or not similar in nature to any of those specified) the date of delivery shall be extended for a pericd equal to the time lost.

GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS: In the event that the Buyer's customer is the United States Government, the Services and, if applicable, Goods are

purchased as Commercial Services or Commercial Goods, respectively, under the Federal Acguisition Regulation (*FAR™), and MCA will agree to

comply with, if applicable, FAR 52.212-5 {Confract Terms and Conditions Required to Implement Statutes or Executive Quotes—Commercial

Goods and Commercial Services). Any other Government flow downs shall be negotiated by the Parties and agreed upon between the Parties in

writing prior to acoeptance of a Quote by MCA,

FCC AND OTHER GOVERNMEMT MATTERS: Althcugh MCA may assist in the preparation of FCC License Applications as a courtesy, Buyer is solely

responsible for obtaining any licenses dictated under the FCC's rules and regulations or required by any other Federal, State or Local government

agency. Meither MCA nor any of its employees is an agent of the Buyer in FCC or other governmental matters.

MON-SOLICITATION, MCA expends considerable resources including maney, time, training, etc. to properly train and educate its employees. MCA

experiences considerable financial and other harm when its employees are recruited and hired by customers. Therefore, Buyer agrees to not

recruit or solicit any MCA employee until and after such employee has terminated his employment with MCA for a period of at least one (1) year.

In consideration of MCA performing its services under this Agreement, Buyer acknowledges MCA's damages in such event and agrees to pay as

liguidated damages for breach of this Secticn a one-time payment equal to five hundred (500} times the then standard technician hourly billable

rate, which is currently $200/ hour,

PATENT, COPYRIGHT AND TRADEMARKS:

a. COPYRIGHT AND MASK WORKS: Laws in the United States and other countries preserve for manufacturers certain exdusive rights, in the
manufacturer's software incorporated into any Goods ("Manufacturer's Software™) or included in Services, mask works and other works of
authorship furnished hereunder, induding, without limitation, the exclusive rights to prepare work derived from same, reproduce copies in
same and distribute copies of same. Such Manufachurer’s Software, mask works and other works of authorship may be used in, and
redistributed with, only the Goods which incorporate the same. Mo other use, including without limitation, the reproduction, modification, or
disassembly of such Manufacturer's Software, mask works and other works of authorship or exclusive rights in same is permitted.

b. REVERSE EMGINEERIMG: Buyer acknowledoes manufacturer's claim that the Manufacturer’s Software and Goods fumished hereunder
contain valuable trade secrets of manufacturer and therefore agrees that it will not translate, reverse enginaer, decompile, or disassemble,
or make any other unauthorized use of such Manufacturer's Software and Goods. Since unauthaorized use of such Manufacturer's Software
and Goods will greatly diminish the value of such trade secrets.

¢ LOGOS AND TRADEMARKS: Buyer shall not have a right to use any trademarks, names, slogans, or designations of MCA or any manufacturer
of Goods incorporated into or included in any Goods and/Servicas,

MUTUAL WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Customer and MCA waive all rights against each other for damages caused by any loss, to the extent those

losses are covered and paid by insurance, and except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance. This waiver of subrogation shall

be effective as to a person or entity (1} even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or
otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, or (3) whether or not the person or
entity had an insurable interest in the damaged property. Except for damages covered and paid by insurance (for which the Parties have waived
rights of subrogation, as outlined elsewhere in this agreement), the Parties agree that MCA’s aggregate liability for all daims, suits, actions and
proceedings, howsoever arising, directly or indirectly, under or relating to this agreement or its subject matter, including (but not limited to)
thiose based on breach or rescission of contract or tort, shall not exceed, in the aggregate: (i) the fees paid by the Customer to MCA under this

Agreement.

LIMITATIONS:

a.  LIMITATIONS OF MCA LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT SHALL MCA BE LIABLE TO BUYER OR AMY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY MATTER ARISING OUT
OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMEMT IN RESPECT OF ANY LOSS OF USE, REVEMUE OR PROFIT OR LOSS OF DATA OR DIMINUTION IM
WALUE, OR FOR ANY COMNSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDEMTAL, SPECLAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHETHER ARISING QOUT
OF BREACH OF CONMTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING MEGLIGENCE), OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE
FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT MCA HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE
FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR OTHER REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. MO ACTION SHALL BE GROUGHT FOR ANY BREACH OF THIS
CONTRACT MORE THAM OME (1) YEAR AFTER THE ACCRUAL OF SUCH CAUSE OF ACTION EXCEPT FOR MOMEY DUE UPOMN AN OPEN
ACCOUNT. Both Parties agree that this waiver of consequential damages is a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.

b, MAXIMUM LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT SHALL MCA'S AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING MEGLIGENCE), OR OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE PURCHASE

3
MCA TRC (v February 2025)

161



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

29.

030326 BCC Meeting

PRICE OF THE PARTICULAR GOODS SOLD ANDJOR SERVICES REMDERED HEREUNDER WITH RESPECT TO WHICH LOSSES OR DAMAGES
ARE CLAIMED,

c.  EXCLUSIONS. Motwithstanding the foregoing, the limitations of MCA's liability set forth herein shall not apply to (i) liability resulting from
MCA's willful misconduct and (i} death aor badily Injury resulting exclusively from MCA's acts or omissions.

d. INSURANCE: It Is further understood that MCA Is not an insurer, and that Buyer shall obtain and maintain all necessary and appropriate
policies of insurance in respect of its obligations under this Agreement. MCA does not represent or warrant, and MCA hersby expressly
disclaims any responsibility for, that Goods will avert or prevent cocurrences, or the consequences therefrom, which are monitored, detected,
ar controlled with the use of the Goods sold herein,

e, NO REPRESENTATIOMNS. MCA's representatives are only authorized to fill in the blanks on any agreement, sales Quote or guote form
governed by this Agreement. The issuance of information, advice, approvals, instructions or cost projections by MCA sales or service
personnel or other representatives shall be deemed expressions of personal opinion only and shall not affect MCA and Buyer's rights and
obligations hereunder, unless that same is in writing and signed by an officer of MCA with the explicit statement that it constitutes an
amendment to the Agreement.

INDEMNITY. MCA agrees to indemnify and hold harmlass the Customer, including its officers, directors, and employess, from and against all
losses, damages, expenses, and claims, up to the amount of the Quote, but only to the extent caused solely by the grossly negligent acts or
omissions of MCA in the performance of Services, Buyer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless MCA, its officers, directors, and
employees for anmy and all claims, including daims asserted by third parties, and against any and all kabilities, losses, damages, expenses, liens,
claims, demands, actions, judgments, settlements, interest, awards, penalties, fines costs and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys' fees, costs of collection, costs of recovering insurance, and costs of enforcing this indemnification provision for death, personal injury,
of property damage arising out of any negliaent act ar omission of Buyer, except to the extent such claims are contributed to by (1) the negligence
of willful misconduct of MCA, Any Party seeking indemnity hereunder agrees to (i} notify the other Party in writing of any claims as soon as
reasonably practicable; (i) allow the other Party to control the defense of any such daim and related settlement negotiations; and (i) reasonably
cooperate with the other Party in any defense actions.

GOVERMNING LAWY AND VEMUE. This Agreement is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of where the Project is located, In

addition, the Farties hereto consent to the jurisdiction of any South Carolina state or federal court over any daims arising under or relating to

this Agreement, or the relationship between them.

DISPUTES AMD ATTORMEYS' FEES. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disputes, controversy, or claim arising out of this

Agreement by negotiation between the representatives of each Party who have the authority to settle the dispute. As a precondition to

commencing litigation of any dispute which cannot be so resclved (other than the collection of money due on unpaid involces), the Parties agrae

to participate in madiation with a mediator to be chosen by mutual agreement. If madiation is unsuccassful, any litigation shall take placs in

Spartanburg County South Carolina, United States of America, which shall be the exdusive forum for resclving the dispute, controversy, or claim.

Each Party irrevocably and unconditionally walves any right to a trial by jury in respect to amy legal action arising from this Agreement or any

other agreement between the Parties., Should any dispute arise between the Parties regarding the interpretation, application, effect or

enforcament of this Agreement, the prevailing party in any legal or arbitration proceedings commencad to resohve the dispute shall be entitled
to costs and reasonable atborney's fees incurred in said legal proceeding.

ASSIGMMEMT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each Party and its respective heirs, successors, and assigns. The

Buyer shall not assign in whale or in part these T&Cs ar any interast therein or any rights hereunder without the written consant of MCA, which

shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any such assignment without consent shall be void. Motwithstanding the foregoing, MCA may

assign this Agreement or any other agreement between the Parties, without consent in whole or in part, for the purposes of corporate
reconstruction, reorganization, or anzglogous proceeding, or to (a) any Affiliate; or (b) a third party in the event of a merger, recapitalization,
conversion, consolidation, other business combination or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of MCA to such third party.

MOTICES. All notices or communications (other than normal business communications) required by this Agreement, or desired to be given

hereunder, shall be in writing addressed indicated in the applicable signature block hereto, and given by electronic or USPS mail, with delivery

confirmation, or an overnight mail service that confirms delivery and shall be deemed to be given when received.

. NON-WAIVER: The failure of MCA to insist, in any ohe of more instances, upon the performance of any such term, covenant o conditions of this

Agreament or to exercise any right herain, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinguishment of the future performance of any such term,
covenant or cendition or the future exercise of such right, but the obligation of the Buyer with respect to such future performance shall continue
in full force and effect.

SEVERABILITY: IF any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, it shall be deemed modified
to the minimum extent necessary to make it valid, legal and enforceable. If such medification is not possible, the relevant provision or part-
provision shall be deemed deleted. Any moedification to or deletion of a provision or part-provision under this clause shall not affect the validity
and enforceability of the rest of this Agreement.

. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with the Quaotes and any Exhibits attached thereta, from time to time, sets forth the entire

agreement and understanding between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements and understandings with respect therato,
Mo representations, statements, or inducements, oral or written, not contained herein shall bind either Party. This Agreement may only be
amended by a written document duly executed bebween the Parties. Mo waiver, alteration or modification of the Agreement shall be binding on
MCA unless in writing and signed by an authorized signor of MCA.

MCA TRC (v February 2025)

162



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEMS:

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

C. Request to Purchase PowerPro 2 Cot for Ambulance
Manager’s Comments:

Mr. Holt will request the Board approve the purchase for an additional PowerPro 2
Cot for the ambulance arriving from AEV/NWEYV purchased last year. Total cost is
$45,018.32 including the ProCare which covers all equipment at 100% warranty;
including parts, labor, technician travel, battery replacement, and annual
preventative maintenance for the service life of the equipment.

Board approval is required to formally approve the purchase of the PowerPro 2 Cot
in the amount of $45,018.32.

163



030326 BCC Meeting

February 24, 2026
To: Board of Commissioners
CcC: Deron Geouque, County Manager

Subject: PowerPro 2 Cot

Board of Commissioners,

Please consider my request for $45,018.32 for the purchase of an additional PowerPro 2 Cot for the
ambulance arriving from AEV/NWEV purchased last year. The other durable equipment (powerload,
LUCAS device, cardiac monitor, etc.) has already been purchased in previous Board actions. Additionally,
the ProCare purchase covers all equipment at 100% warranty, including parts, labor, technician travel,
battery replacement, and annual preventative maintenance for the service life of the equipment and is
consistent with the first purchase of cots. Funds have been budgeted for this purpose as part of this
capital project.

Respectfully,

T

William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P
Emergency Services Director

164



stryker

PP2 Cot (1)

Quote Number: 11261182

Version: 1

Prepared For:

Attn:
Quote Date: 02/17/2026
Expiration Date: 05/18/2026
Contract Start: 02/17/2026
Contract End: 02/16/2027

Delivery Address

WATAUGA COUNTY EMER SVCS

Remit to:

Division:

Rep:

Email:

Phone Number:

Mobile:

Sold To - Shipping

030326 BCC Meeting

Stryker Sales, LLC

21343 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO IL 60673-1213
USA

Medical

Ryan Jacobsma
ryan.jacobsma@stryker.com
(912) 414-3571

(912) 414-3571

Bill To Account

Name: WATAUGA COUNTY EMER Name: WATAUGA COUNTY EMER Name: WATAUGA COUNTY EMER
SVCS SVCS SVCS
Account #: 20299216 Account #: 20299216 Account #: 20299216
Address: 184 HODGES GAP RD STE D Address: 184 HODGES GAP RD STE D Address: 184 HODGES GAP RD STE D
BOONE BOONE BOONE
North Carolina 28607-8635 North Carolina 28607-8635 North Carolina 28607-8635
Equipment Products:
# Product Description Qty  List Price Sell Price Total
1.0 650705550001 6507 POWER PRO 2, HIGH CONFIG 1 $39,314.00 $36,615.85 $36,615.85
2.0 650707000002 KIT, ALVARIUM BATTERY, SERVICE 1 $1,175.00 $794.25 $794.25
Equipment List Price: $40,489.00
Equipment Total: $37,410.10
ProCare Products:
# Product Description Months Qty List Price Sell Price Total
3.1 POWERPRO-PROCARE Power Pro 2 for 6507 POWER PRO 2, HIGH CONFIG 60 1 $1,675.00 $7,118.75 $7,118.75
02/18/2026 - 02/17/2031
ProCare List Price: $8,375.00
ProCare Total: $7,118.75
1 165

This is not an Invoice



030326 BCC Meeting

stryker

PP2 Cot (1)
Quote Number: 11261182 Remit to: Stryker Sales, LLC
21343 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO IL 60673-1213
USA
Version: 1 Division: Medical
Prepared For: WATAUGA COUNTY EMER SVCS Rep: Ryan Jacobsma
Attn: Email: ryan.jacobsma@stryker.com
Phone Number: (912) 414-3571
Mobile: (912) 414-3571
Quote Date: 02/17/2026
Expiration Date: 05/18/2026
Contract Start: 02/17/2026
Contract End: 02/16/2027
Price Totals:
Estimated Sales Tax (0.000%): $0.00
Shipping and Handling: $489.47
Grand Total: $45,018.32

Prices: In effect for 30 days

Terms: Net 30 Days

Shipping & Handling Includes:
Standard freight, special packaging, semi rigging cranes, labor & delivery of equipment to final location, removal of all packaging, pre-delivery site
check, education/training

Terms and Conditions:

Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, pricing, and documentation approval. Legal
documentation must be signed before your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon completion of our review process
and your selection of a payment schedule. Confidentiality Notice: Recipient will not disclose to any third party the terms of this quote or any other
information, including any pricing or discounts, offered to be provided by Stryker to Recipient in connection with this quote, without Stryker’s prior
written approval, except as may be requested by law or by lawful order of any applicable government agency. A copy of Stryker Medical's terms
and conditions can be found at_https://techweb.stryker.com/Terms_Conditions/index.html.

2 166

This is not an Invoice


https://techweb.stryker.com/Terms_Conditions/index.html

030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEMY:

2025 CARRY-FORWARD PURCHASE ORDERS

Manager’s Comments:
Mr. Deron Geouque, County Manager/Finance Director, will present carry-forward

purchase orders for 2025.

Board action is required to approve the carry-forward purchase orders as presented.

167



030326 BCC Meeting

Account Description Purpose Amount
104210-449900 |WIJ Office City Receptionist area desk 3,679
104180-426000  |Courthouse Computer Systems Roller Shelving 3,546
104199-469103  |Clark Nexsen Facilities study 3,750
104141-469500 Vincent Valuations Revaluation 314,773
104199-499100  |Contingency Contingency 832,900
104210-444000 |IT Ark Technology Consultants - 450
professional services
104210-452000 |IT Camera system for Courthouse and 40,000
Phones system for DSS
104210-452000 |IT Rubrik backup 80,000
104210-452000 [IT Latitude laptop 3,150
104210-452000 |IT 9 Dell pro max towers 13,302
104210-452000 |IT 4 Fujitsu Ricoh scanners 2,876
104210-452000 |IT Install emergency transportation 828
104130-469100 |Finance Audit for Cindy Randolph 25,000
104140-469507 Tax Business audits 30,500
104150-469101  |Legal services Legal services 33,693
104261-435100  |Courthouse repairs Tile and floor replacement 20,000
104261-435100  |Equipment Chemical by-pass feeder 7,400
104261-435200  |Courthouse repairs Repair leak 3,865
XXXX-469500  |Mowing contract Mowing for various locations 8,594
104267-435101  |Health department Boiler/HVAC/expansion tank 119,000
104267-435100  |Health department Replace stair treads and patch gutter 18,500
and downspouts
104274-435101  [West Annex Landscape improvements and paving 14,000
104275-435100  |Human Services Finish improvements 50,000
104275-435101  [Human Services Paving 73,769
104289-435200  |Recreation center Boiler repairs 12,950
104289-435200  [Recreation center Cooling dehumidification 13,406
104283-435103  |Recreation fields Improvements to Recreation Center 98,430
104262-435100 West Annex Renovation to Medic Base 1 12,000
104265-435101 Medic base 1, 2 and 3 renovations Medic base 1, 2 and 3 renovations 100,000
104269-435200  |Library Nor-well Co repairs 4,000
104275-435100  [Medic base 1, 2 and 3 renovations Medic base 1, 2 and 3 renovations 100,000
104277-435100  |Law enforcement center Tile repair 7,952
104283-435102  |Recreation fields Infield mix 3,830
104283-435103 Recreation fields Infield mix 4,840
104284-435199  |0Old Cove Creek Blue Ridge environmental - 178,063
Hurricane Helene
104284-435199  |Old Cove Creek Hurricane Helene repairs 111,657
104285-435101  |Brookshire Paving 185,361
105890-463154  [250 NC Grant 250 NC Grant 10,000
104310-444000 Fleet maintenance Sherriff's office software 3,990
104310-454000  |Sheriff vehicles Upfitting police vehicles 10,100

168




030326 BCC Meeting

104311-451000  [Emergency management Upgrades 24,100
104311-451000  |Emergency management Upgrades 3,043,193
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 5,152,890
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 3,500
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 2,650
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 2,650
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 617,410
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 4,500
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 4,500
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 7,850
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 10,000
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 21,421
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 12,151
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 9,630
104311-451008  |Emergency management EM Communications expansion 112,000
104320-451000  |Jail Upgrade for CCTV 47,428
106125-429802  |Athletics Little league supplies 3,832
104950-458000 |Cooperative extension Building improvements 41,752
104960-469853  |Soil and Water Edmisten

105550-412100 |POA SHIIP grants 5,274
105550-412101 POA Senior center allocation 1,006
105550-432100 POA Senior center allocation 3,774
105550-432100 [POA Senior center allocation 2,294
105550-517400  |POA ARPA funds 4,938
105911-470037  |Watauga County School Lottery for School 23,368
105911-470045  |Watauga County School Lottery for School

105911-470078  |Watauga County School Lottery for School 55,100
105911-470060 |Watauga County School Lottery for School 3,153
145310-449902  |Foster Care discretionary funds Foster Care discretionary funds 3,976
145310-449903 Adult Protective services Adult Protective services 2,105
145410-440006  |Adoption promotion grant Adoption promotion grant 137,590
145310-449904  |CPS discretionary funds CPS discretionary funds 4,950
667420-435200 |James River Equipment tub for grinder 13,023
667420-457002  |Civil Design Concepts Solid waste 48,390

169




030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Hardin Park School SUE (Level B) Survey
Manager’s Comments:

The Watauga County School System facility study inventoried all of the systems
facilities. Hardin Park School has been identified for years as needing to be replaced.
Discussions have determined the most cost-effective path forward would be to build
on the existing site.

In order to determine if the construction on the site is feasible; soil, boundary, and
utility studies will need to be conducted. As part of that process, a contract for a
Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) Level B survey which is used to identify and
map underground utilities before excavation or construction is attached.

Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-64.32, the Board must exempt the project from the

Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) process, as the professional services fee is
less than $50,000.

Should the Board wish to approve this request, the required actions would be:

e Exempt the project from the Qualifications-Based Selection process pursuant
to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-64.32; and

e Award the contract to JMT for a SUE Level B survey in an amount not to
exceed $32,350.

Staff seeks direction.

170



wS7INY.

January 23, 2026

Attn: Deron Geouque

Watauga County

Deron Geouque,

JMT appreciates the opportunity to provide a scope and fee proposal for a SUE (Level B) Survey of
Hardin Park Elementary School in Boone, Watauga County, NC. Details emailed January 20, 2026.

2%

Cecil/Sth

d\

-~

17753

State Employees' o s
Crec‘i‘l.l Union ¢ : AT = fardin|Park ‘
f : v . /"Iementary School
“

New Market/Bjy,

= e T e e -
o - \
"\ \ W, )
Yo, MadernlEord(of/Boone,
%0y \roru\duulu \

! Mr Tlre Au(o
QService Centers 0
3 Tite Shoy
e g r

Flgure 1 Clark Nexsen

171



w

SCOPE OF WORK

Limits of Survey are outlined in red and shaded orange in figure 1 above. Approximately 26 acres.

JMT will survey project on NC State Plane (GRID). North American Datum 1983 (2011) and North
American Vertical Datum (NAVD 88).

JMT will Locate, mark on ground, and survey any underground utility found using Geophysical
locators and GPR (Ground Penetrating Radar) Technology in project limits shown above to Level
B standards. This does not include depths of non-gravity utilities. Utility location services will be
provided in a manner consistent with standards of the subsurface utility mapping industry. A
reasonable effort will be made to locate all systems of interest. However, it cannot be guaranteed
that all existing utility systems can or will be detected. It may not be possible to detect utilities
without prior knowledge, such as systems that are not depicted on records that are made
available. Non-utility structures such as, but not limited to: foundations, irrigation systems, septic
systems, wells, tunnels, concrete or metal structures, sizes and limits of subsurface utility vaults
and manholes will not be located.

JMT will contact 811 to request and acquire records of the existing underground facilities in the
project area. Utility record information will be used as an aid in the identification of the number,
identity, size and material of utilities located in the field. Records will not be used as a substitute
for actual geophysical location unless the system cannot be verified electronically using industry
standard techniques for this level of investigation.

JMT assumes client will provide any available non-public documentation of utilities.

JMT will survey any above ground non-Gravity appurtenances i.e. Transformer pads, Telephone
pedestals, overhead lines, water meters, etc.

This proposal does not include mapping utilities. JMT will map all found utilities under Survey
Proposal cost and map in Combined Survey and SUE CADD file.

Deliverables

Combined Survey and SUE AutoCAD DWG file.
Signed and Sealed PDF of combined survey.

172



Not Requested

Separate SUE drawing

Wetlands Survey

Recording of survey

Subdivision of Property

Construction staking

Tree Survey

Level-A SUE/Test Hole Survey

a. Ifrequested JMT can perform ASCE 38-02 “Quality Level A” vacuum

excavation test holes along the project corridor as directed by Client. The
“soft digs” will be used to obtain information on existing underground
utilities such as location, depth, size, and material type of the pipe. Normal
Test Hole size is approximately 2'x2’. Level A test hole standard rates are
assumed to be in soil conditions and not in asphalt, concrete, or road
locations. Test holes to be billed at a per hole price assuming 3 test holes
per day. Mobilization fee will be charged due to distance from Asheville
traveled by VAC truck.

Noup,kwnpe

SUE Fee

$32,350

Additional Services: JMT offers many other services not included in this Scope and Fee such as
Boundary Surveys, Level A-D SUE and construction staking, to name a few. We would be happy to
estimate the fee for these services. If you have any questions, please contact me at Office: (828)253-
2796 or email at kssluder@jmt.com

Thank you,

bl A

JOHNSON, MIRMIRAN & THOMPSON, INC.

Karsten Sluder, PLS (NC,GA,KY,VA)
Project Manager, Survey/SUE

108 Asheville Commerce Parkway
Candler, NC 28715
kssluder@jmt.com

jmt.com

173



TERMS & CONDITIONS

General Provisions

JMT agrees that this proposal shall remain open for 60 days from the date of this proposal.
Acceptance of the proposal after the end of the 60 day period is valid if JMT elects, in
writing, to reaffirm the proposal and waive its right to re-evaluate and resubmit the
proposal.

JMT reserves the right to renegotiate the contract which this proposal, if accepted, will
comprise, on or after six (6) months from the date of this proposal, provided the Client is
given 30 days of notice in writing, if salaries or operational costs increase in a sufficient
amount. Our present quotation is based upon current salaries and operational costs.

Itis understood and agreed that once work is started on this project by JMT, only the Client
or its duly authorized representative has the authority to order the work stopped on his
behalf and only upon giving JMT, 10 days of notice in writing, as to when the work shall
stop. The Client further agrees to be liable and pay to JMT, for all labor done, work
performed, materials furnished, and expenses incurred up to and including the day work
is stopped in accordance with the notice.

JMT will provide the Client with data on electronic files; however, the Client acknowledges
that data stored on electronic media can deteriorate undetected or be modified without the
JMT’s knowledge. Therefore, electronic files are provided without warranty or obligation
on the part of JMT as to accuracy of information contained on the electronic files. All
information on the electronic files must be independently verified by the Client and the
Client agrees to indemnify and hold JMT harmless from any and all claims, damages,
losses, and expenses including but not limited to attorney’s fees arising out of the use of
the electronic files.

Client acknowledges and agrees that JMT may include or otherwise reference the Project
in its general project portfolio, and shall be entitled to identify the Project and the services
performed by JMT for the Client in its general marketing materials, and for purposes of
demonstrating relevant qualifications and experience. JMT shall also have the right to
access the Project site to document, photograph, video, and/or record by any media or
means, the Project at each phase, during construction and upon completion, for its own
use and for other legitimate business purposes, including but not limited to exhibitions, or
award competitions, or publication in journals. Any publication of the Project by Client or
any representative of the Client, shall include reference to JMT and proper attribution and
credit for its role in the Project.

174



Time of Payments and Litigation Expenses

JMT will submit monthly certified invoices for services rendered during the preceding month.
Payments are due and payable within 30 days from the date of invoice. If Client fails to pay
the full amount due for services and expenses within 30 days after date of invoice, the amount
due will include a charge at the rate of 1-1/2% per month of the outstanding balance from said
30th day. In addition, in the event any invoice has not been paid in full by its due date, JMT
may, after giving three (3) days written notice to Client, suspend services under this Agreement
until Client has paid in full amounts due JMT for services, expenses and interest.

In the event JMT deems it necessary to refer any unpaid invoices to its attorneys for the
purposes of instituting collection or mechanic's liens proceedings, Client agrees to pay JMT's
attorney's fees, court costs, and litigation expenses, including fees for expert witnesses, trial
and deposition transcripts, cost of printing briefs, and travel expenses for witnesses, attorneys
and employees.

In the event Client asserts a claim against JMT and/or JMT's subconsultants for any act arising
out of performance of the services provided herein, whether by an original action, or by
counterclaim set-off or other defense to any mechanic's lien or other claim asserted by JMT
as a result of Client non-payment of fees and expenses for services rendered, and if Client
fails to prevail in such action, counterclaim, set-off, or defense, Client agrees to pay all
attorney's fees, costs and litigation expenses (including fees for expert witnesses, trial
transcripts and deposition transcripts) incurred by JMT and/or JMT's subconsultants in
opposing any such action, counterclaim, set-off or defense.

JMT may withhold the delivery, signature or sealing plans and specifications, and may
repossess all plans and specifications previously delivered to or otherwise made available to
Client, their agents or assigns, without incurring any liability for direct and/or consequential
damages to Client or anyone claiming through them or on their behalf whenever JMT deems
it necessary to ensure payment for services rendered. Should any claim for such damages
be made, Client agrees to hold JMT harmless from all litigation expenses incurred by JMT as
defined herein.

Additional Services

In the event additional services beyond those identified in the Scope of Work are required by
the Client or by circumstances beyond JMT's control, JMT will furnish such services upon
written authorization of the Client. Payment for Additional Services will be charged at the
following hourly rates which are inclusive of labor, overhead, payroll burden and profit.

Classification Hourly Rate
2-Person Survey/SUE Crew $185
CADD Tech $135
PLS/Project Manger $210

175



Any changes to the previously approved submittals will be considered a change in scope of
services and JMT will be entitled to additional compensation at the rates herein specified.

Insurance

JMT maintains Professional Liability, General Liability and Workmen's Compensation
Insurance. On request, JMT will furnish Client certification of insurance.

Termination
In the event of termination of this Agreement by Client, Client shall pay JMT for services
(including additional services) rendered, performed, or procured through such phase, including

Expenses, at the rates stated in the Agreement, plus all termination expenses. Termination
expenses mean additional Reimbursable Expenses directly attributable to termination.

Indemnification and Limitation of Liability

JMT shall hold harmless and indemnify the Client against injury, loss or damage arising out of
its performance of the Services, but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or
omissions of JMT. The Client agrees to limit JMT's liability hereunder to Client and to all
Construction Contractors and Subcontractors on the project, due to such negligent acts, errors
or omissions, such the total aggregate liability of JMT to all those named shall not exceed
JMT's total fee for services rendered on this project.

Standard of Care

JMT will perform the services in a manner consistent with the degree of skill and care
ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under the
same conditions. JMT makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, with
respect to its services.

Severability

If any provision of this Agreement, or application thereof, shall be held invalid, the invalidity
shall not affect the other provisions of the Agreement which can be given effect without
the invalid provisions or applications, and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are
declared to be severable.

176



WE HEREBY AUTHORIZE JOHNSON, MIRMIRAN & THOMPSON, INC. TO PROCEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE ABOVE PROPOSAL. IF ANY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ARE ORDERED BY A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE

CLIENT, FOR ITEMS LISTED ABOVE WITH A RETURNED ACCEPTANCE, THE PRICES AND TERMS OF THIS
PROPOSAL SHALL BE IN EFFECT.

ORGANIZATION: DATE:

BY: TITLE

177



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

B. Field Lease with High Country Soccer Association

Manager’s Comments:

County Attorney Miller will present a field lease with High Country Soccer
Association.

Board action is required to approve the lease.

Staff seeks direction from the Board.

178



030326 BCC Meeting

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

FIELD LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE, effective the _ day of , 2026, by and between WATAUGA
COUNTY, a body politic. (“Landlord”) whose address is: 814 West King Street, Boone, NC
28607 and High Country Soccer Association, Inc., a North Carolina Non-Profit Corporation
(“Tenant”) whose address is: ¢/o 207 Sunburst Lane, Boone, NC, 28607

WITNESSETH:

DEMISED PREMISES

1. Landlord, for and in consideration of the rents, covenants, agreements, and stipulations
hereinafter mentioned, provided for and agreed to be paid, kept, and performed by Tenant, leases
and rents unto Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases and takes upon the terms and conditions which
hereinafter appear, the following described property (hereinafter called the “Premises™), to wit:

Legal Description

The existing soccer field and the 20 feet in any direction immediately adjacent to the existing
soccer field located on the 40.75 acres known as Tract 1 shown on the Plat recorded on Plat
Book 17, Page 153, Watauga County Registry, including the use of the existing gravel road to
access said soccer field. Also known as Tax Parcel # 2921-02-9838-000.

x | See attached Exhibit A for tax map, drawing of the leased Premises.

TERM

2. The Tenant shall have and hold the Premises for a term of 363 days beginning on the
day of , 2026, and ending on the ___ day of , 2027, at midnight,
unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided.

RENT

3. Tenant agrees to pay Landlord or its Agent without demand, deduction or set off, a
yearly rent of ONE DOLLAR (51.00) per year for the first year in advance on the first day
of lease unless such day is a weekend or a holiday and then it is due the first business day
thereafter.

179



030326 BCC Meeting

LATE CHARGES:

4. If Landlord fails to receive any rent payment within 15 days after it becomes due, Tenant
shall pay Landlord, as additional rent, a late charge equal to 10 percent (10 %) of the overdue
amount or $300.00, plus any actual bank fees incurred for returned or dishonored checks. The
parties agree that such a late charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the cost Landlord
will incur by reason of such late payment.

SECURITY DEPOSIT

5. The Tenant shall pay to Landlord no security deposit.
UTILITY BILLS

6. There are no utility bills on the Demised Premises.
USE OF PREMISES

7. The Premises shall be used for practice, games and other events hosted by the Tenant.
When not in use by the Tenant, the Landlord may utilize the soccer field and parking areas
for Watauga County Parks and Recreation or any other county purpose. The Premises
shall not be used for any illegal purposes, nor in any manner to create any nuisance or trespass,
nor in any manner to nullify the insurance or increase the rate of insurance on the Premises. In
the event Tenant’s use of the Premises results in an increase in the rate of insurance on the
Premises, Tenant shall pay the amount of any such increases.

INDEMNITY; INSURANCE

8. Tenant agrees to and hereby does indemnify and save Landlord harmless against all claims
for damages to persons or property by reason of Tenant’s or Tenant’s agent’s or Tenant’s guest’s
or licensee’s use or occupancy of the Premises, and all expenses incurred or owed by Landlord
therefrom, including attorney’s fees and court costs. Supplementing the foregoing and in
addition thereto, Tenant shall during the term of this Lease and any extension or renewal
thereof, and at Tenant’s expense, maintain in full force and effect comprehensive general
liability insurance with minimum coverage limits of $1,000,000.00, which insurance shall
contain a special endorsement recognizing and insuring any liability accruing to Tenant under
the first sentence of this paragraph, and naming Landlord as additional insured. Tenant shall
provide evidence of such insurance to Landlord prior to the commencement of the term of each
Lease year.

REPAIRS BY TENANT

9. Tenant agrees to keep in good repair the Leased Premises.

180



030326 BCC Meeting

10. Tenant accepts the Premises in its present condition and as suited for the uses intended by
Tenant. Tenant shall, throughout the initial term of this Lease, and any extension or renewal
thereof, at its expense, maintain in good order and repair the Premises, except those repairs
expressly required to be made by the Landlord hereunder, if any. Tenant, Tenant’s employees,
agents, contractors or subcontractors shall take no action which may void any manufacturers or
installers warranty with relation to the Premises. Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord
harmless from any liability, claim, or demand or cause of action arising on account of Tenant’s
breach of the provisions of this paragraph. The Parties have agreed that the Landlord shall install
a new natural gas heat source and the associated duct work.

ALTERATIONS

11. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises without
the Landlord’s prior written consent. Tenant shall promptly remove any alterations, additions, or
improvements constructed in violation of this Paragraph upon written request. All approved
alterations, additions, and improvements will be accomplished in a good and workmanlike
manner, in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations, and by a contractor approved by
Landlord, free of any liens or encumbrances. Landlord may require Tenant to remove any
alterations, additions, or improvements (whether or not made with Landlord’s consent) at the
termination of the Lease and to restore the Premises to its prior condition, all at Tenant’s
expense. All alterations, additions, and improvements which Landlord has not required Tenant
to remove shall become Landlord’s property and shall be surrendered to Landlord upon the
termination of this Lease, except that Tenant may remove any of Tenant’s machinery or
equipment which can be removed without material damage to the Premises. Tenant shall repair,
at Tenant’s expense, any damage to the Premises caused by the removal of any such machinery
or equipment or alterations, additions, or improvements.

REMOVAL OF FIXTURES

12. Tenant may (if not in default hereunder) prior to the expiration of this Lease, or any
extension or renewal thereof, remove all fixtures and equipment which he or his agent have
placed in or on the Premises, provided Tenant repairs all damage to the Premises caused by the
removal of any such improvements, machinery, or equipment.

DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGE TO PREMISES

13. If the Premises are totally destroyed by storm, fire, lightning, earthquake, or other casualty,
this lease shall terminate as of the date of such destruction and rental shall be accounted for as
between Landlord and Tenant as of that date. If the Premises are damaged but not wholly
damaged by any such casualties, rental shall abate in such proportion as effective use of the
Premises has been affected. In such event, however, Landlord has the option in its discretion to
terminate the lease or restore the Premises to substantially the same condition as before damage

as quPdily as.is pr’a(‘i‘irﬂhl()) whprmlpnn full rental shall recommence

3

181



030326 BCC Meeting

GOVERNMENTAL ORDERS

14. Tenant agrees, at its own expense, to comply promptly with all requirements of any legally
constituted public authority made necessary by reason of Tenant’s occupancy of the Premises.
Landlord agrees to comply promptly with any such requirement if not made necessary by reason
of Tenant’s occupancy. It is mutually agreed, however, between Landlord and Tenant, that if in
order to comply with such requirements, the cost to Landlord or Tenant, as the case may be, shall
exceed a sum equal to one year’s rent, then Landlord or Tenant, whichever is obligated to
comply with such requirements, may terminate this Lease by giving written notice of termination
to the other party by registered mail, which termination shall become effective sixty (60) days
after receipt of such notice and which notice shall eliminate the necessity of compliance with
such requirements by giving such notice unless the party giving such notice of termination shall,
before termination becomes effective, pay to the party giving notice all costs of compliance in
excess of one year’s rent, or secure payment of said sum in a manner satisfactory to the party
giving notice.

CONDEMNATION

15. If the whole of the Premises, or such portion thereof as will make the Premises unusable for
the purposes herein leased, is condemned by any legally constituted authority for any public use
or purpose, then in either of said events the term hereby granted shall cease from the date when
possession thereof is taken by public authorities, and rental shall be accounted for as between
Landlord and Tenant as of said date. Such termination, however, shall be without prejudice to
the rights of the Landlord to recover compensation and damage caused by condemnation from
the condemnor. It is further understood and agreed that Tenant assigns all of its rights in
condemnation proceeds, if any, to the Landlord, and Tenant shall not have any rights in or to any
award for damage or for the “taking” made to Landlord by any condemnation authority.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

16. Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of Landlord, assign this Lease or
any interest hereunder, or sublet the Premises or any part thereof, or permit the use of the
Premises by any party other than the Tenant. Consent to any assignment or sublease shall not
impair this provision and all later assignments or subleases shall be made likewise only on the
prior written consent of Landlord. The Assignee of Tenant, if any are approved by Landlord, at
the option of Landlord, shall become directly liable to Landlord for all obligations of Tenant
hereunder, but no sublease or assignment by Tenant shall relieve Tenant of any liability
hereunder.

182



030326 BCC Meeting

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

17. The happening of any one or more of the following events (hereinafter any one of which
may be referred to as an “Event of Default”) during the term of this Lease, or any renewal or
extension thereof, shall constitute a breach of this Lease on the part of the Tenant: (a) Tenant
fails to pay the rental as provided for herein; (b) Tenant abandons or vacates the Premises; (c)
Tenant fails to comply with or abide by and perform any other obligation imposed upon Tenant
under this Lease; (d) Tenant is adjudicated bankrupt; (¢) A permanent receiver is appointed for
Tenant’s property and such receiver is not removed within sixty (60) days after written notice
from Landlord to Tenant to obtain such removal; (f) Tenant, either voluntarily or involuntarily,
takes advantage of any debt or relief proceeding under any present or future law, whereby the
rent or any part thereof is, or is proposed to be reduced or payment thereof deferred; (g) Tenant
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (h) Tenant’s effects are levied upon or
attached under process against Tenant, which is not satisfied or dissolved within thirty (30) days
after written notice from Landlord to Tenant to obtain satisfaction thereof.

REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT

18. Upon the occurrence of Event of Default, Landlord may pursue any one or more of the
following remedies separately or concurrently, without prejudice to any other remedy herein
provided or provided by law: (a) if the Event of Default involves nonpayment of rental and
Tenant fails to cure such default within fifteen (15) days after receipt of written notice of default
from Landlord, Landlord may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Tenant and upon
such termination shall be entitled to recover from Tenant damages as may be permitted under
applicable law; or (b) if the Event of Default involves any matter other than those set forth in
item (a) of this paragraph, Landlord may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Tenant
and, upon such termination, shall be entitled to recover from the Tenant damages in an amount
equal to all rental which is due and all rental which would otherwise have become due
throughout the remaining term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension thereof (as if this Lease
had not been terminated); or (c) upon any Event of Default, Landlord, as Tenant’s agent, without
terminating this Lease, may enter upon and rent the Premises, in whole or in part, at the best
price obtainable by reasonable effort, without advertisement and by private negotiations and for
any term Landlord deems proper, with Tenant being liable to Landlord for the deficiency, if any,
between Tenant’s rent hereunder and the price obtained by Landlord on reletting, provided
however, that Landlord shall not be considered to be under any duty by reason of this provision
to take any action to mitigate damages by reason of Tenant’s default. In the event Landlord hires
an attorney to enforce its right upon default, Tenant shall in addition be liable for reasonable
attorney’s fees at a rate charged no greater than $250.00/hour and all costs of collection.

183



030326 BCC Meeting

EXTERIOR SIGNS

19. Tenant shall place no signs on the Premises, except with the express written consent of the
Landlord. Any and all signs placed on the Premises shall be maintained in compliance with
governmental rules and regulations governing such signs and Tenant shall be responsible to
Landlord for any damage caused by installation, use or maintenance of said signs, and all
damage incident to removal thereof.

LANDLORD’S ENTRY ON PREMISES

20. The Landlord and its representatives shall have the right to enter the leased property at all
times in order to examine it, to show it to prospective purchaser or lessees, or to make such
decorations, repairs, alterations, improvements, or additions as the Landlord may deem necessary
or desirable. The Landlord shall be allowed to take all material into and upon the leased property
that may be required thereof without the same constituting an eviction of the Tenant in whole or
in part. The rent reserved shall not abate while decorations, repairs, alterations, improvements, or
additions are being made by Landlord or Landlord’s agents, whether by reason of loss or
interruption of the business of the Tenant or otherwise. The Landlord’s right of reentry shall not
be deemed to impose upon the Landlord any obligation, responsibility, or liability for the care,
supervision, or repair of the leased property other than as herein provided. The Landlord shall
have the right to enter the leased Premises at any time, without effecting an actual or constructive
eviction and without incurring any liability to the Tenant therefor.

EFFECT OF TERMINATION OF LEASE

21. No termination of this Lease prior to the normal ending thereof, by lapse of time or
otherwise, shall affect Landlord’s right to collect rent for the period prior to termination thereof.

MORTGAGEE’S RIGHTS

22. Tenant’s rights shall be subject to any bona fide mortgage, deed of trust or other security
interest which is now or may hereafter be placed upon the Premises by Landlord, if any. Tenant
shall, if requested by Landlord, execute a separate agreement reflecting such subordination, and
shall be obligated to execute such documentation as may facilitate Landlord’s sale or refinancing
of the Premises, including, but not limited to, estoppel certificates, subordination or attornment
agreements.

QUIET ENJOYMENT

23. So long as Tenant observes and performs the covenants and agreements contained herein, it
shall at all times during the Lease term peacefully and quietly have and enjoy possession of the
Premises, but always subject to the terms hereof and the rights of adjoining Tenants and the entry
rights of Landlord. Provided, however, that in the event Landlord shall sell or otherwise transfer
its interest in the Premises, Tenant agrees to attorn to any new owner or interest holder and shall,

6

184



030326 BCC Meeting

if requested by Landlord, execute a separate agreement reflecting such attornment, provided that
said agreement requires the new owner or interest holder to recognize its obligations and
Tenant’s rights hereunder.

HOLDING OVER

24. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after expiration of the term hereof, with
Landlord’s acquiescence and without any express agreement of the parties, Tenant shall be a
tenant at will at the rental rate which is in effect at end of this Lease and there shall be no
renewal of this Lease by operation of law. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after
expiration of the term hereof without Landlord’s acquiescence, Tenant shall be a Tenant at
sufferance and commencing on the date following the date of such lease expiration, the new
monthly rental payable for each month, or fraction thereof during which Tenant so remains in
possession of the Premises, shall be ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) per month.

ATTORNEY’S FEES

25. In the event that any action or proceeding is brought to enforce any term, covenant, or
condition of this Lease on the part of a breach by the Tenant, the prevailing party in such
litigation shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees.

WAIVER OF RIGHTS

26. No failure of Landlord to exercise any power given Landlord hereunder or to insist upon
strict compliance by Tenant of its obligations hereunder and no custom or practice of the parties
at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of Landlord’s right to demand exact
compliance with the terms hereof.

ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

27.  (a) Tenant shall not bring onto the Premises any Hazardous Materials (as defined below)
without the prior written approval by Landlord. Any approval must be preceded by submission
to Landlord of appropriate Material Safety Data Sheets (MSD Sheets). In the event of approval
by Landlord, Tenant covenants that it will: (1) comply with all requirements of any constituted
public authority and all federal, state, and local codes, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations,
and laws, whether now in force or hereafter adopted relating to Tenant’s use of the Premises, or
relating to the storage, use, disposal, processing, distribution, shipping or sales of any hazardous,
flammable, toxic, or dangerous materials, waste or substance, the presence of which is regulated
by a federal, state, or local law, ruling, rule or regulation (hereafter collectively referred to as
“Hazardous Material”); (2) comply with any reasonable recommendations by the insurance
carrier of either Landlord or Tenant relating to the use by Tenant on the Premises of such
Hazardous Materials; (3) refrain from unlawfully disposing of or allowing the disposal of any
Hazardous Materials upon, within, about or under the Premises; and (4) remove all Hazardous

185



030326 BCC Meeting

Materials from the Premises, either after their use by Tenant or upon the expiration or earlier
termination of this lease, in compliance with all applicable laws.

(b) Tenant shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits in connection with its
use, storage, and disposal of Hazardous Materials, and shall develop and maintain, and where
necessary file with appropriate authorities, all reports, receipts, manifests, filings, lists, and
invoices covering those Hazardous Materials and Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies of
all such items upon request. Tenant shall provide within five (5) days after receipt thereof,
copies or all notices, orders, claims, or other correspondence from any federal, state, or local
government or agency alleging any violation of any environmental law or regulation by Tenant,
or related in any manner to Hazardous Materials. In addition, Tenant shall provide Landlord
with copies of all responses to such correspondence at the time of the response.

(¢) Tenant hereby indemnifies and holds harmless Landlord, its successors and assigns
from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, penalties, fines, costs,
expenses, and claims of any and every kind whatsoever (including attorney’s fees and costs,
expenses or claims asserted or arising under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, from time to time, and regulations
promulgated thereunder, any so-called state or local “Superfund” or “Superlien” law, or any
other federal, state, or local statue, law or ordinance, code, rule, regulation, order or decree
regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning any Hazardous
Materials) paid, incurred or suffered by, or asserted against, Landlord as a result of any claim,
demand or judicial or administrative action by any person or entity (including governmental or
private entities) for, with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of, the presence on or under
or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission or release from the Premises on
any Hazardous Materials caused by a fire or other casualty to the Premises if such Hazardous
Materials were stored on the Premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, invitees, or successors in
interest.

(d) If Tenant fails to comply with the Covenants to be performed hereunder with respect
to Hazardous Materials, or if an environmental protection lien is filed against the Premises as a
result of the actions of Tenant, its agents, employees or invitees, then the occurrence of any such
events shall be considered a default hereunder.

(e) Tenant will give Landlord prompt notice of any release of Hazardous Materials,
reportable or non-reportable, to federal, state, or local authorities, of any fire, or any damage
occurring on or to the Premises.

() Tenant will use and occupy the Premises and conduct its business in such a manner
that the Premises are neat, clean, and orderly at all times with all chemicals or Hazardous
Materials marked for easy identification and stored according to all codes as outlined above.

186



030326 BCC Meeting

(g) The warranties and indemnities contained in this Paragraph shall survive termination
of this Lease.

TIME OF ESSENCE
28. Time is of the essence with respect to all dates in this Lease.
ABANDONMENT

29. Tenant shall not abandon the Premises at any time during the Lease term, If Tenant shall
abandon the Premises or be dispossessed by process of law, any personal property, fixtures,
equipment or improvements belonging to or installed by Tenant or by agents of Tenant and left
on the Premises shall, at the option of Landlord, be deemed abandoned, and available to
Landlord to use or sell or to offset any rent due or any expenses incurred by removing same and
restoring the Premises.

DEFINITIONS

30. “Landlord” as used in this Lease shall include the undersigned, its agents, heirs,
representatives, assigns, and successors in title to the Premises. “Tenant” shall include the
undersigned and its representatives and successors, and if this lease shall be validly assigned or
sublet, shall include also Tenant’s assignees or sublessees as to the Premises covered by such
assignment or sublease. “Landlord”, “Tenant”, and “Agent” include male and female, singular
and plural, corporation, partnership, or individual, as may fit the particular parties.

NOTICE

31. All notices required or permitted under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be personally
delivered or sent by U.S. Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid or by regular
mail. Notices to Tenant shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of this

Lease. Notices to Landlord shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of

this Lease.

All notices to Tenant shall be effective upon mailing and notices to Landlord shall be
effective upon receipt thereof. Any party may change its notice address upon written
notice to the other parties, given as provided herein.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

32. This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties hereto, and no representations,
inducements, promises, or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties, not embodied
herein shall be of any force or effect. This Lease may not be modified except by a writing signed
by all the parties hereto.

187



030326 BCC Meeting

AUTHORIZED LEASE EXECUTION

33. Each individual executing this Lease as director, officer, partner, member, or agent of a
corporation, limited liability company, or partnership represents and warrants that he is duly
authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of such corporation, limited liability
company, or partnership.

TRANSFER OF LANDLORD’S INTEREST

34. In the event of the sale, assignment or transfer by Landlord of its interest in the Premises or
in this Lease (other than a collateral assignment to secure a debt of Landlord) to a successor in
interest who expressly assumes the obligations of Landlord under this Lease, Landlord shall
thereupon be released and discharged from all its covenants and obligations under the Lease,
except those obligations that have accrued prior to such sale, assignment or transfer; and Tenant
agrees to look solely to the successor in interest of Landlord for the performance of those
covenants accruing after such sale, assignment or transfer. Landlord’s assignment of this Lease,
or of any or all of its rights in this Lease, shall not affect Tenant’s obligations hereunder, and
Tenant shall attorn and look to the assignee as Landlord, provided Tenant has first received
written notice of the assignment of Landlord’s interest.

SPECIAL STIPULATIONS

35. Any special stipulations are set forth in the attached Exhibit B. In so far as said Special
Stipulations conflict with any of the foregoing provisions, said Special Stipulations shall control.

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

36, Upon request by either Landlord or Tenant, the parties hereto shall execute a short form lease
(Memorandum of Lease) in recordable form, setting forth such provisions hereof (other than the
amount of rent and other sums due) as either party may wish to incorporate. The cost of
recording such memorandum of lease shall be borne by the party requesting execution of the
same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and expressly incorporating and agreeing to the contents of Exhibits
A and B attached, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals, effective on the day,
month, and year first above written.

10

188



030326 BCC Meeting

LANDLORD:

Chairman Braxton Eggers

Attest:
Secretary to the Board of Commissioners

TENANT: é/
7&2@ L Ve (SEAL)

By, KeVin L. KEsEDitonn
Title: Ho oA BopRD Pﬁ%wmgm[

11

189



iolpny AlunoD ebneiepp



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Announcements

Manager’s Comments:

Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 7, 2026, beginning at 12:00
noon and Friday, May 8, 2026, beginning at 9:00 A.M.

191



030326 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 11 :

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS

AGENDA ITEM 12:

BREAK

AGENDA ITEM 13:

CLOSED SESSION

e Acquisition of Real Property per G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(5)
e Attorney-Client Matters per G. S. § 143-318.11(a)(3)
o Including Case No. 5:25-cv-157, Watauga County Voting Rights Task
Force v. Watauga County Board of Elections

192



	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	2. Approval of Minutes
	3. Approval of March 3, 2026 Agenda
	4. Public Comment
	5. FY 2025 Audit Presentation
	6. Lucky Dog Vintage Market-Use of Human Services Lot
	7. Requesting Appointment of Home & Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) Advisory Community and Lead Agency
	8. Emergency Services Matters
	A. Request to Purchase APX Consolettes
	B. Request to Purchase Uninterrupted Power Supply
	C. Request to Purchase PowerPro 2 Cot for Ambulance

	9. 2025 Carry-Foward Purchase Orders
	10. Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A. Hardin Park School SUE (Level B) Survey
	B. Field Lease with High Country Soccer Association
	C. Announcements

	11. Commissioners' Comments
	12. Break
	13. Closed Session



